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Tunesday, April 16. 2002

11:00 - 12:00 Noon

Joint Committee on Government and Finance

Senate House
Tomblin, Chair Kiss, Chair
Chafin (absent) Amores
Craigo (absent) Mezzatesta
Sharpe Michael
Wooton Staton

Deem Hall (absent)
Sprouse Trump (absent)

President Tomblin, Cochair, presided.
1. Approval of Minutes.,

Upon motion by Speaker Kiss, properly seconded and adopted, the minutes of the January

8, 2002, meeting were approved.

2. 2002 Interim Studies.

Upon motion by Speaker Kiss, properly scconded and adopted, committee chairs were
authorized to study any issue and assign to appropriate subcommittee with notification to the
President and Speaker.

Upon motion by Speaker Kiss, properly seconded and adopted, the President and Speaker
were authorized to appoint as many members as desired to any commitiee other than statutory
committees.

Upon motion by Speaker Kiss, properly seconded and adopted, the following studies were

authorized:

Resolutions Adopted by the Eegislature

HCR 25-Single Retirement Plan for Uniformed Services Public Employees was referred to



Pensions and Retirement.

HCR 27-Implementing a Medicaid Buy-in for People with Disabilities was referred to
Finance.

HCR 33-Recruitment and Retention of Volunteer Fire Fighters was referred to Governroent
Organization.

HCR 47-Retirement Program for Volunteer Fire Fighters and EMS Personnel was referred
to Pensions.

HCR 50-Cost-of-Living Increase for Public Employees and State Teachers Retirement
Systems was referred to Pensions.

HCR 53-Technical and Adult Education Services was referred to Education.

HCR 68-Health Care Practitioners Shortage was referred to Legislative Oversight
Commission on Health and Human Resources Accountability (LOCHHRA).

HCR 73-Effects of Identity Theft and Proposed Federal Regulations Relating to Antiterrorist
Measures was referred to Judiciary.

HCR 76-Unemployment and Socioeconomic Problems Confronting African Americans was
referred to LOCHHRA.

HCR 84-Healthcare Delivery Study Commission was referred to newly created Select
Committee on Nursing Homes.

HCR 91-Nursing Homes Staffing was referred to Select Committee on Nursing Homes.

SCR 18-Vision Examination Reguired for Elementary School Children was referred to
Education.

SCR 25-Economic Potential of Equestrian and Horse-related Activities and Tourism was



referred to Joint Commission on Economic Development.

SCR 38- County and Municipal Land Use Planning was referred to Government

Organization.

SCR 41-Creation of a Joint Mineral Owners Trust and Mineral Conservation Act was

referred to Judiciary.

SCR 43-Controlled Substance Prescription Pain Medication Oxycodone was referred to
LOCHHRA.

SCR 53-Medical Malpractice Insurance was referred to Insurance Availability and Medical
Malpractice Insurance.,

SCR 54-Mandating Insnrance Coverage for Certain Persons in Clinical Trials was referred
to Insurance Availability and Medical Malpractice Insurance.

Resolutions Adopted by the House;

HCR 49-Computerizing Personal Property Tax Records and Payments of Tax for use by the
DMYV was referred to Government Organization.

HCR 52-Truancy Diversion Social Work Program was referred to Education.

HCR 54-Processes for Evaluation Teachers was referred to Education.

HCR 57-Implementation of 911 Cellular Emergency Service was referred to Government
Organization.

HCR 72-Establishment or Enhancement of Retirement Benefits for All Employees of the

Licensed Racing Association was referred to Pensions.

HCR 82-Current Foster Care System was referred to Juvenile Foster Care, Detention and

Placement Task Force.



HCR 86-Fees Dedicated to the Courthouse Facilities Improvement Fund was referred to
Finance.

HCR 92-Managed Timberland and Farmland Classifications for Assessment of Real Property
for Ad Valorem Property Taxation was referred to Forest Management Review Commission.

Resolutions Adopted by the Senate:

SCR 14-Establishment of Residential Community for Senior Citizens was referred to
Government Organization.

SCR 17-Allowing Counties and or Cities to Have Own Taxing Power was referred to
Finance.

SCR 34-Medicaid Aged and Disabled Waiver Program was referred to LOCHHRA.

SCR 37-State and Local Governments Responsibilities in Flood Damage Prevention was
referred to Government Organization.

SCR 42-Proposed Legislation to Enact Clean Elections Act was referred to Judiciary.

SCR 51-Practice Guidelines for Reducing Medical Costs was referred to Insurance
Availability and Medical Malpractice Insurance.

SCR 61-Impact of Administrative and Regulatory Requirements Irnposed by the State on the
Care Home Industry was referred to Select Committee on Nursing Homes.

Also SCR 46 (introduced at the 2002 Regular Session) relating to predatory mortgage
activities in the state was referred to Judiciary.

Created a new Select Committee on Nursing Homes.

Continued the Agriculture and Agri-business Committee.

Continued the Insurance Rate & Forms Issues (Mitchell v. Broadnax) and Medical



o

Malpractice Insurance Committee, but renamed “Insurance Availability and Medical Malpractice
Insurance Committee.”

Continued Education Subcommittee D - Accountability.

Countinued the Parks and Recreation Subcommittee.

Continued the Post Audits Subcommittee.

Continued the Joint Committes on Technology.

Continued the Juvenile Foster Care, Detention and Placement Task Force.

3. nse Reimbursement and Com on,

a. Upon motion by Speaker Kiss, properly seconded and adopted, the Joint Committee
authorized reimbursement of expenses and payment of compensation to the following for attending
regular monthly interirn meetings during the 2002 interim period of authorized commissions,
committees and subcommittees:

-Members of the Legislature serving on various commissions, committees and subcommitiees; and

-Citizens serving on various commissions, commitiess and subcommittees, who are not otherwise
disqualified, and who request expense reimbursement and compensation.

b. Upon motion by Speaker Kiss, properly seconded and adopted, the Joint Committee
authorized reimbursement of expenses and payment of cornpensation during the current fiscal year
to judges of the Court of Claims for days served in excess of the stamtorily required maximum of
100 days.

4, terim M Da

Upon motion by Speaker Kiss, properly seconded and adopted, the next interim dates of May

19 - 21, 2002, were authorized,



5. Department of Health and Human Resources Monthly Repoxts.

Distributed to members of the Committee were the following: Medicaid Report for month
of February 2002; Welfare Reform Report for month of March 2002; and Colin Andcrs;on Center
Report for month of April 2002.

Mr. Paul Nusbaum, Secretary, Department of Health and Human Resources, spoke briefly
and responded to questions.

6. 2002 Interim Studies.

Upon motion by Speaker Kiss, properly seconded and adopted, the Select Committee to

Study Court Facilities (from 2000 interim period) was continued and be responsible for studying all

issues relating to courthouse facilities.

7. Lottery, Unemployment Compensation and Workers’ Compensation Status Reports.

Distributed to members of the Committee were the following: Lotiery Operations report
for month ended February 2002; Unemployment Compensation Trust Fund report for month ended
February 2002; and Workers® Compensation Trust Fund report for month ended January 2002.
Aftached with each of these reports was an analysis prepared by legislative staff.

8. General Revenue Report.

Distributed to members was a report on the status of the state’s general revenue as of March
31, 2002.

9, Public Employees Insurance Agency.

Mr. Tom Susman, Executive Director of the Public Employees Insurance Agency, distributed
the following information: (1) PEIA Balance Sheets February 28, 2002 and 2001, Accrual Basis; (1)

PEIA Monthly Management Report, Total Claims, February 2002, FY 2002; (3) PEIA Monthly



Management Report, Per Capita Claims, February 2002, FY 2002; PEIA Monthly Management

Report, Per Capita Utilization, February 2002, FY 2002; PEIA Monthiy Management Report, Total

Clairns, January 2002, FY 2002; PEIA Monthly Management Report, Per Capita Claims, January

2002, FY 2002; PEIA Monthly Management Report, Per Capita Utilization, Jannary 2002, FY 2002.
Mr. Susman responded to questions from members of the Committee.

The meeting was adjourned.
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WV DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN RESQURCES
BUREAU FOR MEDICAL SERVICES
MEDICAID CASH REPORT

SFY2002
MONTI A ] ACTUALS PROJECTED TOTAL |
- 07/01/01 04/01/02
THRU THRU SFY2002
REVENUE SOURCES 03/31/02 06/30/02
BEG. BAL 7/01/01 117,934,047 117,934,047
MATCHING FUNDS
GENERAL REVENUE 134,652,798 45 854,789 180,507,587
LOTTERY - WAIVER 9,400,000 3,200,000 12,600,000
LOTTERY - TRANSFER 7,800,000 2,500,000 10,300,000
TRUST FUND APPROPRIATION 21,455,897 10,483,033 31,938,930
TRUST FUND BACKLOG 0 0 0
PROVIDER TAX 109,300,000 37,800,000 147,100,000
MCH TRANSFER 1,122,643 977,357 2,100,000
OTHER FUNDS 1,442,333 657,667 2,100,000
TOTAL MATCHING FUNDS 303,107,718 101,472,846 404,580,564
FEDERAL FUNDS 870,763,684 323,886,367 1,194,650,051
TOTAL REVENUE SOURCES | $1,173,871,402 | | 3425 550013 || | 1'1,599.230,615H

TOTAL EXPENDITURES:

FROVIDER PAYMENTS

[T §1.162,270,429 | |

taRsasneia ]| [ 91.552,141,248 |

|1 [ $37.089,366 &3]

e |

| (545,310,844 o0)f

52

31 )/352283 |

SUB - TOTAL I 511,600,972 94] [

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 03/31/02 | i

BALANCE f $11 800 0F2as | |
17 May 02

11 56 45 AM
YALOTUSAMED2000\SUMMARY
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WY DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN RESOURCES

BUREAU FOR MEDICAL SERVICES

MEDICAL SERVICES TRUST FUND AND INTEREST REPORT
FOR THE MONTH OF MARCH 2002

SFY 2002
TRANSFER I DEPQOSIT INTEREST & TRUST FUND
DATE ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION (WITHDRAWAL) DSH DEPOSITS BALANCE
PRINCIPAL | (WITHDRAWAL)

07/01/01 DERPOSIT BEG BAL 5,358,862 34 5,358,862 34
07/01/01 WITHDRAWAL Eligibility Expansion (106,171.34) 5,252,691 00
07/01/01 WITHDRAWAL Facilities DSH Match (1,455,834 00) 3,756,857 00
07/01/01 WITHDRAWAL Private DSH Backlog (323,846 00) 3473011 00
07/31/01 INTEREST Rate AT 4 92 <%, 17,08017 3,490,081 17
08/01/C1 DEPOSIT Facilities DSH Payment 9,577,580 50 13,067,671 67
08/01/01 WITHDRAWAL Facilities DSH Maich (1,425,436 00) 11,642,235 67
0B/31/01 INTEREST Rate AT 4 2 7, 2643536 | 11.66_EL6_71 03
05/01/01 WITHDRAWAL Private DSH Backlog | (3,290,517 00) 8,377,754 03
09/01/01 DEPOSIT DSH Cost Settlement 284,388 00 8,662,142 03
09/30/01 INTEREST Rate AT 4.2 =, 33,171 86 8,695,313 8BS
10/01/01 DEPOSIT Special Appropriation | 366,667 00 5,061,980 B9
10/31/01 INTEREST Rate AT 31 % 23,117 83 9,085,098 72
11/01/0] WITHDRAWAL Facilities DSH Match (1,317,248 60) 7,767,850 12
11/01/01 WITHDRAWAL Private DSH Backlog (271,728 00) 7,496,122 12
11/01/01 DEPOSIT Special Appropriation 366,667 00 7,862,789 12
11/36/01 INTEREST Rate AT 31 9%, 21,090 58 7,883,873 70
12/01/01 DEPOSIT | Facilities DSH Payment | 5,326,517 50 | 13,210,387 20
12/01/01 WITHDRAWAL Match Drop (5,236,000 00) | 7,874,357 20
12/01/01 DEPGOSIT Special Appropriation 366,667 00 8,341,064 20
12/01/01 WITHDRAWAL Private DSH Backiog (3,393,717 0O) 4,947,347 20
12/31/01 INTEREST Rate AT 31 <, 12577 12 4,959 924 32
01/01702 DEPOSIT Special Appropriation 600,000 00 5,559,024 32
01/01/02 DEPOSIT Facilities DSH Payment 5,678,041 50 11,237,965 82
01/01/02 WITHDRAWAL Facllities DSH Match (1,404,180 00) | 9,833,785 82
01/01/02 WITHDRAWAL Match Drop (2,618,000 00) 7,215,785 82
01/01/02 WITHDRAWAL Special Appropriation {1 00} 7,215,784 82

01/31/02 INTEREST Rate AT 2 7 o, | 12,345 24 7,228,130 06
02/01/02 DEPOSIT Special Appropriation 600,000 00 | 7,828,130 06
02/28/02 INTEREST Rate AT 2 6 77, 14 469 83 7,842,599 89
03/01/02 WITHDRAWAL Eligtbility Expansion {385,506 00) 7,437,083 89
03/01/02 DERQSIT Special Appropriation 600,000 0O 8,057,093 89
03/01/02 WITHDRAWAL Private DSH Backlog (227,313 00) 7,829,780 89
03/31/02 INTEREST Rate AT 2.2 % 14,710 30 7.844 491 19
04/01/02 DEPOSIT Special Appropriation 700,000 00 B,544.49] 19

04/01/02 WITHDRAWAL Match Drop (2,618,000 00) 5,926,491 19
04/30/02 INTEREST Rate AT 2 2 77 14,686 26 5,941,177 45

05/01/02 WITHDRAWAL | Facilities DSH Match (963,656 00) | 4,977,521 45
05/01/02 WITHDRAWAL Private DSH Backlog (7,050,079 00 (2,072,557 55)
05/01/02 DEPOSIT Special Appropriation 700,000 00 (1,372,557 55)
05/31/02 INTEREST Rate AT 2 2 o7, 11.14382 | (1,361,41373)
06/01/02 WITHDRAWAL Faciities DSH Paymenz 8,795,290 50 /433,876 77

06/01/02 WITHDRAWAL Hospice (342,975 Q0) 7,090,901 77

06/01/02 WITHDRAWAL Special Appropriation 700,000 00 7,790,901 77
06/30/02 INTEREST Rate AT 2 2 7, 13843 66 7.804 845 43

TOTALS (21,237,052 26) | 2904193769 | 7,804,84543

Page 3
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WV WORKS Caseload
2002
County January | February March April
Barbour (01) 208 208 206 | 207
Berkeley (02) 415 422 | 441 453
Boone (03) 371 388 385 | 371
Braxton (04) 149 153 151 151
Brooke (05) 106 110 107 90
Cabell (06) 705 700 695 | 714
Cathoun (07) 11 107 111 104
Clay (08) 115 109 114] 107
Doddridge (09) 66 66 61 67
Fayette (10) 531 502 498 507
Gilmer (11) 55 55 58 60
Grant (12) 44 40 37 36
Greenbrier (13) 167 169 169 | 161
Hampshire (14) 93 93 07| 100
Hancock (15) 198 194 182 189
Hardy (16) 49 53 48 49
Harrison (17) 625 629 630 | 627
Jackson (18) 143 139 142 145
Jefferson (19) 162 168 174 | 174
Kanawha (20) 1,279 1,278 1202 | 1,248
Lewis (21) 179 185 190 195
Lincoln (22) 349 333 334 | 345
Logan (23) 404 378 388 | 391
Marion (24) 299 295 200 | 295




.
v

County January | February March April
Marshail (25) 297 307 288 293
Mason (26) 266 261 251 248
Mercer (27} 894 905 926 908
Mineral (28) 100 100 100 03
Mingo (29) 574 553 541 525
Monongalia {30) 123 121 120 106
Monroe (31) 82 79 85 93

| Morgan (32) 85 96 03 95
McDowell (33) 864 839 818 806 |
Nicholas (34) 166 168 156 158
Ohio (35) 308 286 283 282
Pendleton (36) 37 32 33 31
Pleasants (37) 49 51 52| 45
Pocahontas (38) 26 27 31 36
Preston (39) 125 125 132 125
Putnam (40) 1698 185 178 170
Raleigh (41) 700 705 713 716
Randolph (42) 113 118 120 128
Ritchie (43) 65 62 65 64
Roane (44) 118 123 132 124
Summers (45} 165 158 174 174 |-
Taylor (48) 98 97 04 87
Tucker (47) 28 26 24 26
Tyler (48) 38 36 35 32
Upshur (49) 316 314 309 302
Wayne (50) 584 552 554 551
Webster (61) 181 182 177 175

2
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County January | February March April

Wetzel (52) 113 112 109 112

Wirt (63) 43 45 46 45

Wood (54) 750 760 785 788

Wyoming (55) 404 391 406 388

Total 14,694 14,578 14,639 | 14,512} .
3
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Characteristics of the Current WV WORKS Caseload

v 4,476 Child Only Cases—parents are notIn the home and chlldren are living with
a relative, or parents are in the home, receive $Sl and are excluded from the WV
WORKS payment.

v/ 581 cases currently receiving WV WORKS received TANF in another state before
moving to West Virginia.

| v 108 cases in which the parents are excluded from the payment because they

were convicted of a drug related felony after August 22, 1996.
v 448 cases receive Medicaid but do not receive Food Stamps.
v 1,321 cases receive Food Stamps but adults do not receive Medicaid.

v/ 1,869 cases receive the MarriageIncentive. The Incentive was increased to $100
monthly effective July 1, 2000.

v 2,239 adults receiving WV WORKS are employed.

4/02
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Supportive Services Payments: Types and Amounts
April 2002

Type

Current WV
WORKS

Former WV
WORKS

Number of
Payments

Average
Payment

Total Amount

Clothing: Work or dress clothing when there s a verified
offer of employment or short term training.  $600 year

$118.,389

$41,240

1,033

$155

$150,620

Collateral: ltems Include grooming expenses, test fees
and other expenses related to employment. 3300 ysar

$20,152

$3,680

264

$90

$23,741

Car Repalr. For personally owned vehicles; Includes
tires, muffiers, or brakes necessary to pass state
Inspection, state Inspection stickers, license plates,
vehlcle insurance, and driver's education classes. Funds
cannot ba used to purchase a vehicle. §7,500 lifetime

$245,268

$61,877

586

$524

$307,163

Contract Training: A tralning contract may be written
when treining is not available on a no-cost basis and the
fralning will be provided to an individual or a group of
participants. There Is an expectation that the Individuals
will ba able to find employment when they successfully
complete the tralning courss. $5,000 year

$2,708

$0

11

3246

$2,708

Commerclal Driver's License: Payment to purchase
license. 2600 lifetime

$096

3260

$1,040

Driver/Chauffeurs License: Does not include payment
for test requlred due to traffic violations or classes
required for DUI convictions. $120 Ilifetirne

$132

$0

$19

$132

Employer Incentive: Agreements between employers
and local DHHR offices placing WV WORKS recipients
In jobs. Employers are reimbursed %z of the employea’s
wages for the first 200-600 work heurs under these
contracts.

$1,840

$265

$351

$2,105

Professional License: When the cost of the license is
not pald by the employer or is not included In the cost of
a training course, and obtaining the llcense is part of the
course completion. $600 lifatime

$826

$0

592

$826

Tl L a1, = 2 B - AT ;). =
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Type

Current WV
WORKS

Former WV
WORKS

Number of
Payments

Average
Payment

Total Amount

Relocation: When there is a verified offer of
employment, the famlly can be relocated to a different
state, a different area of the state, or to the same area if
the move reduces trave! time to one hour or less.
$1,500 year

$7.675

$7,800

16

$e67

$15,475

Tools/Equipment: When needed for a verified offer of
employment or for speclalized training. $1,000 year

$8,833

$4,436

37

$350

$13,269

Transportation: Payments are made based on miles
traveled to employment or & work activity when there is 2
cost involved. Publlc transportation is relmbursed at
actual cost.

(2-40 miles-$10 day; 40+ -$16) $400 month limit

$674,637

$284,121

6,216

$154

$058,758

Vehicle Insurance: Payment for vehicle insurance
premium. Does not Include vehicle insurance premium
for vehicles leased through WV WHEELS as vendor is
responsible for payment as part of the lease.

$500 lifetime

$61,975

$13,148

245

$260

$85,123

DUI offenses: Costs related to reinstatement of driver's
llcense which have been revoked due to substance
abuse. Inciudes DUI classes, license relnstatement fees,
new license, Iignition Interiock system. Does not include
fines, freatment programs or tests for drug and alcohol
use. . $500 lifetime

$1,500

$500

$250

$2,000

Total

$1,134,249

$417,020

8,442

$184

$1,561,969




Length of Time on Assistance

+
L]

Number of Months Number of Cases
12 months or less 3,656
13-24 2,823
25-36 1,655
3748 1,004
49-60 487
Total 9,625
Does not include child only cases.
4102
7
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5/10/02

WORKS Closures Due to Expiration of 60 Months

Month Number of Closures
12/01 108
1/02 40
2/02 23
3/02 29
4/02 21
Total 221
8
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Colin Anderson Center Report

May 2002

West Virginia Department of Health
and Human Resources

Paul L. Nusbaum, Secretary




Colin Anderson Center
Summary Report — May 2002

The Colin Anderson Center (Center) was successfully closed on April 3, 1998. The
Department of Health and Human Resources (Department) has completed all
required monitoring for persons who left the Center.

Seventy-eight people were discharged from the Center into community settings in
West Virginia, and one person was discharged from Ruby Memorial Hospital to
Lakin Hospital. The individual who was discharged fo Lakin Hospital expired four
months after admission.

Two people were discharged to out-of-state placements at the request of their legal
representatives. One of those individuals returned to West Virginia and resides at
Pinecrest Hospital at the request of their legal representative.

Twelve people have died (all due to natural causes) since being discharged from the
Center.

Therefore, sixty-six people continue to receive services and supports in West
Virginia communities. Twenty people receive residential services in an ICF/MR
facility. The ICF/MR facilities are between six and eight bed homes. Forty-six
people receive residential services through the Home and Community-Based MR/DD
Waiver Program. Home and Community-Based residential services are between
one and four bed homes.

All those discharged from the Center receive day habilitation services from day
programs, community-based day programs, volunteering, senior centers, supported
employment and competitive employment.

Sixty-six people have had compliance clocks successfully completed. The
compliance clock is the list of services identified prior to discharge by Center staff
and community staff as needed services for the individual. Each compliance clock
service is required to complete eighteen consecutive months of service. Zero
compliance clocks remain active. The Department continues to monitor, on an
individual basis, those who were discharged from the Colin Anderson Center.
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Colin Anderson Center
Summary Report - May 2002
Divislon of Developmental Disabilities
Bureau for Behavioral Health and Health Facllities

Date of Closure: April 3, 1998

Status Total
Number Discharged in Community Settings 78
Number Discharged in Medical Settings 1
Total Number of Individuals Discharged 79
Total Number of Individuals Deceased Since Discharge 12
(all due to natural causes)
Number in ICF/MR Group Homes (6-8 Beds) 20
Number in MR/DD Waiver Residences (1-4 beds) 46
Total Currently in Communlty Settings 66
Number of Individuals with Compliance Clocks* Closed 66
Number of Individuals with Compliance Clocks® Open 0
Total Number of Indlviduals with Compliance Clocks* 66

*A compliance clock is a list of services an individual's treatment team identified prior to
discharge as needed services for the individual. In order for a compliance clock to _be
closed, all of the identified services must be provided for a period of eighteen consscutive

months. Zero compliance clocks remain active.
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Bucdget Dieision
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1900 Kanautea Bled. East

Chardeslon, W 25305-0590
F04-347-4870

MEMORANDUM

To: Joint Committee on Government and Finance
Honorable Senator Tomblin, Senate President
Honorable Delegate Robert Kiss, Speaker of the House

From: Ellen Clark, cPA®V
Director Budget Division
Legislative Auditor's Office

Date: May l6, 2002

Re: Review of West Virginia Lottery Financial Information
As of March 31, 2002. (FY 2002)

We performed an analysis of the Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Retained Earnings for the period ended March 31,2002 from
monthly unaudited financial reports furnished to our office by
the West Virginia Lottery Commission. The results are as
follows:

Lottery Revenues:

Gross lottery revenues are receipts from on-line games, instant
games and video lottery. These gross receipts were 40.89% ABOVE
the preceding July - March of fiscal year 2000-2001. This number
does not include commission and prize deductions. Gross profit
for July-March 2002 was $220,143,000.00; for the previous fiscal
year, July - March 2001 it was $149,234,000.00. Expressed as a
percentage, gross profit is 47.52% higher in 2001-2002 than in
fiscal year 2000-2001.

jhhiébwmﬂ%emm@&wwmmmiamié@wuma



Net Income:

Net income for months of July - March 2002 was $
209,673,000.00; the previous fiscal year it was $135,838,000.00
This is an increase of 54.34%

Operating Transfers to the State of West Virginia:

& total of $ 209,673,000.00 has been accrued to the state of West
Virginia for fiscal year 2001-2002. This is on an accrual basis
and may not correspond to the actual cash transfers made during
the same time period. { Amounts owed to the different accounts
according to the Lottery Act are calculated monthly and accrued
to the state; actual cash transfers are cften made based upon

actual cash flow needs of the day-to-day operation of the -
lottery.)

A schedule of cash transfers folliows:

Bureau of Senior Services

$ 38,361,000.00

Department of Education

$ 34,737,000.00

FEducational Broadcasting
Authority

2,600,000.00

Library Commission

9,752,000.00

Higher Education-Central
OQffice

3%9,679,000.00

Tourism

$ 12,870,000.00

Department of Natural
Resources

6, 503,000.00

Division of Culture and
History

7.531,000.00

Department of Education and
Arts

$ 7,652,000.00

State Building Commission

$ 9,000,000.00

School Bullding Authority

$ 16,200, 000.00

SUBRTOTATL, BUDGETARY, TRANSFERS

$184,885,000.00




Excagss lottery Fund General Revenua

Veterans Instant Ticket Fund

9,331,000.00

812,000.00

VIDEC LOTTERY TRANSFERS:

Tourism Promotion Fund

$12,511,000.00

Veterans Memorial Archives

$100,000.00

John F. “Jack” Bennett Fund

$20,000.00

Department of Administration

54,330,000.00

SUBTOTAL VIDEO LOTTERY
TRANSFERS :

$16,961,000.00

TOTAL TRANSFERS OF CASH

*$211,989,000.00

* CASH BASIS

Actual accrual based accounting FY 2002: $209,673,000.00.




P.O. BOX 2067 PHONE: 301-558-0500
CHARLESTON, WV 25327 FAX: 304-558-3321
Bob Wise John C. Musgrave
Governor Director
MEMORANDUM B
TO: Joint Committee on Governme d Finance &E @ u S IL ﬂ F ﬂ W
FROM: John C. Musgrave, Direct VA APR 19 2002
RE: Monthly Report on Lo ions
Month Ending March 31, 2002 MANAGER

DATE:  April 19,2002
This report of the Lottery operations is provided pursuant to the State Lottery Act.

Financial statements of the Lottery for the month ending March 31, 2002 are attached. Lottery revenue, which
includes on-line, instant and video lottery sales, was $81,271,793 for the month of March.

Transfers of lottery revenue totaling $8,085,874 were made for the month of March to the designated state
agencies per House Bill 101 and the Racetrack Video Lottery Act (§29-22A-10). The amount transferred to each
agency is shown in Note 9 on page 13 of the attached financial statements.

'The numbser of active lottery retailers as of March 31, 2002, was 1622.

A listing of the names and amounts of prize winners has been provided to the Clerk of the Senate, the Clerk of the
House and Legislative Services.

If any member of the Committee has questions concerning the Lottery, please call me. Also if any members of the
Legislature wish to visit the Lottery offices, I would be pleased to show them our facilities and discuss the Lottery
with them.

JCMjt
Attachment

pc: Honorable Bob Wise
Brian Kastick, Cabinet Secretary - Tax & Revenue
John Perdue, Treasurer
Glen B. Gainer III, Auditor
Members of the West Virginia Lottery Commission

wivivwviottery.com
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WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN RETAINED EARNINGS

FOR THE NINE, MONTH PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2042

(Expressed in Thousands)
CURRENT MONTH YEAR TO DATE
2002 2001 2002 2001
Lottery reventes
On-line games 7,180 % 7395 $ 91,989 $ 63,698
Instant games 8,503 7,290 68,264 54,931
Racetrack video lottery 56,933 41,835 431,795 312,745
Limited video Jottery 8,656 - 15,698 -
81272 56,520 607,746 431,374
Direct Costs
Commissions
On-line games 449 4a2 5,751 3,983
Instant games 538 456 4,268 3,433
Racetmck video lottery 36,073 21,28 273,586 204,391
Limited video lottery 5,938 - 10,770 -
42998 28,146 294,375 211,807
Prizes
On-line prizes 3,628 3,575 45,484 31,702
Instant prizes 5,793 5017 46,324 37,462
9,421 8,592 51,308 69,164
Ticket Costs 179 152 1,420 1,169
Total Direct Costs 52,598 36.890 387,603 282,140
Gross profit 28,674 19,630 220,143 149,234
Operating expenses
Vendar fees and costs 593 585 6331 4,751
Advertising and promoticns 666 487 6,090 4910
Wages and related benefits 310 214 2,429 1,773
Telecommunications 225 423 2,623 2,245
Contractual and professional 46 347 1,582 1,192
Rental 45 13 426 278
Depreciation and amortization 63 46 509 359
Other general expenses 76 57 650 412
2,364 2,192 20,640 15,920
Other Operating Incoms 999 78 9,160 524
Operating Income 27,309 17,516 208,663 133.838
Nonoperaling income{expense)
Investment income 92 428 1,360 2412
Interest expense 37 (43 (350 (400)
55 385 1,010 2,012
Income before nonoperating distributions 27,364 11,901 209,673 135,850
Nonoperating distributions to the Smte of West Virginia 27,364 17,901 209,673 135,850
Net income - - - -
Reinined eamings, beginning of period 250 250 250 250
Retained earnings, end of pedod 250 $ 250 $ 250 3 250

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial statements.
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WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE NINE MONTH PERIOD ENDED MARCH 31, 2002
(Expressed in Thousands)
2002 2001
Cash received from customers $ 610,283 $ 428,648
Cash paid to employees (2,431) 1, 777)
Cash paid to suppliers {21,312) .,
Other operating cash payments (387,465) (282,129)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities 199,075 136,965
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Transfers to the State of West Virginia (211,989) (142,03%)
Deferred jackpot prize obligations and related interest paid (1,041) {1,041)
Cash used in noncapital financing activities {213,030) (143,074)
Cash flows from capital and related financing acitivities
Purchase of fixed assets (699) (2,133)
Cash flows from investing activities
Maturities of investments held in, trust 1,251 1,251
Investment earnings received 1,468 1,830
Cash provided by investing activities 2,719 3,081
Increase (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (11,935) (5,161)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - beginning of period 101,966 62,630
Cash and Cash Equivalents - end of period $ 20,031 $ 57,469

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial stalements,



WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
BALANCE SHEETS
(Expressed in Thousands)
March 31, June 30,
2002 2001
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 90,031 $ 101,966
Accounts receivable 14,740 8,118
Ticket Inventory 514 692
Other assets 826 1,169
Total current assets 106,111 111,945
Leasehold improvements and equipment 4,912 4,213
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (2,817) (2,308)
2,095 1,905
Investments held in trust 5,598 6,568
Total assets $ 113804 § 120418
LIABILITIES AND FUND EQUITY
Cumrent liabilities
Accrued nonoperating distributions fo the
State of West Virginia $ 71,449 § 86,972
Estimated prize claims 12,088 9,907
Accounts payable 2,163 1,532
Other accrued liabilities 22,526 15,737
Total current liabilities 108,226 114,148
Deferred jackpot prize obligations 5,328 6,020
Fund equity
Retained earnings 250 250
Total liabilities and fund equity $__ 113,804 $_ 120,418

The accompanying nofes are an integral
part of these financial statemenits.
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WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1. LEGISLATIVE ENACTMENT

The West Virginia Lottery (Lottery) was established by the State Lottery Act (Act) passed April 13,
1985, which created a special fund in the State Treasury designated as the “State Lottery Fund,” a
component unit of the State of West Virginia. The purpose of the Act was to establish and implement a
state-operated lottery under the supervision of a state lottery commission (Commission) and a director.
The Commission, consisting of seven members, and the Director are appointed by the Governor. Under
the Act, the Commission has certain powers and the duty to establish rules for conducting games, to
select the type and number of gaming systems or games and to enter into contracts and agreements, and
to do all acts necessary or incidental to the performance of its duties and exercise of its power and duty
to operate the Lottery in a highly efficient manner. The Act provides that 2 minimum annual average of

- 45 percent of the gross amount received from each lottery shall be allocated for prizes and provides for

certain limitations on expenses necessary for operation and administration of the Lottery, To the extent
available, remaining net profits are to be transferred to the State of West Virginia. As the State is able to
impose its will over the Lottery, the Lottery is considered a component uxnit of the State and its financial
statements are discretely presented in the comprehensive annual financial report of the State.

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A suminary of the significant accounting policies of the Lotiery is presented below. These policies were
applied on a basis consistent with that of the preceding year.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION - The West Virginia Lottery is a component unit of the State of West
Virginia, and is accounted for as a proprietary type enterprise fund. In accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, the financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting
which requires recognition of revenue when earned and expenses when incurred. As permitted by
Govermnmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 20, “Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other Governmental Enfities that Use Proprietary Fund
Accounting,” the Lottery has elected not to adopt Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
statements and interpretations issued after November 30, 1989 unless the GASB specifically adopts such
FASB statemenlts or interpretations.

USE OF ESTIMATES ~ The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make certain
estimates and develop assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
related notes to financial statements. Actual results could differ from management’s estimates.

LOTTERY GAME OPERATIONS — The West Virginia Lottery derives its revenues from three basic types
of lottery games: instant, on-line, and video type games. The Lottery develops multiple game themes
and prize structures to comply with its enabling legislation, including aggregate annual minimum prize
provisions. Retailers and bonded agents comprised principally of grocery and convenience stores serve
as the primary distribution channel for instant and on-line lottery sales to the general public.

Revenue from instant games is recognized when game tickets are sold to the retailers, and the related
prize expense is recorded based on the specific game prize structure. Instant ticket sales and related
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WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

prizes do not include the value of free plays issued for the purpose of increasing the odds of winning a
prize.

Sales of on-line lottery tickets are made by licensed agents to the public with the use of computerized
terminals. On-line games include POWERBALL, a multi-state “jackpot” game, ROLLDOWN, a multi-
state “lotto” game, Cash25 “lotto” game, Daily 3 and 4 “numbers” games, and Travel, a daily “keno”
game. Revenue is recognized when the agent sells the tickets to the public. Prize expense is recognized
on the basis of actual drawing results.

Commissions are paid to instant game retailers and on-line agents at the rate of six and one quarter
percent of gross sales. A portion of the commission not to exceed one and one quarter percent of gross
sales may be paid from unclaimed prize moneys. The amount paid from unclaimed prize moneys is
credited against prize costs. In addition, retailers and agents are paid limited bonus incentives that
include prize shares on winning tickets they sold and a ticket cashing bonus on winning tickets they
cash. On a weekly basis, retailers and agents must remit amounts due to the Lottery. Retailers may not
be able to order additional instant tickets if payment has not been made for the previous billing period,
while an agent’s on-line terminal may be rendered inactive if payment is not received each week. No
one retailer or agent accounts for a significant amount of the Lottery’s sales or accounts receivable.
Historically credit losses have been nominal and no allowance for doubtful accounts receivable is
considered necessary.

Racetrack video lottery is a self-activated video version of lottery games. The keyboard operated games
allow a player to place bets for the chance to be awarded credits which can either be redeemed for cash
or be replayed as additional bets. The coin operated games allow a player to use coins or tokens to place
bets for the chance to receive coin or token awards which may be redeemed for cash or used for replay
in the coin operated games. The video lottery games’ prize structures are designed to award prizes, or
credits, at a stipulated rate of total bets played, and prize expense is netted against total video credits
played. The Lottery recogmizes as video lottery revenue “gross terminal income” equivalent to all
wagers, net of related prizes, Amounts required by statute to be paid to the private and local government
entities are reported as commissions.

Racetrack video lottery legislation has established specific requirements for video lottery and imposed
certain restrictions limiting the licensing for operation of video loftery games to horse and dog
racetracks in West Virginia, subject 10 local county elections permitting the same. The legislation
further stipulates the distribution of revenues from video lottery games, and requires any licensed
racetrack to be responsible for acquiring the necessary equipment and bearing the risk associated with
the costs of operating and marketing the games.

The Lottery has contracted with a private vendor 1o manufacture, distribute and provide data processing
support for instant and on-line lottery games. Under the terms of the agreement the Lottery pays a
percentage of gross revenues for the processing and maintenance of the games.



WEST YIRGINIA LOTTERY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ~ Cash and cash equivalents consist of interest-eamning deposits with
the West Virginia Investment Management Board (IMB) and are recorded at fair value.

INVENTORY — Inventory consists of instant game tickets available for sale to approved Lottery retailers
and are carried at cost,

OTHER ASSETS — Other assets consist primarily of deposits restricted for payment of certain Multi-State
Lottery Association activities, and promotional items for which re-sale is not intended.

LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS AND EQUIPMENT - The Lottery leases, under a cancelable operating
lease, its office and warchouse facilities. A portion of these facilities are subleased to the Lottery’s
game vendors. The Lottery also leases various office equipment under agreements considered to be
cancelable operating leases. Rental expense for the nine months ended March 31, 2002 and March 31,
2001 approximated $425,863 and $277,523, respectively. Sublease rental income for the nine months
ended March 31, 2002 and March 31, 2001 approximated $77,796 and $77,631, respectively.

Leasehold improvements and purchased equipment, comprised principally of office furnishings and
equipment necessary to administer lottery games, are carried at cost. Depreciation is computed by the
straight-line method using three to ten year lives.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES — The Lottery has accrued $404,000 and $351,000 for fiscal years 2001 and
2000, respectively, for estimated obligations that may arise in connection with compensated absences
for vacation and sick leave at the current rate of employee pay. Employees fully vest in all earned but
unused vacation. In accordance with State personnel policies, employees vest in unused sick leave only
upon retirement, at which time such unused leave can be converted into employer paid preroiums for
post-retirement health care coverage or additional periods of credited service for purposes of
determining retirement benefits.

NOTE 3. ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT

In Jupe 1999, the GASB issued Statement No. 34, “Basic Financial Statements — and Management’s
Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments”. This statement establishes financial
reporting standards for state and local governments by revising the basic financial statement
requirements and also requiring a management’s discussion and analysis to introduce the basic financial
statements and to provide an analytical overview of the entity’s financial activities. The Lottery intends
to adopt the provisions of this statement for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2002, which is consistent
with the State of West Virginia's planned adoption period. Because the Lottery is an enterprise fund, the
adoption of GASB Statement No. 34 is not expected to have a material effect on the financial
statements.



WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4. LEGISLATIVE ENACTMENT

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2001 the West Virginia Legislature approved House Bill 102,
which included the Limited Video Lottery Act. Under this bill, up to 9,000 video lotiery terminals will
be placed in limited licensed retailer areas restricted for adult amusement. These licensed retailers must
hold a qualifying permit for the sale on premises of alcohol or non-intoxicating beer. The Lottery has
been charged with the administration, monitoring and regulation of these machines. The addition of
these responsibilities in future years is expected to generate a substantial increase in video lottery
revenues and related expenses, including commission, personnel and administrative.

House Bill 102 also contains language that changes, for fiscal years beginning on or after July 1, 2001,
the State’s share of racetrack video lottery revenue as well as the distribution percentage paid to
racetracks and one other private entity associated with the racing industry (See Note 7) after the net
terminal income benchmark amount for fiscal year ending June 30, 2001 has been met.

NOTE 5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

A summary of the amount on deposit with the West Virginia Investment Management Board (IMB)
follows (in thousands):

March 31, 2002 une 30, 2001
Amount on deposit with the IMB $90.031 $101,966

The deposits with the IMB are part of the State of West Virginia’s consolidated investment cash
liquidity pool and are not separately identifiable as to specific types of securities. Investment income is
pro-rated to the Lottery at rates specified by the IMB based on the balance of the deposits maintained
in relation to the total deposits of all state agencies participating in the pool. Such funds are available to
the Lottery with overnight notice.

NOTE 6. PARTICIPATION IN THE MULTI-STATE LOTTERY

The Lottery is a member of the Multi-State Lottery (MUSL), which operates the semi-weekly
POWERBALL jackpot lotto game and the three day a week ROLLDOWN game, on behalf of
participating state lotteries. Each MUSL member sells game tickets through its agents and makes weekly
wire transfers to the MUSL in an amount equivalent to the total prize pool less the amount of prizes won
in each state. Lesser prizes are paid directly to the winners by each member lottery. The prize pool for
POWERBALL, and ROLLDOWN is 50% of each drawing period’s sales, with minimum jackpot levels.

Revenues derived from the Lottery’s participation in the MUSL POWERBALL jackpot game for the
month and year-to-date periods ended March 31, 2002 were $3,825,873 and $64,949,219 whﬂe related
prize costs for the same periods were $1,933,866 and $32,437,730.
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WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6. PARTICIPATION IN THE MULTI-STATE LOTTERY (continued)

Revenues derived from the Lottery’s participation in the ROLLDOWN game for the month and year-to-
date periods ended March 31, 2002 were $55,768 and $619,985 while related prize costs for the same
periods were $31,743 and $309,244.

MUSL places 2% of each POWERBALL drawing period’s sales in separate prize reserve funds that
serve as a contingency reserve to protect the respective MUSL Product Groups from unforeseen prize
liabilities. Currently, the MUSL Board of Directors has placed a 3$52,000,000 limit on the
POWERBALL prize reserve fund. These funds can only be used at the discretion of the respective
MUSL Product Group. Once the prize reserve funds exceed the designated limit, the excess becomes
part of that particular prize pool. Prize reserve fund monies are refundable to MUSL Product Group
members if the MUSL disbands ar, after one year, if a member leaves the MUSL. At March 31, 2002
the POWERBALL prize reserve funds had a balance of $77,000,000 of which the Lottery’s share was

$2,979,140. The Lottery has charged amounts placed into the prize reserve funds to prize costs as the
related sales have occurred.

NOTE 7. RACETRACK VIDEO LOTTERY

The Racetrack Video Lottery legislation stipulates that sixty-six percent (66%) of racetrack video lottery
revenues, net of prizes (gross terminal income) and lottery administrative costs (such costs limited to 4%
of revenues), shall be allocated, in lieu of commissions, to: the racetracks (47%); other private entities
associated with the racing industry (17%); and the local county governments (2%). The remaining
income (34% of gross terminal revenues less administrative costs} from racetrack video lottery shall be
made available for transfers to the State as specified in the Racetrack Video Lottery Act or subsequent
State budget, as described in the Note 8 titled “Nonoperating Distributions to the State of West
Yirginia."

The Racetrack Video Lottery Act was amended in 1999 and requires for fiscal years beginning July I,
1999 the local county government share (2%) be split S0-50 with incorporated municipalities for certain
tracks after the effected tracks have met their fiscal year 1999 net terminal revenue benchmark.

The Racetrack Video Lottery Act was further also amended in 2001 and requires for fiscal years
beginning on or after July 1, 2001 that each tracks share be reduced to 42% and the regular purse fund to
8% after each tracks net terminal revenue has reached the fiscal year 2001 net terminal revenue
benchmark. In addition, after the fiscal year 2001 benchmark is met, the 4% for administrative costs is to
be transferred to the excess lottery revenue fund; a 10% surcharge is deducted (38% will be transferred
to the state excess lottery revenue fund and 42% will be held by the Lottery in a separate capital
reinvestment fund) from gross terminal revenue. Amounts from the capital reinvestment fimd may be
distributed to each racetrack if qualifying expenditures are made within the statutory timeframe;
otherwise amounts accumulated in the fund revert to the state excess lottery revenue fund. A summary
of racetrack video lottery revenues for the month ended March 31, 2002 and year-to-date follows (in
thousands):
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WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 7. RACETRACK VIDEO LOTTERY (continued)

Curent  Month Year- to -Date

2002 2001 2002 2001
Total credits played $661,200 $493,297 $5,042,282 $3,668,193
Credits (prizes) won (604,276) (451,462) (4,610,487) (3,355,448)
Gross terminal income $56,933 $41,835 $431,795 $312,745
Adrministrative costs (1,992) (581) (16,987) ° (3.062)
Excess Administrative costs (285) - (285) -
Net Terminal Income $54,656 $41,254 $414,523 $309,683
Less distribution to agents (36,073) (27.228) (273,586) (204,391)
Racetrack video lottery revenues $18,583 $14,026 $140,937 3105292

A summary of video lottery revenues accrued or deferred for certain state funds to conform with the
legislation follows (in thousands):

March 3£, 2002 Year-to

Lottery Fund $16,396 $124,356
Tourism Promotion Fund 1,640 12,436
Velerans Memorial Archives - 100
John F."Jack™ Bennett Fund - 20
Department of Administration 547 4,025

Total transfers $18,583 $140,937

NOTE 8. LIMITED VIDEO LOTTERY

The Limited Video Lottery legislation stipulates that two percent (2%) of gross terminal income be
deposited into the state lottery fund for administrative costs. Then, thirty percent (30%) of gross profits
are 0 be transferred to the excess lottery fund. The remaining 70% of gross profit is paid to retailers
and/or operators as prescribed in the Act, these amounts are recorded as limited video lottery
commissions in the financial statements. A summary of limited video lottery revenues for the month
ended March 31, 2002 and year-to-date follows (in thousands):
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WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8. LIMITED VIDEO LOTTERY (continued)

Current Month Yesr-to-Date

Total credits played 93,312 $163,246
Credizs (prizes) won (84,657) (147,548)
Gross terminal income $8,655 $15,698
Administrative costs (173) (314)
Gross Profit $8,482 $15,384
Comunissions (5,938) (10,770)
Limited video lottery revenues $2,544 $4,614

NOTE 9. NONOPERATING DISTRIBUTIONS TO THE STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA

As required under its enabling legislation, retained eamnings of the Lottery may not exceed $250,000.
Therefore, the Lottery periodically transfers surplus funds, exclusive of amounts derived from racetrack
video lottery, to the State of West Virginia in accordance with the legislation. For the year ending June
30, 2002 the State Legislature budgeted $186,562,158 of estimated profits of the Lottery for
distributions to designated special revenue accounts of the State of West Virginia. The enabling
legislation specifies that required payments to the West Virginia State Building Commission and School
Building Authority for debt service have priority for payment in instances when estimated profits are not
sufficient to provide for payment of all budgeted distributions. During the month ended March 31, 2002
the Lottery made such distributions and accrued additional distributions of $25,177,653. The Lottery
does not have a legally adopted annual budget.

Since the enactment of the Racetrack Video Lottery Act, the Lottery is also statutorily required to
distribute income from racetrack video lottery operations as described in Note 7. As of March 31,
2002 the Lottery accrued additional distributions relating to racetrack video lottery operations of
$526,102.

The Racetrack Video Lottery Act stipulates that video lottery revenue will be distributed as follows:
Lottery Fund distributions as specified in the State budget (30%); Tourism Promotion Fund (3%); and
the Veterans Memorial Fund, the Veterans Memorial Archives, the John F. “Jack” Bennett Fund, or the
Department of Administration (1%). A summary of the cash distributions made to certain state agencies
to conform with the legislation follows (in thousands):
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WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9. NONOPERATING DISTRIBUTIONS TO THE STATE OF WEST VIRGINIA

(continued)

BUDGETARY DISTRIBUTIONS

Lottery Fund:
Bureau of Senior Services

Department of Education
Educational Broadcasting Authority
Library Commission
Higher Education-Central Office
Tourism
Natural Resources
Division of Culture & History
Department of Education & Arts
Building Commission
School Building Authority

Total Lottery Fund

Excess Lottery Fund;
General Revenue Fund
Total Excess Lottery Fund

Total Budgetary distributions:
Veterans Instant Ticket Fund

Racetrack Video Lottery distributions:
Tourism Promotion Fund
Veterans Memorial Archives
John F. “Jack” Bennett Fund
Department of Administration

Total
Total nonoperating distributions to the
State of West Virginia (cash basis)

Accrued nonoperating distributions, beginning
Accrued nonoperating distributions, end

Total nonoperating distributions to the State of
West Virginia

March 31, 2002

$

Year-to-Date

$38.361
34,737
2,600
9,752
39.679
12.870
6.503
7,531
7.652
0.000
16.200

3,282

$184,885

0,331

$3,282

$9,331

$6,082

$194,216

77

1,445

482

$812

12,511
100

20
4,330

1,927

16,961

8,086

(65,378)
84,656

211,989

(86,972)
84,656

$27,364

$209,673

-
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WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 10. DEFERRED JACKPOT OBLIGATIONS AND INVESTMENTS HELD IN TRUST

Prior to becoming a member of the Multi-State Lottery in 1988, the prize stucture of certain games
operated solely by the Lottery included jackpot prizes. The Lottery, at its discretion, could choose to
award such prizes in the form of either a Iump sum payment or in equal installments over a period of 10
or 20 years, through March 31, 2002, the Lottery has awarded twenty-one deferred jackpot prizes
totaling approximately $28,868,786. Deferred prize awards were recognized as prize liabilities
equivalent to the present value of future prize payments discounted at interest rates for government
securities in effect on the date prizes were won. The imputed interest portion of the deferred prize
awards is calculated using the effective interest method at rates ranging from 7.11% to 9.13%. A
summary of the present value of the remaining obligations for deferred jackpot prize awards follows (in
thousands:

March 31, 2002 ne 30, 2001
Present value of deferred prize award obligations:
Discounted obligations outstanding $5,112 $5,784
Imputed interest accrued _ 216 236
Total Deferred Jackpot Prize Award Obligations $5.328 $6.020

The Lottery has purchased long-term investments consisting principally of zero coupon government
securities to fund deferred jackpot prize award obligations. Such investments are maintained in a
separate trust fund administered by the West Virginia Investment Management Board on behalf of the
Lottery and the jackpot prize winners, with investment maturities approximating deferred prize
obligation installment dates. Investments are carried at fair value determined by quoted market prices
for the specific obligation or for similar obligations. Changes in fair value are included as part of
investment income. In accordance with Statement No. 3 of the Government Accounting Standards
Board, these investments are classified as to level of risk in Category 1, which includes investments that
are insured or registered, or for which the securities are held by the State or its agent in the State’s name.

NOTE 11. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

All full-time Lottery employees are eligible to participate in the State of West Virginia Public
Employees' Retirement System (PERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement
system. The PERS is one of several plans administered by the West Virginia Consolidated Public
Retirement (CPRB) under the direction of its Board of Trustees, which consists of the Govermnor, State
Auditor, State Treasurer, Secretary of the Department of Administration, and nine members appointed
by the Governor. CPRB prepares separately issued financial statements covering all retirement systerms
it administers, which can be obtained from Consolidated Public Retirement Board, Building 5, Room
1000, State Capitol Complex, Charleston, West Virginia 25305-0720.
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WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 11. RETIREMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Employees who retire at or after age sixty with five or more years of contributory service or who retire
at or after age fifty-five and have completed twenty-five years of credited sexvice are eligible for
retirement benefits as established by state statute. Retirement benefits are payable monthly for life, in
the form of a straight-line annuity equal to two percent of the employee’s final average salary,
muitiplied by the number of years of the employee’s credited service at the time of retirement.

Covered employees are required to contribute 4.5% of their salary to the PERS. The Lottery is required
to contribute 9.5% of covered employees® salaries to the PERS. The required employee and employer
contribution percentages have been established and changed from time to time by action of the State
Legislature. The required contributions are actuarially determined; however actuarial valuations are
performed to assist the Legislature in determining appropriate values. The Lottery and employees
contributions, for the period ending March 31, 2002 are as follows (in thousands} :

March 31, 2002 Year-to Date
Lottery contributions (2.5%) $21 $171
Employee contributions (4.5%) 10 82
Total contributions $31 $253

NOTE 12. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Lottery is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, or damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The Lottery participates in
several risk management programs administered by the State of West Virginia. Each of these risk pools
have issued separate audited financial reports on its operations. Those reports include the required
supplementary information concerning the reconciliation of claims liabilities by type of contract and ten-
year claim development information. Complete financial statements of the individual insurance
enterprise funds can be obtained directly from their respective administrative offices.

WORKERS’ COMPENSATION FUND (WCF)

West Virginia operates an exclusive state-managed Workers’ Compensation Insurance Fund (WCE),
which means that private insurance companies cannot offer coverage to employers. In accordance with
Chapter 23 of the Workers' Compensation Law (the Law), generally, every employer who has a payroll
must have coverage except for employers in the agricultural industry with five or fewer employess,
volunteer organizations, domestic workers and employers qualifying for territorial coverage. WCF’s
general objective is to provide a prompt and equitable system for compensation for injury sustained in
the course of and growing out of employment. West Virginia Code §21A-3 established the
Compensation Programs Performance Council (the Performance Council) to oversee the unemployment
compensation system and the workers® compensation system. The Performance Council is responsible
for recommending legislation and establishing regulations designed to ensure the effective
administration and financial viability of WCF; approval of base premium rates and analyzing
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WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 12. RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

opportunities for internal operational improvements. The WCF risk pool retains all risk related to the
compensation of injured employees under the program.

PUBLIC EMPLOYEES’ INSURANCE AGENCY (PEIA)

The Lottery participates in the Public Employees® Insurance Agency which provides an employee
benefit insurance program to employees. PEIA was established by the State of West Virginia for State
agencies, institutions of higher educations, Boards of Education and component units of the State. In
addition, local governmental entities and certain charitable and public service organizations may request
to be covered by PEIA. PEIA provides a base employee benefit insurance program which includes
hospital, surgical, major medical, prescription drug and basic life and accidental death, Underwriting
and rate setting policies are established by PEIA. The cost of all coverage as determined by PEIA shall
be paid by the participants. Premiums are established by PEIA and are paid monthly, and are dependent
upon, among other things, coverage required, number of dependents, state vs. non state employees and
active employees vs. retired employees. Coverage under these programs is limited to $1 million lifetime
for health and $10,000 of life insurance coverage.

The PEIA. risk pool retains all risks for the health and prescription features of its indemnity plan. PEIA
has fully transferred the risks of coverage to the Managed Care Organization (MCO) Plan to the plan
provider, and has transferred the risks of the life insurance coverage to a third party insurer. PEIA
presently charges equivalent premiums for participants in either the indemnity plan or the MCO Plan.
Altogether, PEIA insures approximately 205,000 individuals, including participants and dependents.

BOARD OF RISK AND INSURANCE MANAGEMENT (BRIM)

The Lottery participates in the West Virginia Board of Risk and Insurance Management (BRIM), a
common risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for all
State agencies, component units, and other local governmental agencies who wish to participate. The
Lottery pays an annual premium to BRIM for its general insurance coverage. Fund underwriting and
rate setting policies are established by BRIM. The cost of all coverage as determined by BRIM shall be
paid by the participants. The BRIM risk pool retains the risk of the first §1 million per property event
and purchases excess insurance on losses above that level. Excess coverage, through an outside insurer,
under this program is limited to $200 million per event, subject to limits on certain property. BRIM has
$1 million per occurrence coverage maximum on all third-party liability claims.

NOTE 13. SUBSEQUENT EVENT

The Lottery was named, among other parties, in a civil action filed on July 19, 2001, whereby a request
for a preliminary injunction was made by a group of plaintiffs which requested the Lottery discontinue
all video lottery operations as & result of the passage of House Bill 102, which included the Limited
Video Lottery Act (see Note 4), which was enacted and became effective April 21, 2001. The United
States District Court of Southern West Virginia, by order dated August 31, 2001, dismissed the case for
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WEST VIRGINIA LOTTERY
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 13. SUBSEQUENT EVENT (continued)
lack of jurisdiction. On September 24, 2001, the plaintiffs appealed this order in the United States Court

of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit, The financial statements of the Lottery have not been adjusted for the
effect of this matter, if any, as the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome is not determinable.

Q
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WEST VIRGINIA LEGISLATURE

Office of the Legislalive Rudtlor
Budget Doision
Buctldireg 1, Room 332-Ythesé Vimg
1900 Kanawha Rlod. Last
Gharleston, WU 25305-0590
JO-34T 4870
Te: Honorable FEarl Ray Tomblin, Senate President

Honorable Robert Kiss, Speaker of the House
Honorable Members of the Joint Committee on Government
and Finance

From: Ellen Clark, C.P.A.E/C’
Director Budget Division
Tegislative Auditor's Office

Date: May 18, 2002
Re: West Virginia Unemployment Compensaticn Trust Fund

We have reviewed the monthly reports of the Unemployment
Compensaticn Trust Fund we received from the Bureau of Employment
Programs.

For the ninth month (March 2002) of year 2001-2002, the trust fund
cash flow was as follows:

Trust Fund Beginning Cash Balance 7-1-2001 $237,250,143.78
Receipts July 1, 2001 thro March 31, 2002 $122,622,754.18
pDisbursements July 1 thro March 31, 2002 $110,491,883.15
Balance March 31, 2002 $249,381,014.81

(This balance is $ 52,535,246.75 higher than at same time
period in the last fiscal year.)

ITEMS OF NOTE:

Reqular benefits paid for July - March 2002 are $12,141,783.91
HIGHER than the preceding July - March 2001.

Joivit Commitloe on Governiment and Finance



Receipts are $ 39,177,143.77 HIGHER than the previous July- March
2001. Overall disbursements are $13,062,004.86 HIGHER than July
- March 2001.

UNEMPLOYMENT RATES:

West Virginia’s unemployment rate for the month of March 2002 was
6.4 percent. The naticnal unemployment rate for March 2002 was
6.1 percent. Seasonally adjusted unemployment. rates were 5.3
percent for West Virginia and 5.7 percent nationally.

During the past year West Virginia’s economy has declined by
3,900 jobs. The gains were 1,500 jobs in services, 1,500 in
mining and 400 in finance, insurance and real estate, and 200 in
construction. Tosses include 5,100 in manufacturing, 1,100 in
trade, 900 in government and 400 in transportation and public
utilities.



FINANCIAL CONDITION OF THE UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION TRUST FUND
MONTHLY STATUS REPORT FOR THE JOINT COMMITTEE ON GOVERNMENT AND FINANCE
FOR THREE MONTHS STARTING MARCH 2001 AND MARCH 2002

THREE MONTH
o __JANUARYO1  FEBRUARYD!  MARCHO1 _  JANUARY02  FEBRUARY 02 MARCH 02  TOTAL VARIANCE *
Balance Forward $220.673.882.57 $200,780,780.82 $207.882.610.88 $236,823.920.42 $227.384,287.67 $224,463,131,14  $53,384,084.18
Add Recepts:
Bond Assassment $2.714 87 $1.304.51 $363.43 $235.03 $249.86 $834.71 ($3,060.21)
Ragular Contributions $5,490,028.55 $10,684,052.32 $596.808.53 $5.722.800.03 $11,381,417.83 $637 435.05 $970.062.51
Extended Benefit Funds $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Emergency Unemployment Funds $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
TEUC Unemployment Funds $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $1,075,000.00 $1,075,000.00
UCFE (Fedsral Agandias) $150,000.00 $125,000.00 $100.000.00 $100,000.00 $75,000.00 $100,000.00 {$100.000.00)
Reduced Tax Cradits $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Resd Act Funds $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $36.210.068.00 $36,210,068.00
Traasury [nterest Credits $0.00 $0.00 $3,469,959.84 $0.00 $0.00 $3,707,883.50 $238.003.66
UCX (Miltary Agencies) $200,000.00 $150,000.00 $100.000.00 $200.000.09 $150.000.00 £200.000.00 $100.000.00
Total Monthly Recslpts 3584274342  $10,980,356.83 54,286,932 80 8502303806  S1160686768  $41.931.301.28 $38.490.973.96
Leas Dishursements:
Debt Bend Repayment {Retired) {Retired) {Rotired) {Retired) {Retired) {Retired) NA
Regular Benefits $16.410,554.02 $12.785,394.16 $14,824,474.69 $17.965.630.68 $14.234,666.57 $15,947.380.62 $4,126,265.20
Extended Benefits $0.0C $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Emergency Benefits ($1,190.00) (3410.00} (3605.00) ($420.00 ($404.00) $867,746.00 $869,127.00
UCFE (Federal Warkers)Benefits $134,088.18 $129,438.53 $118,255.03 $53,485.37 $94,557.63 $70.070.78 ($123,668.95)
UCX (Military Workers)Benslits $192,382.97 $143,113.30 $161,850.68 $203,883.56 $169.004.02 $158.210.18 $34,050.81
Resd Act Funds $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Other Adjustments $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Total Monthly Dishureemants §16.735.83517  $132.058.83628 31510377540  $1826267081 31448782422  $17.043.417.59 $4.905,774.06
Trust Fund Balance $209,780,790,82 $249,381,014.81 $86,948,264.08

$207,682,610.868 $190.846,768.08 $227,384,287.67

$224,493,131.14

* Threa month tota] varlancs column Is the difference batween the sum of the previous year's three months data for sach category and the current year's three months data. The purposa

of the report Is to show significant changes in receipts, disbursements, or halancas.



WEST VIRGINIA LEGISLATURE
Offtce of the Legitiabive uditor

Ledgel Divition

Lelding 1, Rooees 332-Wkesd Wing
1900 Kanawha Blod. Lasd
Charbeston, WU 25305-0550

MEMORANDUM J04-347-4870

To: Honomble Senator Earl Ray Tomblin, Senate President
Honorabie Delegate Robert Kiss, Speaker of the House
Honorable Members of the Joint Committee on Govermment and Finance

From: Ellen Clark, CPA &~
Director Budget Division
Legislative Auditor’s Office

Date: May 19, 2002

Re:  Workers’ Compensation Trust Fund

We have reviewed the monthly report of receipts and disbursements for the Workers’
Compensation Trust Fund for the month ended February 28, 2002. (FY 2001-2002)

Total receipts for the fiscal year are $404,394,506.11 . This amount is$ 121,753,138.56 LESS
than the receipts reported for fiscal year 2000-2001 during the July to February time period.

Disbursements paid out for the fiscal year are $ 495,408,454.83. This amount is
$ 68,399,045.05 HIGHER than the same time period last fiscal year.

Total administrative expenses for this eight month period are $ 33,318,124.43; which is
$2,041,464.75 HIGHER than the same eight months of the previous fiscal year.

The ending trust fund balance as of February 28, 2002 was $ 1,011,571,322.94. At the same
date the previous fiscal year the trust fund balance was 1,236,205,863.02. The difference isa
$ 224,634,540.08 DECREASE in ending trust fund balance.

These calculations are based upon cash received and cash disbursed, (i.-e. similar to a checkbook
register). Accrual based calculations would change the finsmcial data significantly.

Joinit Committee on Gouernment and Finance



WORKERS' COMPENSATION FUND
UNAUDITED STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS (CASH BASIS]
FOR THE THREE MONTHS STARTING DECEMBER 2000 AND DECEMBER 2001

RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS BENEFITS
ENDING ADMINISTRATIVE
MONTH RECEIPTS DISBURSEMENTS BALANCE WCF SELF-INSURERS TOTAL EXPENSE
BALANCE FORWARD * $1,202,626,172.08
DEC 2000 $ {11,160.027.27) § 50.120.518.81 1,141,345628.00 | | ¢ 47.025,141.82 & §,103,442.02 $55,128,583.84 |  3.095,374.88
JAN 2001 104,124,931.83 62.637,835.51 1,182,832,724.32 58,880,953.76 8,005,396.84 B7,888,350.40 3,856,881.75
FEB 2001 103.673,740.81 50,400.602.11  1,236,205,8683.02 46,201,262.57 8,240,725.43 £4,441,5888.00 4,189,339.64
TOTALS $196,638,645.37  $183,058,954.43 NjA $151,907,356.15  $25,349,664.09  $177.256,022.24 | $11,151,586.28
ENDING ADMINISTRATIVE
MONTH RECEIPTS DISBURSEMENTS BALANCE WCF SELE.INSURERS TOTAL EXPENSE
BALANCE FORWARD * $1,002,695.537.40
DEC 2001 $ 37,844740.16 $ 55,738,781.52  984,801498.04|( |¢ 52,000,880.85 § 8,267,705.86 $61,268.666.81 | 8  3,737,820.57
JAN 2002 86,991,274.81 89,903,550.71  1,001,888,220.14 65.037.164.10 11,765,203.87 76,802,367.97 4,866,386.581
FEB 2002 89,715,762.36 60,033,679.58 1,011.571,322.94 55,802,908.49 9,269,126.92 65,072.035.41 4,230,721.07
TOTALS $194,561,797.33  $185.676,011.79 NiA $172,841,033.54 930,302,036.75  $203,143,070.29 | $12.834.878.26

* Balanca forward amount includss $210,000.000 transferred from the Coal-Workers’ Pnsumacaoniosis Fund in Decamber 1930

Notes: Accrual hegis financial intormation could significantly change the data provided.

This report includes the Workers' Compensation Fund and the Disabled Workers' Relief Fund. It does not inchuda the Employers”
Excass Liability Fund or the Coal-Workers' Pnsumoconiosis Fund.

Lriin039V KV

P d ¢-4

R3]
|
=21

A

A

7 2

1
3

—ln

wn



W WS BN BN N ED NS BN BN BY BN BN BN TR G ' G

WEST VIRGINIA LEGISLATURE
Ofrce of the Lagislattue Audilor

Diviséon
Luilding 1, Looen 332-Whost Wing
1900 Kanawha Rlvd. Zast

Chardoston, WY 25305-0590
FOU- 374870

Memorandum

Te: Honorable Senator Earl Ray Tomblin, Senate President
Honorable Delegate Rebert Kiss, Speaker of the House
Honorable Members cf the Joint Committee on Government and

Finance

From: Ellen Clark,i%iP.A.
Director Budget Division
Legislative Auditor’s Office

Date: May 18, 2002
Re: Status of General Revenue Fund April 30, 2002

We have reviewed the cash revenue flows of the West Virginia
general revenue fund for the month of April 2002. The status of
the fund collections are as follows:

The net year-to-date collections are 101.37% of the estimate for
the fiscal year as of April 30, 2002. The amount over estimate is

8 31,210,010.05 for the year. (See Note 1)

Consmuner salea tax collections are § 12,484,410.31 ABOVE the
estimate for the year. Collections of consumer sales tax were
101.72% of the yearly estimate.

Corporate not income Tax collections are at 75.96% of the estimate.
Corporate net income tax refunds for the first four months of the
calendar year have tctaled $ 36,375,791.28. This accounts for
33% of the total general revenue tax refunds in all categories.

Personal income tax collections for July - April are at 105.08% of
the estimate.

j@Wt@wmmﬁkemmthwmuwt@mi4@mmuz



smokeless tobacco tax collecticons which began January 1, 2002 are
5 768,169.86 over the year to date estimate of $ 600,000.00.

The Special Income Tax Reserve Fund had a cash balance of
$23,625,219.96 as of April 30, 2002.

Balance July 1, 2001 .1 23,625,035.96
Revenues July 2001-April 2002 00, 000,000.00

Disbursements July 2001 - 9,999,816.00
April 2002

Cther adjustments 0c, 000,000.00
Balance April 30, 2002 13,625,219.96

The Rainy Day Fund (Revenue ghortfall Reserve Fund) had a cash
palance of $63,178,308.63 as of April 30, 2002.

Balance July 1, 2001 79,085,243.86
Revenues July l-~June 30, 2002 + 15,7%55,064.77
surplus from 2001 (transferred

8-1-2001)

Disbursements July l-June 30, - 40,000,000.00
2002 Loan to General Revenue

(transferred 7-6-2001) Loan + 40,000,000.00

repaid on September 27, 2001

Legislative Appropriation for - 30,162,000.00
flood relief (House Bill 402)
Passed August 8, 2001.

Legislative Appropriation for 1,500,000.00
flood relief (House Bill
512)to Governors Civil
Contingent Fund October 1,
2001 (signed by Governor 3-25-

01)
Balance April 30, 2002 63,178,308.63

State Road Fund

The collections in the state road fund are at 104.50% of the yearly
estimate as of April 30, 2002. This translates to a $19,795,786.59
excess over the estimate.



The category over the estimate is the privilege tax which is
collected on the certificate of title at the time a wvehicle is
purchased. This category is § 12,867,310.08 over the estimate.
licenses and registration taxes are 9 4,095,413.80 over the
estimate for the pericd July 2001 through April 2002.

Notes:
Note 1

The Department of Administration, Division of Finance, amended the
general revenue estimate at the end of March. The change in
estimate occurred in the insurance tax category. This total
estimate was changed from $65,500,000.00 to $74,900,000.00, which
was an increase of $ 9,400,000.00 for the fiscal vyear. This
revises the total general revenue fund estimate from
$2,800,100,000.00 to $ 2,809,500,000.00.



GENERAL REVENUE FUND FY 2001-2002
Monthly Revenue Estimates, Revised March 2002

as of April 30, 2002

SOURCE OF REVENUE

Business and Occupation Tax

Consumer's Sales Tax
Parsonal Income Tax
Liquor Profit Transfers
Racing Fees

Beer Tax and Licenses
Cigarette Tax

Estate and Inheritance Tax

Business Franchise Registration

Charter Tax

Use Tax

Property Transfer Tax
Property Tax

Cash Flow Transfer
Insurance Tax
Departmental Collections
Corporate Net Income Tax
Carrier income Tax
Miscellaneous Receipts
Migcellaneous Transfers
Interest Income

Video Lotlery Transfers
Severance Tax

Business Franchise Tax
Telecommunications Tax
Special Revenue
Smokeless Tobacco Tax

H.8. 102- Lottery Transfers

TOTALS

Minus Cash Flow Transfers
TOTALS
Percent of Estimates

MONTH

ESTIMATES

14,100,000
69,800,000
139,000,000
560,000
625,000
590,000
2,070,000
390,000
10,000
50,000
8,700,000
560,000
540,000

0
14,750,000
660,000
20,000,000
o

120,000

0
1,910,000
0
14,000,000
16,300,000
950,000

0

200,000
27,200,000

333,125,000

333,125,000

Prepared by Legislative Auditor's Office, Budget Division

NET
MONTH
COLLECTIONS
14,341,324
73,752,701
163,864,070
500,000
500,000
675,386
2,841,953
622,598
25,034
43,969
9,678,049
611,351
582,160
0
11,639,999
440,750
12,983,721
0
103,326
o
888,120
20,158
12,044,197
21,732,878
2,358,571
0
425,926
3,783,778

334,580,017

0
334,580,017
100.44%

MONTHLY
AMOUNT
OVER OR UNDER
ESTIMATE
241,324
3,852,701
24,994 070
0
(125,000)
85,386
771,953
232,598
15,034
(6.031)
978,049
51,351
22,160
0
(3,110,001)
(219,250)
(7,006,279)
0
(16,674)
0
(1,021,880
20,158
(1,855,803)
5,432,878
1,408,571
0
225,926
(23,416,224)

1,456,017

1,455,017

YTD
ESTIMATES

136,800,000
723,900,000
832,780,000
5,700,000
1,875,000
5,850,000
25,810,000
14,750,000
470,000
2,470,000
68,100,000
5,660,000
3,560,000
0
72,400,000
10,620,000
92,700,000
0
2,580,000
500,000
19,160,000
0
120,300,000
80,800,000
8,850,000

600,000
45,600,000

2,282,035,000

2,282,035,000

NET
YTD
COLLECTIONS

136,761,523
736,384,410
875,101,748
5,737,593
1,500,000
8,274,521
27,143,505
11,308,106
759,484
3,012,536
66,650,451
6,051,656
3,378,499
0
72,084,754
8,533,626
70,416,368
o
2,334,568
552,796
18,181,322
690,401
129,649,006
104,617,187
11,627,535
495
1,368,170
13,114,347

2,313,245,010

2,313,245,010
101 37%

YEARLY
AMOUNT
OVER OR UNDER

(38,477)
12,484,410
42,321,749

37,593
(375,000)
424,521
1,233,505
(3.441,884)
289,484
542,536
(1,449 549)
301,656
(181,501)

0
(305,246)
(2,086,374)
(22,283,632)
0
(245,032)
52,796
(978,678)
680,401
9,349,006
23,717,187
2,777,535
495
768,170
(32,485,653)

31,210,010

31,210,010



GENERAL REVENUE FUND FY 2001-2002
Monthly Revenus Eetimates, Revised March 2002

as of April 30, 2002 MONTHLY YEARLY
NET PERCENT NET PERCENT
MONTH MONTH OF ESTIMATE YTD ¥YTD OF ESTIMATE
SOURCE OF REVENUE ESTIMATES COLLECTIONS COLLECTED ESTIMATES COLLECTIONS COLLECTED
Business and Occupation Tax 14,100,000 14,341,324 101.71% 138,800,000 138,761,523 80.67%
Consurner's Sales Tax 61,800,000 73,752,701 105.51% 723,800,000 738,384,410 101.72%
Paraonal Income Tax 139,000,000 183,984,070 117.98% 832,780,000 875,101,749 105.08%
Liguor Profit Transfare 500,000 500,000 100.00% 5,700,000 5,737,583 100.88%
Racing Fees 625,000 500,000 80.00% 1,875,000 1,500,000 80.00%
Bear Tax and Licenses 580,000 876,388 114.47% 5,850,000 6,274,621 107.26%
Clgarette Tax 2,070,000 2,841,853 137.20% 25,840,000 27,143,505 104.76%
Estste and Inheritance Tax 390,000 622,508 150.84% 14,750,000 11,308,108 78.67%
Business Franchise Repgisiration 10,000 25,034 250.34% 470,000 750,484 181.59%
Chartar Tax 50,000 43,080 87.84% 2,470,000 3,012,538 121.97%
Usg Tex 8,700,000 0,878,049 111.24% 88,100,000 68,650,451 97.87%
Proparty Transfer Tax 880,000 611,351 108.17% 5,860,000 8,051,858 108.92%
Property Tax 540,000 582,180 104.10% 3,660,000 3,378.499 04 80%
Cash Flow Transfer 0 0 0 0
nsurance Tax 14,750,000 11,838,068 78.92% 72,400,000 72,084,754 £0.58%
Dapartmental Collections 680,000 440,760 88.78% 10,820,000 8,533,628 80.35%
Corparate Net [ncome Tax 20,000,000 12,893,721 B84.97% §2.700,000 70,416,388 75.88%
Carrier income Tax 0 0 0 0
Miscelianeous Recelpts 120,000 103,326 88.11% 2,680,000 2,334,958 £0.50%
Miscellaneous Transfers 0 0 500,000 552,768 110.66%
[nterest Incoms 1,910,000 868,120 46.60% 16,180,000 18,181,322 £4.80%
Video Lottery Transfers 0 20,158 0 880,401
Severance Tax 14,000,000 12,044,167 88.03% 120,300,000 129,648,008 107.77%
Business Franchise Tax 18,300,000 21,732,878 133.33% 80,800,000 104,817,187 120.32%
Telecommunications Tax 950,000 2,388,671 248.27% 8,860,000 11,627,535 131.38%
Speclal Revenue 0 0 4085
Smokeless Tobaceo Tax 200,000 425,928 212.88% 600,000 1,388,170 228.03%
H.B. 102- Lottery Transfers 27,200,000 3,783,778 13.81% 45 800,000 13,114,347 2B.76%
TOTALS 333,125,000 334,580,017 100.44% 2,282,035,000 2.313,245,010 101.37%
Minue Caeh Flow Transfers 0
TOTALS 33,128,000 334,880,017 100.44% 2,282,036,000 2,313,246,0110
Percent of Estimates 100.44% 101.37%

Prepared by Legislatve Auditor's Office, Budget Divislon
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BTATE ROAD FUND FY 2001-2002
REVENUE ESTIMATES AS OF JULY 2001
as of April 30, 2002

NET PERCENT OF NET PERCENT OF
MONTH MONTH MONTH ESTIMATE YTD YTD YEAR ESTIMATE

SOURCE OF REVENUE ESTIMATES COLLECTIONS COLLECTED ESTIMATES COLLECTIONS COLLECTED
Licenses and Reglstration 8,800,000 7,649,618 111.02% 58,200,000 83,205,414 108.82%
Privilege Tax 14,000,000 15,024,654 107.32% 128,450,000 142,317,310 100.94%
Gasollne and Motor Carrier Road Tax 18,400,000 22,820,258 124.07% 188,005,000 191,126,113 101.12%
Wholesale Fuel and Use Tax 5,700,000 7.412,816 130.08% 61,200,000 61,766,677 100.83%
Highway Litter Control Fund 125,000 211,870 189.50% 1,254,000 1.400,373 111.67%

TOTALS 45,025,000 53,028,214 117.78% 440,108,000 450,904,787 104.60%
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Charleston Daily Mail
Changes
to cost millions
State will lose money on federal
tax code revisions
Jimt Wallace <jimw(@dailymail,com>

Draily Mail Capitol repotier

Friday May 10, 2002; 01:00 PM

. Federal tax changgs will cost West Virginia $18 million in the curremﬁscal year, $41 million in the scal
year beginning July 1 and $31 million in the following Tiscal year, according (o the Natiomal Conference - .

on State Legislatures

But state officials accepted thosc revenue fosses by conforming state law to the federal tax code.

The report, which was released today, attempts 1o show how the Economic Growth and Tax Relief Act of
7001 and the Job Creation and Worker Assistance Act of 7002 have substantially reduced revenues to the
states. However, the wide variety in state laws, stales' reactions to the federal changes and tire ways stafes
forecast revenue make it complicated to rank the effects on the states.

“Our major concern is that Congress acls on these things without any understanding of the implications
for the state iax systems,” said William Pound, the organization's executive director. "To some extent,
llmfsapmblemofthcstatcsinmatmeychosetoa]ignthcirtaxsyslemswilhthcfedcmlsyslcm But they
do that, because that makes life much easier for the taxpayers and it's much simpler.”

Tax Secretary Brian Kastick said West Virginia officials considered not going atong with the federal
changes, but decided against making the sysicm more complicated for 1axpayers. Although they disagreed
with the way Congress and the Bush administration atlempted to stimutate the economy, they also wanted
West Virginians to benefit from whatever stimulus could be achicved, he said.

In some states, changes in the federal tax code are aitomatically reflected in state tax codes.

But others, including West Virginia, require lawmakers (o decide each year whether to accept the federal
changes or decouple their systems from the federal law.

During this year's session, the Wesl Virginia Legislature accepted cach of the major changes imposed by
Congress, despite the loss of revenue at a time when the state budget is geiting Ughter. Pound said
pressure from constituents to keep things simple is a major reason some states choose to conform even

though they lose lots of money.

1 of2 510/02 2:00
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"They find it to their advantage 10 be coupled to the federal tax system,” b said. *That's obviously why the
majority of them have donc it over the years, even though it huris.”

Alysoun McLaughlin, a tax palicy specialist who helped prepare the report, added that it may have been
casier for West Virginia to go along wiih the federal changes, becausc it has not been faciog the severe
budget shortfulls other states have been coping with. Kaslick said {hat was a consideration.

By coutrast, Ohio lawmakers have been trying to cope witlia $1.3 billion revenue shortfall, so they are
considering decoupling from federal tax code regarding a tax break Congress provided businesses this
year by allowing them 1o accelerate the depreciation allowance on some capital investments. That could
save Ohio $175 million, but complicatc the calculation of taxes for many businesscs.

the federal changes on that depreciation allowance, the state expects
fiscal year and $20 million the year

after that. That accounts for the majority of tax revenuc West Virginia will lose from the federal changes.

Because Wesl Virginia has accepled
10 lose $16 million during the current fiscal year, $35 million next

Overall, the National Conferenee on State Legislatures expects (hat one lax change lo cost stafcs $5.4
billion in the current fiscal year, $5.1 billion next year and $4.2 biilion the year after that

 Anolher change that Mclaughlin said-was particularly unfair to the states was the decision fo phase out
their share of the federal estate tax, what has also been labeled the "death lax ™~ T -

Although the federal tax is not scheduled to be climinated until 2010, Congress decided 1o phase out
sharing a portion of that revenuce with: states by 2005.

federal tax. That will cost the state $1 million this fiscal year, $5 million next year and $9 million the year
afler that.

Other results of the legislation Congress passed last year change rules for individual retirement accounts
and qualified retirement plans and rules for education tax incentives. In West Virginia, the aggregate cost
of those provisions is estimated to be $1 million cach in the current fiscal year and next year and $2

million each in the following three years.

But Kastick said West Virginia could benefit from some federal changes, such as increased
unemployment benefits, so the state's overall loss in revenuc would be reduced.

Pound said Congress is not expected (o make any more major tax changes this year, but Treasury
Paul O'Neiil atmounced Wednesday that simplifying the federal tax system would be a major

initiative of the Bush administration in 2003 and 2004.

~That is obviously something that the slaies will watch very carefully, because it has great implications for
them.” he said.

Writer Jim Wallace can be reached ai 348—1819.
@ Copyriglt 2002 Charleston Daily Mail — Privacy policy — Send Web site feedbacl or 2 Letier to the Editor
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l Some states, including West Virginia, have decided to discontinue collecting an eslate tax Jinked to the
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For PEIA PPPB Plan Members




e all know how expensive healthcare can be. The PEIA PPB Plan is here
to provide you with quality healthcare while keeping the cost to you as low
as possible. One way your medical expenses can be kept low is to avoid
going to the Emergency Room for non-Emergency cases. An ER visit can
cost you 15 times what you might pay for other treatment options:

(Jost of a Visit for the Flu

Emf:rgf:n(:}r Room
Traumas

ERs are very costly because they are set up to

deal with the worst and most traumatic of
cases. Their purpose is to ensure that the
patient survives long
enough to receive long
term treatment from
their physician or
hospital. Yet nearly 53%
of cases seen by ERs in
the past year were
classified as "non-
Emergencies” — patients
with simple ailments
which could easily be
treated by their Family
Physician.

Doctors Office UrgentCare — ER
Total allowed charge $ 57.88 $ 57.88 $ 350.00
YOUR Cost*
» Copayment $ 15.00 $ 15.00 $ 50.00
* Deductible $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 150.00
- Coinsurance $  0.00 $ 000 5 30.00
Your cost TOTAL $1500  § 15.@

* This assumes no diagnostic testing, which would increase costs.

Emergency Room
Dramas

In addition to the high cost of ERs,
consider the ER experience: waiting for
hours in an uncomfortable chair
surrounded by people
sicker than you,
watching more severe
cases come and go ahead
of you, before finally
being treated by a
rushed, overworked
physician or resident
with no knowledge of
your medical history.

All this CAN be avoided.

Alternatives

If you have an emergency medical situation
you should go to the Emergency Room.
But how do you know if you are an
emergency case?

e The best way to deal with potential

medical emergencies is to discuss them
before they happen with your Family
Physician. Of course, no one can predict
all possibilities, but you and

your doctor can devise a plan of action
for dealing with common after-hours
ailments.

In many communities, an Urgent Care
Center may be an option. These clinics
accept walk-ins and are priced like a
standard office visit, thereby saving you
money. Also, since patients are taken on a
first come, first served basis, your wait
time will be significantly reduced. Your
Family Physician can recommend Urgent
Care Centers in your area.

Finally, be sure to seek medical attention
for your illness
promptly. If
you feel ill
during the

day, call your
doctor. If you
wait until the
middle of the
night to seek
relief, the
costly ER

may be your
only option.
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PEIA Prescription Drug Claim Report

Plan Domographics 2001/07 - Jul 2001708 - Aug 2001/09 - Sept 2001710 - Oct
Total Brug Cost $11,110.116] $12,308,852 $11,572.117 $12,842,11C
Amount Paid By Plan Sponsor $5,220,790° $8,320,287 $8,220,125 $9.355.,556
Amount Pald By Mambers $5,889,326! $3.988,565 $3,342,992 $3,486,554
Total Claims . 227.370. 245,243, 231,835, 258,236.
Average Eligible Member 182,982, 181,624. 181.887. 181.812,
Avarage # of Rx’s Per Member Per Month 1.24 1.35 1.27 142
Plen Pald Per Membar Per Month (PMPM) 28.53 45.81 45.24 51.46
Averaga Eligible Enrclless 90.237. 89.638. | 89,781. 89,755,
Avarage 8 of Rx's Par Enrollge Per Month 2.52 2.74! 258 2.88|
Plan Pald Per Enrolles Per Month (PEPM) $57.86 s;;s::m,zi $91.66 $104.23
Rx Cost Share B
Avg. Clalm Cost to Plan $22.96 $33.93 $35.50 $36.23
| Avg. Member Cost/Claim $25.20 $16.26 $14.42 $13.50
Percent member Cost Share 53. 32.4% 28.5% 2.1%
Average Ingredient Costs
Single Sourss (no genarics evaflable) $68.08 $69.73 $70.51 $70.86
Multi-Sourca Brand (ganerics aveilable) $41.84 $48.21 $47.81 $45.74
Gonuric Drugs $15.21 $16.81 $17.35 $16.90
Brand/Generic Dispensing Rates
| Single Sourcs (no generics) 57.10% 56.43% 55.18% 55.76%|
Muli.Source Brand (generics aveilable) . 220% 2.30% 2.26% 2.29%)|
Gsneric Crug 40.70% 41.27 41.56%, 41.95%
CGenelcs Dispensed whan available 94.88% 94.73% 94.84% 24.824%
Percent of Plan Gost for Single Sourcs 86.68% 83.20% 82.49% 82.65%)|
Retall Pharmacy Program
| Avg. Day Supply 30.6 3.2 31.0 304
Avg. Plan Cost/Day Supply $0.73 $1.06 $1.12 $1,17
Avg. Claim Cost 1o Plan $22.48 $33.17 $34.63 $35.59
Avg. Member Cost / Clalm $7.73 $10.97 $11.58 $11.74
Percent Mamber Cost Share 53.40% 32.66% 29.16% 27.36%)
Special Malnt Netwk (% of claims fllsd) 5.80% 6.64%. 7.15% 6.90%
Malntenancs Network (% of claims filled) 2.94% . 28a% 2.66% 2.50%]
Avg. Days Supply for Maint. Natwks 86.8 87.0 87.2 87.1
Total & Claims Flils 1-34 Days Supply 205,024, 218,234, 205,460. 230,875,
Total # Claims Fills 35-60 Day Supply 1,598. 1,817. 1,618, 1.777.
Total & Claims Filla 61-90 Day Supply 18,086. 21,484, 23,940, 22,323,
Mall Service Program
Avg. Days Supply 68.0 71.2 72.9 89.2
Avg. Plan Cost/Days Supply $0.86 $l.16 $1.2] $1.25
Avg. Cost to Plan $64.98 $82.58 $87.90 $86.45
Avg. Member Cost/Claim $38.10 $27.50 $24.17 $21.34
Parcent Mamber Cost Share 36.96% 24.98% 21.57% 19.80%
Total & Claims Fill 1.34 Days Supply 564. 1,124, 1.044. 1.108.
Total # Clalms Filis 35-60 Days Supply 38. 54, 59. 38,
Tota!l @ Claims Fills 61-90 Days Supply 1,658 2,519, 2,706. 2,11Q.
Formttlary Program
§/$ Forrmulary Drugs (% by claim) A5.37% 44.83% 45.06 44.85%)|
8/8 Non-Formulary Drugs (9 by clafm) 11.73% 11.60% 11.12% 10.91%)
M/S Drugs (% by claim) 229 23% 23% 2.3%
Generic Drugs (% by Claim) _ 40.7% 4139 41.6% 41.9%
$/5 Formulary Drugs (% by $) 74.54% 70.76% 70.74% 71.11%)]
s/ non: Formulary Drugs (% by $) 12. 14% 12.43% 11.75 11.549%)
M/S Drugs (% by $) 1.3% 1.9% 1.8% 1.7%)
Generic Drugs (% by $) 12.0% 14.99, 15.7% 15.6%|




PEIA Prescription Drug Claim Report

Plan Demographlcs 2001/11 - Nov 2001712 - Dec 2002701 - Jan 2002/02 - Feb
Total Drug Cost $12.527,684 $13.109,333 $13,571,818 $12,749,522
jAmgunt Pefd By Plan Sponsor $9.241,142 $9.735.563 $1C.194.655 $9,570,534|
| Amount Peid By Members $3.286,543 $3.373,771 $3.3772.163 $3,178.98¢
Total Claims 249,517, 256,952, 261,538, 247,992
Average Eligible Member 182,028, 182,414, 183,130 183.449.
Average ¥ of Rx's Per Mamber Per Montit 1.37 _ 141 1.43 1.35
Plen Peld Per Member Per Month (PMPM) 50.77 53.37 55.67 52.17
Average Eligthie Enrcllees 89.827. 90,008, 90,430. 90,568
Average ¥ of Rx's Per Enrpllge Per Month 2.78 285 2.89 274
Plan Paid Per Enrolles Per Month (PEPM) $102.88 $108.16 $112.74 $105.67
Rx Cost Share
Avi. Clalm Cost to Plan $37.04 $37.89 $38.98 $38.59
AVg Mamber Cost/Claim $13.17 $13.13 $12.91 $l2.82
Parcant member Cost Share 26.2% 25.7% 24.9%, 24.9%
Average Ingredient Costs
| Single Scurea (no generics available) $71.57 $72.33 $74.43 $74.10
Muili-Scurce Brand (generics avatlable) $45.05 $46.06 $46.49 $46.63
Genaric Drugs _ $16.89 $17.15 $16.93 $16.69
Brand/Qeneric Dlspensing Rales
| Single Sourca (no gansrics) 56. 56.51 56.06% 55.62%)
Mull-Source Brarxd (generics avallable) 2.26% 2.14% 2.14% 2.27%)]
Generic Drug 41749, 41.35% 41.80% 42,119
Geneles Dispenssd when available 94.86% 95.09% 95.12% 94.88% |
Peorcent of Plan Cost for Single Source 82.50% 83.12% 83.249 83.00%|

Retall Pharmacy Program
Avg. Day Supply 306 30.9 306 30.1
Avg. Plan Cost/Day Supply $1.19 $1.20 $1.25 $1.25
Avg. Claim Cost to Plan $35.34 $37.089 $38.31 $37.78
[Avg. Member Cost 7 Claim $11.95 81214 $1202 $11.94
Percent Member Cost_Shara 26.47% 26.00% 25.08% 25,20%|
Special Maint Netwk (% of claims filled) 7.02% 7.479% 7.21% 7.03%)
Maintenance Network (% of claims fliled) 2.57% 2.56% 2.45% 2.53%
|Avg. Deys Supply for Meint. Netwks 87.3 87.3 87.2 873
Total ¢ Clalms Fllls 1.34 Days Supply 222,425, 227,606. 233.252. 221,088.
Total & Claims Fills 35-60 Day Supply 1,632. 1.716. 1,764, 1,553.
Totel @ Claims Fills 61.80 Day Supply 22,146 23,879 23,305, 22,003,
Matl Service Program
Avg. Days Supply 713 719 68.6 708
|Avg. Plan Cost/Days Supply $1.25 $1.27 $1.34 $1.38
| Avg. Cost to Plan $88.88 $91.61 $92.09 $97.61
Avg. Momber Cost/Claim $19.69 $19.81 $19.84 $19.56
Percent Member Cost Share 18.13% 17.78% 17.73% 16.69%
Total # Claims Fill 1.34 Days Supply 999, 1,095, 1,126. 1.043.
Total ¥ Clairns Fills 35-60 Days Supply 43. 46. 35. 33
Total & Clalms Fills 6120 Days Supply 2.262, 2,608, 2,044 2,265.
Forirtlary Program

$/8 Forrnulary Drugs (% by claim) 44.99% 45.71% 44.86% 44.36%|
$/$ Non-Formulary Drugs (% by claim) 11.01% 10.80% 11.20% 11,279
M/S Drugs (% by claim) 2.3% 2.1% 219 23
Generi¢ Drugs (% by Claim) 41.7% 41.4% 41.8% 4219,
$/8 Forrnulary Drugs (% by §) 70.88% 72.07% 71.54 70.

s/g nen-Farmulary Drugs (% by $) 11.92% 11.04% 11. 70% 12

M/$S Drugs (% by $) 1.7% 1.6% 1.7
Generic Drugs (% by $) 15.4% 15.3% 15% 15,

2



PEIA Prescription Drug Claim Report

Plan Demographics |2002/03 - March 2002/04 - April 2002 - Flscal
Total Drug Cost ' $13,841.791]  $12,345040| $125,978,384
Amount Paid By Plen Sponsor $10,450,401] $9,359,104]  $88,677,156
Amount Peid By Mambars $3,391,390 $2,985,935  $36,301,228
Total Claims 265,174. 232,498. 2,476,353,
Averege Hlgible Membear 183,518, 183,617 1,826,462,
Averags o of Rx's Per Member Per Month 1.44 1.27 1.36
Plan Pald Per Mamber Per Month (PMPM) 56.94 50.97 49.10
Avsrage Eligible Enrolleas 90,628. 90.710. 901,582,
Avgrege # of Rx's Per Enrolles Per Month 293 2.56 2.75
Plan Paid Per Enrollee Par Month (PEPM) $115.31 $103.18 $90.47
Rx Cost Share
Avg. Claim Cost to Plan $39.41 $40.25 $36.21
Avg. Member Cost/Claim $12.79 $12.84 $14.66
Percent rarmbar Cost Share .28, 24.29, 28.8%|
Average Ingredlent Costs e
[Single Soures (no generics available) $75.22 $76.01 $72.33
Multl-Sourcs Brand (generics available) $47.84 $47.38 $46.34
Gensric Drugs $16.62 $17.17 $16.78
Brand/Qeneric Dispensing Rates
|Slngle Sourcs (no generics) 55.95% 56.38% 56.19%|
Muli-Sourcs Brand (generics available) 2.19% 2.12% 2.22%
Generic Drug 41.86% 41.50% 4] 60% |
Geneics Dispansed when avaflable 95.024, 95.14 94.94% |
Porcent of Plan Cost for Single Source 83.55% 83.83% 83.33%
Retall Pharmacy Program
| Avg. Day Supply 30.4 30.9 30.7
Avg. Plen Cost/Day Supply $1.27 $1.28 $1.16
Avg. Claim Cost to Plan $38.60 $39.59 $35.49
Avg. Member Cost / Claim $12.05 $12.23 $11.47
Percant Member Cost Share 24.74% 24.38% 22.07%
Speclal Maint Netwk (% of claims filled) 7.25% 7.31% 6.99%|
Maintenance Network (% of claims filled) 2.46%, 2.48% | 2,619
[Avg. Days Supply for Mairt, Netwks 87.2 87.3 872
Tatel & Claims Fills 1-34 Days Supply 235,107 207,077. 2,207,148,
Total # Cleims Fills 3560 Day Supply 1,811 1.548. 16,835.
Totel & Claims Fills 61-90 Day Supply 23,734 21,180. 219,060.
Mall Service Program
|Avg. Days Supply 71.0 68.9 70.5
Avg. Plan Cost/Days Supply $1.40 $1.41 $1.26
Avg. Cost to Plan $99.23 §$96.89 $89.16
| Aveg, Member Cost/Claim $19.97 $19.56 $22.74
Percent Member Cost Share 16.76% 16.80% 20.32%,
Total # Claims Fill 1-34 Days Supply 1,081, 931. 10,515.
Tote! # Clalms Fills 35.60 Days Supply 36. 38, 420,
Total # Claims Fills 61-90 Days Supply 2,405, 1,744, 22,321.
Formulary Program
§/8 Formulary Drugs (% by clalm) 44 87 46.21% 45,10%
$/8 Non-Forrmulary Drugs (% by claim) 11.08% 10.17%, 11.09%
M/$ Drugs (% by claim) 2.29 219 2.2%)|
Gerrie Drugs (% by Claim) 41.9% 41. 41.6%|
$/8 Formulary Drugs (% by $) 71.46% 71.91% 71.48%)
s/ mon-Formulery Drugs (% by $) 12. 11.93% 11.84%
M/S Drugs (% by $) 1. 15% 1.6%|
Goneric Drugs (% by $) 14.8% 4. 15.0%)
3
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WEST VIRGINIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES INSURANCE AGENCY
MONTHLY MANAGEMENT REPORT - TOTAL CLRIMS

MARCH 2002
Page: 1
Current 12 Montha Prior
Reporting Type of current Period Rolling Avg 12 Months Prior Rolling Avg Curreni Flscal Yr Previous Fiscal Yr
Category Service PEIZ Payments PEIA Payments PEIA Paymentes PETA Payments PEIA Paymente PEIA Paymentsa
INPATIENT HOSPITAL FACILITY BEHRVICRAL 244,2320.36 172,445.74 209,523.10 141,191.11 1,520,152.43 1,293,992.13
MATERNITY 172,419.43 133,503.10 149,066.36 110,334.81 1,170,495.44 1,005,954.69
MEDICAL AND SURGICAL 8,481,105.50 6,325,7B2.66 7,154,932.37 4,227,887.73 55,325,625.32 38,738,834.36
NECMATAT, COMPLICATIONS 155,5964.84 51,24&6.19 39,263.80 59,471.5% 493 ,573.34 414,650.53

e o e o ol ol o el A
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OUTPATIENT HOSPITAL FACILITY

TErard kA d kg ddrdrks

Bum

PERRMACY

@k RAkbkdkddk kit hdrbrs

Fum

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES

BEHRVICRAL

DIATYSIS

EMERGENCY EOQOM
MATERNITY

MEDICAL AND SURGICAL

PRESCRIPTICN DRUGS

ADVANCED IMRGING
AMBULANCE

BNESTHESIA

CBRDIOVASCULAR MEDICINE
CERVICAL CANCER SCREENING
DME

EVALUATION AND MANAGEMENT
IMMUNTZATION

INJECTION

9,053,710.132

32,994.87
411,303.86
246,603.06

26,961.98

4,374,125.56

5,091,989.33

9,954,184.50

9,954,184.50

956,142.65
301,479.71
764,316.11
261,410.39

62,370.67
360,890.60
4,620,547.65
90,495, 05
a05,659.42

6,682,977.70

15,582.52
190,588.81
164,166.31

20,411.08

3,102,255.81

3,493,004 .53

9,129,085,.90

9,129,085.50

663,240.30
227,852.20
540,669.78
196,669.56

38,525.18
357,501.62
3,231,083,90
63,887,32
510,176.80

7,592,785.63

25,212.32
263,232.08
162,947.57

25,736.05

3,342,291.41

2,0159,419.43

11,715,104 .14

11,715,104.14

801,086.03
361,174.60
645,390.82
249,041.16

39,394,.95
496,126.49
4,082,321.62
§1,318.65
659,51%.48

4,538,885.24

14,728.31
135,672.76
93,819.78
12,859.44
2,476,871.00

2,733,551.28

§,315,701.03

6,315,701.03

533,172.00
162,764.14
406,589.12
15%,018.02
19,114.32
253,562.00
2,661,363.57
67,.6608.30
386,585.95

58,509, 847.53

145,027.54
1,861,735.63
1,575,563.66

183,549.43

28,490,820.71

32,257,697.37

83,973,258.49

83,973,258.49

5,871,761.8%
1,882,635.91
§,038,711.34
1,698,550.54

381, 764.97
2,893,060.90
29,336,050,34

767,908.86
4,735,867.34

SOURCE: MOUNTAIN STATE, ACORDIA NATIONAL, PCS HEALTH, AND MERCK-MEDCC PAID CLRIMS TRPES
NOTE: CLAIMS LISTED ARE ON A PAID BASIS

41,453,441.71

142,664.28
1,319,232.83
D64 ,646.59
133,920.41
21,914,2B81.61

24,474,745.72

60,189,955.25

60,189,5995.25

5,023,908.29
1,758,995.16
3,852,334.93
1,561,476.41
199,317.49
2,488,213.32
25,522,935.42
689,626.69
3,651,928.45




WEST VIRGINIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES INSURANCE AGENCY
MONTHLY MANAGEMENT REPORT - TOTAL CLAIMS
MARCH 2002

Current Period
PETA Payments

Paga:

Current

2

Rolling Avg 12 Months Prior

PEIA Paymentge

PEIA Payments

12 Months Prilor

Rolling Avg
PETA Payments

PEIA Payments

al au e N R Sy 08 P8 m O W8 B @m

Current Fiacal ¥r Preavicus Fiscal Yr

PEIA Payments

Reporting Typa of

Category Service

PROFESSIONAL: SERVICES LAR AND PATEOLOGY
MAMMOGRAPHY
OTHER

OTHER MEDICINE

PHYSICAI, MEDICINE
PROSTATE CANCER SCREENING
JUREICAL

A A A A AN N AN AT DI DT RN
faikenid

1,132,488.96
197,576.11
385,640.64
1,384,668.88
1,730,046.41
490,841.79
24,266.75
2,679,675.64

762,563.04
160,121.68
337,544.38
1,016,436.75
1,179,858.00
332,379.17
16,850.96
1,893,405.20

952,779.51
182,071.55
294,414.74
1,406,289.53
1,490,1B1.69
405,357.47
21,963.02
2,445,715.32

541,129.95
121,609.01
260,9299.46
784,284.03
937,296.31
233,707.12
12,607.75
1,553,430.48

6,653,566.52
1,485,550.71
3,286,166,27
8,668,847.82
10,433,284 .77
2,990,021.79

139,440.37
16,821,426.01

5,097,969.43
1,250,292.55
2,492,758.88
7,780,667.73
8,776,232.32
2,258,463.61
118,109.85
15,115,897.82

16,288,517.43

L1,569,765.51

14,614,142.69

9,094,905.63

103,084,616.72

87,639,128.35

_______________________________________ I i M o m m m m  m m pm m m m m pm m m mm m  m m m m m  m m m m ——

40,388,401.39

30,874,838.03

37,741,451.489

22,6083,443.18

277,825,420.12

SOURCR: MOUNTAIN STATE, ACORDIA NATIONAL, PCS HEALTH, AND MERCK-MEDCO PAID CLAIMS TAPES
NOTE: CLAIMS LISTED ARE ON A PAID BASIS

27 rows Belected.

213,757,311.D03
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State of West Virginia "‘-’I’?/VG]
Public Employees Insurance Agancy DILE}?

Balance Sheets

F
March 31, 2002 and 2001 4
Accrual Basis
{Unaudited-For Internal Use Only)
March March Increase

Assets 2002 2001 <Decrease>
Cash and cash equivalenls £ 101,908,232 i 122,453,983 % (20,545,751}
Deposits wilh lhird-party adminislrators 291,827 826,327 {534,500)
Premium accounts receivable-net of

allowance flor doubllul accounts 11,238,827 10,167,629 1,071,198
Olher accounts receivable 3,991,559 1,615,000 2,376,559
Tolal current assets 117,430,445 135,062,939 (17,632,454)
Furmilure and equipment, nel of accumulaled depreciation 148,561 211,963 {63,402}
Restricled cash-premium stabilization life insurance 3,607,820 3,607,524 95
Resliricled cash-new computer syslem 2,000,000 2,000,000
Tolal assets 3 123,186,626 % 138,882,426 § {15,695,800)
Liahilities and Retained Earnings

Claims payable i 43,750,000 3 47,720,000 % {3.970,000)

Premium deficiency reserve 7,242,000 7,242,000

Unearned revenue 2,310,000 3,352,700 (1.042,700)

Current claims payable 10,451,877 5,289 495 5,162,382

Accounis payable 8,431,852 B.621,681 {190,039)

Other accrued liabilities 961,157 585,122 376,035

Tolal liabilities 73,146,888 65,569,208 7,577,678

Relained earnings 50,039,740 73,313,218 {23,273,478)

Tatal liabilities and relained eamings 5 123,186,626 $ 138,882,426 § {15,695,800)

Forinlernal use only See financial comments
Prepared Apnl 12, 2002

Page 1 of 4
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State of Wesl Virginia \ /Pfr}"ﬂ IIJJ"

Public Employees Insurance Agency
Statement of Revenuss, Expenses and : : i
Changes in Retalned Eamings
March 31, 2002 and 2001 .-"r

Accrual Basis ""{EJ(:‘?".I‘,

{Unaudlied-For Internal Use Only)

Budgsated Aclual Actual This Year vs This Year vs
Nine Months Nine Monlhs Hudget Nina Manihs Last Year Last Year
Ended Endad Varience Endad Increase Varience
Mar 31, 2002 Mar 31, 2002 Percent Mar 3, 2001 <Decrease> Percenl
Operating Revenue —
Premiums
Employar | 259,200,614 | 258,736,148 -01a% & 249,139,005 1 9,597,143 3 85%
Employee 94,792 700 54,304 527 -0 89% 49,398,457 5,806 070 12 20%
Tolal Prermums 313 693,314 313 040 675 -0 0% 297 537 462 15,503,213 521%
Less
Payments lo managed care organizalions {34,000,000) {35,078,731) -2 568% (53,528,974} 18,450 243 -34 47%
Lite msurance premiums-basic (3.574,778) (3,847.971) -319% {3,778,908) {69,065) 1B3%
Nel premium revernue 274,018,526 274,112,973 0 03% 240,228,582 33,884,391 14 11%
Administralive lees, nel of refunds 2,625,003 2,578,695 -1 76% 2,557,980 20,715 081%
MNel operaling revenue 276 643,539 276 £92,668 0.02% 242,787,562 33,805,106 13 96%
Qperaling Expanses
Clawns expense-medical 200,235,195 201,112,746 0 44% 159,578,308 41,534,438 26 03%
Claims expense-grugs 71,066,980 77,294,510 6 76% 59,426,159 17,858,311 30 05%
Adminislralive service lees 9,205 479 8 642,015 -6 12% 8,670, 4E9 (220,454) -2 58%
Oiher operaling expenses 3,800 583 4,288,794 12 61% 3,782,080 507,704 13 42%
Tolal operating expense 284 317,237 291,339,085 247% 231,667 086 59,671,959 25 76%
Operaling {deficit) surplus (7.673,697) {14 646 417) 90 87% 11, B4 EETHEERT] =231 V1%
Monoperaling Revenues
Inleresl income banks, net of lees 150,000 116 790 -2214% 131,844 (15054} -11 42%
Inleresl income IMD 2,849,997 2,448,273 =14 10% 4,832,477 (2.384,204) -48 34%
Operating lransiers in 3,744,994 4,350,000 16 00% 7,500,000 (3,150,000} -42 00%
Tolal nonoperaling revenues oL aa OMiv RS 2 45% 12,484,321 {5 549 258) -44 52%
HNet Surplus (Deficiency) (7,731,334} 736 99% 23,584,797 (31,316,151) -132 8%
Relamed Earmings, (delicency) beginmng of period 57,771,004 ====zz=zecscozo 4% 728 421 042,673

Retained Earnings, end of period 3 50,038,740 1 73313218 § (23,273.478)

Forinlemal use only See hnancial comments
Prepared April 12, 2002

Page 2 of 4



State of West Virginia

Public Employees Insurance Agency
Staterment of Revenues, Expenses and

Operating Revenue
Premiums
Employer
Employee

Total Premium

Less
Paymenis to managed care organizations
Life insurance premiums-basic

Nel premium revenue
Adminisirative fees, nel of refunds

Nel operating revenue
Operating Expenses
Claims expense-medical
Claims expense-drugs
Administrative service fees
Olher operating expenses

Tolal operating expense

Operating loss
Nonoperating Revenues
Interest income, from banks, nel of fees
Interes! income from IMB
Operating translers in
Tolal noneperaling revenues

Net Loss

For internal use only See financial comments
Prepared Aprii 12, 2002

Net Loss

Accrual Basis

{Unaudited-For Internal Use Only)

Actual
Month
of
March 2002

$ 29,102,253
6,044,027

35,146,280

(3.906,285)
{431,000}

30,808,995
206,920

31,105,915

28,638,892
9,617,082
853,124
(339,366

i rhEse

(8,647,549)

{57)
155,599
1,017.000

I_|T'_' a !

i e

{7.475,007)

Page 3ol 4

Month of March 2002 and 2001

Actual
Month
of
March 2001

3 27,537,063

5,585,497
33,122,550

{5,930,448)
{422,663}

26,769,439
285713

27,055,152

24,580,161
10,030,751
1,032172
409,740

A0 fEEERd

{8.997,672)

531,828
833,000

s

3 {7,612,844

Increase
(Decrease)

1,565,200
458,530

[

2,023,730

2,024,163
(8,337)

4,039,556
11,207

4,060,763

4,058,731
(413,569)
(174,048}

229 8626

3,700,640
350,123

(57}
{396,229)
184,000

(212,286)

$ 137,837

W mak Enl s IR i S F ] A G (===



State of West Virginia
Publlc Employees Insurance Agency
Financlal Comments

2,
Month of March 2002 and 2001 6) 0
Accrual Basls /%
(Unaudlted-For Internal Use Only) /‘}.}
’
1) Effective July 1, 2000, the PEIA changed third parly aciministrators, The process of medical claims adiudication
and payment was taken over by Acordia Naetonal from Mountain Stals Blue Cross Blue Shield. Merck-Medeo trough
its subsidiary ,Pald Prescriptions Plus, took over the: adjudication and paymant of prescription drug claims,
Becauss of the many complexfiies Imvolved in the adjudication and peyment of medlcal and ¢rug catbms, i
look the new third party administrators quite soms lime to begin paying these claims on a timely basls,

2) The naw third party administrators also had difficulty adjusting thelr systams of reparting to the PELA's actusry.
Consequently e achuary was unable to devalop credible ostimates of claima which had been incurred but
not yot paid , cialms peyable. untl late In the spring of year 2001.

3) Bacatse of the difficulties dlscissed above, the ammmts reported in tass fnancial staternents may not accurately
refiect the PE1A's financial posttion and te restilts of its operations for tha pariods Indicated.

4) Bacauss thess financial statements were prepared very shortly after the end of the month, here may be soms
tnknown expenses atiributable to these periods.

3) Al tha plan year end June 30, 2001 approximataly 8,800 health policyholders transfarred from menaged care coverage

o the praferred provider benefll plan. This resulted In total anrollment incraase of approxmately 10% from the grior year
and I3 expacted (o producs a simlar incraasa In claims expense In the year ending In 2002.

Paga 4 of 4
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West Virginia Public Empioyees Insurance Agency
Summary of Fiscal Year 2002 Projections

December 31, 2000| March 31, 2001 June 30, 2001 December 31, 2001
Financlal Plan Quarterly Report | Quarterly Report Quarterly Report FInanclal Plan Quarterly Report
Decembsr Aprll June October December Aprll
Report 2000 2001 2001 2001 2001 2002
—— —— — — — _ —
Local Fund
Revenues 32,739,03115% 32,976,999 | % 32,976,899 | % 38,035,132 37.609,248 | $ 39,218,709
Claims 23,348,559 22 652,828 24,388,191 28,815,320 29,102,418 28.807.873
Capitations 2,939,372 2,939,372 2,939,372 2,408,123 2,408,123 2,030,558
Other Expenses 1,954,972 1,854,872 1,954,972 1,979,565 2,017,446 1,888,752
Retiree Subsidy 7,475,110 6,845,472 7,508,872 7,698,713 7,736,419 8,600,567
Fiscal Year Resull (2,678,982) (1,515,645) {3.814,408) (2.866,589) (3,655,158) (2,209,041)
Retirees Fund
Revenues 38,103,151 | § 36,876,584 | $ 36,876,584 | $ 37,946 410 36,028489 | $ 35,305,463
Claims 116,810,181 112,940,413 119,586,732 114,581,031 114,991,073 116,780,221
Capilalions 4,102,316 4,102,316 4,102,316 1,142,240 1,142,240 3,350,511
Olher Expenses 1,768,197 1,768,197 1,768,197 1,789,700 1,824,273 1,797,772
Reliree Subsidy (84,677,553) (81,934,342) {88,580,661) (79,578,561} (81,029,097) (86.623,041)
Fiscal Year Resulil - - - - . .
State Fund
Revenues 353,632,906 | & 358,046,068 | $ 356,046,067 | $ 355,108,115 356,299,564 | $ 355,783,604
Claims 192,549,805 198,774,001 201,688,410 221,597,373 223,710,572 233,475,880
Gapltattons 87,838,312 67,838,312 87,838,312 44,449,637 44 449 637 41,418,931
Other Expenses 19,847,078 19,847,078 19,847,078 18,930,443 19,277,987 19,010,478
Retiree Subsidy 77,502,443 74,988,870 81,071,789 71,877,848 73,292,678 78,022,474
Fiscal Year Result (4,104,732} {5.402,183) (14,397,522) (1,746,186) (4,431,310} (16,144,159}
PEIA Total
Revenues 424,475,088 | $ 425,899,651 | $ 425,899,650 1 % 431,090,657 430,837,3011 % 430,307,776
Claims 332,808,555 334,367,242 345,661,333 365,003,724 367,804,062 379,083,974
Capltations 74,880,000 74,880,000 74,880,000 48,000,000 48,000,000 45,800,000
Other Expensas 23,670,247 23,570,247 23,670,247 22,699,708 23,119,706 22,797,002
Refires Subsidy - - - - - -
Fiscal Year Resull (6,783,714)\ (6,.917,838) (18.211,930) {4,612,775) {8,086.467) (18,353,200)
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Finance Board

West Virginia Public Employees Insurance Agency
Capitol Complex

Building 5, Tenth Floor

Charleston, WV 25305

Ladies and Gentlemen;

L, Dave Bond, am & Fellow of the Society of Actuaries, a Member of the American Academy of
Actuaries, 2 Partner in the firm of CCRC Actueries, LLC and a Senior Consulting Actuary in the
firm of Ernst & Young LLP (“Emst & Young™).

Emst & Young has been retained by the Finance Board (*Board”) of the West Virginia Public
Employees Insurance Agency (“Agency™) to assist it as provided under the West Virginia Public
Employees Insurance Act (“Act”™) as amended by Senate Bill 702 in 1998. As provided under the
Act, the Board has retained Ernst & Young to review the financial plan prepared and proposed by
the Board for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2002 (“FY 2002") and to provide quarterly financial
reports. In addition, the analysis is to include reporting on a projection period of five years and
to include an accrual and incurred basis. Accordingly, Ernst & Young has additionally provided
preliminary forecasts for the fiscal years ending June 30, 2003 (“FY 2003"), June 30, 2004 (“FY
20047), June 30, 2005 (“FY 2005"), and June 30, 2006 (*FY 2006™). This opinion of plan
adequacy is based on the projections through FY 2006, using future revenue and plan
modifications provided by the Finance Board.

Under the Act, it is the Board’s responsibility to prepare a proposed financial plan designed to
generate revenues sufficient to meet all insurance program and administrative costs of the West
Virginia Public Employees Insurance Agency. Under the Act, the Board must provide a
financing plan in which the State Fund costs are financed 80% by State employers and 20% by
State employees in Fiscal Year 2007. It is also the Board's responsibility to review actual costs
incurred, any revised cost estimates, expenditures, and other factors affecting the fiscal stability
of the plan and t0 make any modifications to the plan necessary to jusure that the total financial
requirements of the Agency for the fiscal year are met. We have been requested to review the
proposed financial plan, and as supported by our work, to render an opinion stating whether the
plan may be reasonably expected to generate sufficient revenues to meet estimated insurance
program and administrative costs of the Agency through FY 2006.

In preparing the plan, Emst & Young utilized information conceming the plan’s prior experience,
covered individuals, plan revenues, plan benefits, plan administrative costs, and other expenses.
This information was developed and provided by the Agency, the plan’s third party
administrators and other sources. In our review, we completely relied on the accuracy of this
information and did not review or test the information in any way.

The preparation of any estimate of future health costs requires consideration of a broad array of
complex social and economic events. Changes in reimtbursement methodology, the emergence of
new and expensive medical procedures and prescription drug options, the continuing evolution of
the framework of the managed care options, and the changes currently experienced in the
processing of non-drug claims, as are contemplated in the Board’s proposed plan, intrease the
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level of uncertainty of such estimates. As such, the estimate of insurance program costs contains
considerable uncertainty and variability and actual experience may not conform to the
assumptions used.

In the circumstances, and subject to the conditions described herein. based on our review, we
believe the Financial Plan approved by the Board for FY 2002 through FY 2006 may be
reasonably expected to generate sufficient revenues, when combined with the existing surplus, to
meet estimated insurance program and administrative costs of the Agency. It is noted that we are
now projecting slight deficiencies in the required 10% reserve beginning in Fiscal Year 2006 of
approximately $10,700,000. We would suggest that the Finance Board to monitor these
developments and address these deficiencies once the Fiscal Year open enrollment results are
known and can be analyzed for their impact to the Financial Plan

Droc Bond

Dave Bond, F.S.A., M.A.A.A.
Senior Consulting Actuary

Emst & Young LI P
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West Virginia Public Employees Insurance Agency
Report of Independent Actuary
December 31, 2001 Quarterly Report

OVERVIEW

This report analyzes revenues and expenses related to fimding the life and health insurance
benefits of active and retired employees of the State and various related agencies, together with
their employees. This report is intended for the sole use of the Finance Board, and any other use
requires written approval by Emst & Young.

This report was compiled, based upon claims data collected by PEIA’s third party administrators
through February 2002 for prescription drugs and medical claims. Enrollment data was provided
at special requ&stﬁ‘omPEIAaswasinformaﬁononadminisnaﬁveexpenss,managedcare
capitations, and plan revenues. Revenue assumptions are based on premium rates, assumed
interest income and significant general and special revenue allocations provided by the Governor,
some which have not been approved by the legislature. In addition, some information became

available through presentations made at the Finance Board meetings, which has been used in
arriving at our conclusions.

The State of West Virginia Public Employees Insurance Agency Act establishes the actuarial
reporting requirements for PEIA as the incurred basis for medical claims and capitations and on
an accrued basis for administrative expenses and revenue. In addition, the Act wes amended in
Senate Bill 702 in 1998 to include reporting on a projection period of not to exceed five years
and to include an accrual and incurred basis for revenues and expenses. At the request of the
Finance Board, the reporting basis is based upon the division of employees and retirees into three
funds: Active Local Employee Fund, Retired Employee Fund and State Employee Fund. The
Active Local Fund represents local governmental agencies, county governmental agencies and
other public entities. The Retiree Fund represents all state and local agency retirees and their
survivors. The State Fund represents active state employees, colleges and university employees
and county boards of education employees. The Active Local Fund and the State Fund are

allocated administrative costs and retiree subsidy costs based on each fund’s proportionate
premium levels.
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KEY ASSUMPTIONS

A. Enrollment Changes

These projections include the assumption that Preferred Provider Benefit and Managed Care
enrollment will not change from the March 31, 2002 enrollment for the duration of these
forccasts for active employees. However, the PEIA Finance Board has requested for the
projection to assume retiree enrollment growth consistent with the experience of the plan. These
projections assume that the Retiree Fund will ammually have 1,000 additional retirees. This
assumption is based on estimates that PEIA has received from the Retirement Board for future
retirements and are somewhat conservative with recent experience. Actual net increase of
retirees over the last two years has averaged approximately 800.

Relatively minor enrollment changes have been observed since the December 2001 Financial
Plan report. Local Agency Active enrollment has increased by approximately 500 coverages.
The following chart summarizes the current enrollment as of the selected periods of December
2000, December 2001 and as of March 2002 for purposes of comparison:

[ S B TN O NN BN BN B &S EE Ea
IR T N N R ~

Preferred Provider Benefit Managed Care

Fund Coverage 12/00]  12/01] 03/02 12/00 12/01]  03/02
State Active [Single 15,150 17,335 17,342 5,880 3,469 3,469
Family 33,173] 36,292| 36,361 9,440 5,882 5,851
Local Active (Single 2,234 2,839 3,110 400 293 288
Family 3,759 4,427] 4,618 428 272 266
Retirees Single - Medicare 14,544| 14,635 14,668 - - -
Family - Medicare 5452 5,632] 5,640 - - -
Single - NonMedicare 2,105 2376 2,363 314 180 190
Family - NonMedicare| 5739 5.929| 5,938 237 154 170
Total 82,156] 89,465/ 90,040 16,699 10,250 10234
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B. Changes in Claim Backlog

The claim backlog has remained relatively stable over the last 12 months through Ma:‘ch 2002
with the exception of the months of November and December where the backlog increased to
higher levels.

Month Average Backlog
September 2000 104,000
October 2000 92,000
November 2000 114,000
December 2000 109,000
January 2001 08,000
February 2001 92,000
March 2001 86,000
April 2001 77,000
May 2001 : 69,000
June 2001 70,000
July 2001 68,000
August 2001 72,000
September 2001 81,000
October 2001 74,000
November 2001 97,000
December 2001 113,000
January 2002 80,000
February 2002 70,000
March 2002 71,000

C. Trend Analvsis

Emst & Young performed a detailed trend analysis in the report titled, “Medical Trend Report -
October, 2001". This report included a detailed trend analysis of PEIA experience by medical
category and whether PEIA or Medicare was primary. Based on our most recent experience, we
have adjusted these assumptions to reflect claim trends that were better than expected for medical
claims and worse than expected for prescription drugs. The program has most recently
experienced relatively flat trend for medical claims where Medicare was primary. The Centers
for Medicare and Medicaid Stdies (CMMS) has recently reduced physician reimbursement that
reduces the PEIA liability for these claims. In addition, medical claims experience for insureds
where PEIA is primary has been slightly favorable to the plan. Prescription drug trends have
been increased significantly for insureds where PEIA is primary. The previous assumed trend
was increased by 4% based on the most recent analysis, It should be noted that there is some
concern regarding the correct identification of claims as Medicare or Non-Medicare that is
currently being investigated. Because of the current rapid changes in reimbursement issues for
PEL&,Emst&Youngwﬂlupdatelhedemiledreponinthecomingmomhs. The most recent
trend assumptions that resulted from the current analysis are summarized in the following chart:
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Fiscal Year 2002 Fiscal Year 2003
Trend Trend
|Claim Type Assumptions Assumptions
Non-Medicare — Medical 9.5% 9.5%
Non-Medicare — Drugs 23.0% 23.0%
Medicare — Medical 7.0% 7.0%
Medicare — Drugs 21.0% 21.0%

In addition we have assumed that trends will be increase by 0.5% in each successive Fiscal Year
beginning in Fiscal Year 2004.

At the Finance Board’s request the baseline trend assumptions have been established to reflect
the most likely or expected trends. In order to provide information on the impact of varying
trend assumptions, two alternative trend scenarios were developed. The Optimistic Scenario
incorporates trend assumptions 2% below the Baseline Scenario and the Pessimistic Scenario
incorporates trend assumptions 2% above the Baseline Scenario.

The chart below summarizes the trend results observed for the plan using data through February
2002. 1t is important to note that these trends Aave not been adjusted to reflect savings as a result
of the drug rebate program or the claim savings due to changes in provider reimbursement
methodologies nor changes in the benefit structure. In other words, the 0% trend indicated in
Fiscal Year 1998 reflects the reductions in provider reimbursement, not the underlying gross
trend, which was closer to 10%. Adjustments for these changes have been made subsequently as
an adjustment to the gross trend assumptions.

PEIA Historical Trends
Fiscal Non-Drugs Drugs
Year Plan
Trend Medicare = Non-Medicare Medicare Non-Medicare Total
1991 6% 1% 2%
1992 1% 12% 11%
1993 2% 8% 20% 25% 10%
1994 5% 3% 15% 20% 6%
1995 5% 9% 12% 18% 7%
1996 12% 12% 15% 31% 15%
1997 3% 10% 7% 19% 10%
1998 4% ~3% 8% 4% 0%
1999 4% 3% 15% 22% 8%
2000 9% ~6% -10% -14% -6%
2001 6% 19% 29% 37%. 22%
2002 4% 10% 20% 24% 13%
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D. Claim, Expense and Revenue Assumptions

Using PEIA paid claim data through February 2002 for medical claims and for prescription drug
claims, average annualized incurred unit claim costs were developed for type of coverage as
shown in the following chart. Emst & Young has developed the claim cost on an adjusted
exposure basis using the respective credibility of each claim category. For example, prescription
drug claims are generally paid in the month of incurral and the most recent incurred months are
credible. Conversely, medical claims take longer to be paid, so the most recent incurred months
are not credible. The adjusted exposure basis weights the claim cost under each coverage type
based on observed differences in health care cost. For example, under this methodology single
coverage types are given a weight of 1.0 exposure, whereas member and children coverages are
given a greater weighting based on historical expected health care cost relationships. It should be
noted that these weights have been adjusted for this report reflecting changes in the cost

relationships have occurred. The values that follow are the assumed FY 2002 claim costs per
adjusted exposure:

Claim Costs Per Adfusted Exposure Per Month

Non Drugs Drugs
Actlve
State $145.30 $41.76
Local $142.63 $39.13
Retired
Medicare Eligible $112.42 $133.38
Non-Medicare Eligible $227.70 $70.28

These unit costs were trended to project claims based on the total cost trend assumptions
discussed in the previous paragraphs. These projected claims in this report have been adjusted to

reflect all changes that have been formally approved by the Finance Board through March 2002
and implemented by PEIA management.

Projected plan revenues, administrative expenses, life insurance premiums, and the amount to be
Spent on wellness programs were provided by PEIA. Interest income is currently allocated to
each fund based on reserve levels for each fund. The unit claim costs shown above do not reflect
the discretionary fund that allows the Director to expend limited additional funds on plan
changes without additional prior Finance Board approval.
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The Finance Board approved the following changes to the Financial Plan at its meeting in
December 2001:

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

Source 2003 2004 2008 2006
Additional State
Revenue 337,000,000 $42,000,000 | $40,000,000 $48,000.000
Addltional Local

| Agency Revenue $8,100,000 38,000.000 36,000,000 $7.000.000
Additional Employee
Contributions $14,700,000 $14.700,000 | $16,200,000 $16.200.000
Additional Retiree
Preminms $4,000,000 36,000,000 37,000,000 $8,000,000

Additional state revenues are based on the current commitment received from the Governor in
2002 and have been approved by the legislature through the end of Fiscal Year 2003. Future
state revenue increases will require legislative appropriation. Additional local agency revenue
represents premium increases to be charged to local agencies. Additional employee contributions
represent employee premiums paid by active employees of the State Fund. Additional retiree

premiums represent premiums paid by retirees either directly or through Sick and Annual Leave
credits.

In addition, PEIA management has assumed that the Retiree Premium Assistance program will
grow as a direct result from the required retiree premium increases in the Financial Plan. The

program’s cost is currently projected to grow from $1.3 million in FY 2002 to $3.5 million in FY
2006, based on the substantial increases in retiree premiums.

E. Provider Reimbursement Changes

PEIA management has reacted to the emerging trends experienced by the program in Fiscal Year
2001 with adjustments to provider reimbursement. These adjustments are detailed in the
following chart with effective dates and expected savings to the program.

Effective FY2002 FY2003
Adinstment Date Savings  Savings
Inpatient Hospital - Move 10 Statewide Standardized Payment 8/122001 § 520,000 $ 1,080,000
Outpatient Hospital - Increase Discount from 42% to 45% 107172001 § 300,000 $ 430,000
RBRVS Technical Correction including RVU 5.26% Reduction 107172001 $2,550,000 $ 3,670,000
Professional Services - Anesthesia - RBRVS RVU reduction of $1.55 10/1/2001 $ 150,000 $ 220,000
Ernst & Young LLP Page 8



Effective FY2002 FY2003
Adlustrment Date Savings Savings
Prescription Drugs - Move to EPN Network 9/1/2001 $1,250,000 § 1,770,000
Other: DME, Ambulance, Speciaity Hospitals 10172001 § 380,000 $ 540,000
Retrospective Claims Adjustment for Global Period 7/172001 $2,000,000 $ 2,160,000
Transfer of Overage from 1% Reserve Amount 7/1/2001 § 800,000 $ 860,000
Other Adjustments including:
1.) Utilization Management Contract Adjustment
2,) Miscellancous Provider Reimbursement Modifications
3.) Other Vender Contracts 1712002 $ 250000 3§ 540,000
Total Projected Savings 58,600,000 $11,270,000

In addition to these changes, recent legislation has mandated that PEIA will reduce hospital
expenses by approximately $12,000,000 beginning in FY 2003. This will be offset by the loss of
the annual direct transfer of approximately $5,800,000, West Virginia PEIA expects substantial
savings beginning in Fiscal Year 2003 as a result of its participation in RXTS, the multi-state drug

purchasing initiative and these projections assume a $6,000,000 annual savings beginning in
Fiscal Year 2003.

FISCAL YEAR 2002 FORECAST

The financial forecast for Fiscal Year 2002 under the Baseline Scenario is artached in Appendix
A. For comparative purposes we have attached the five previous projections for Fiscal Year
2002 beginning with the December 2000 Financial Plan and ending with the December 2001
Financial Plan adopted by the Board. These projections can be found in Appendix B.

Key trend assumptions for the Baseline Scenario can be found at the bottom of each fiscal year
projection. The updated Baseline forecast for Fiscal Year 2002, projects accrued revenue of
$431,607,776 and incurred plan expenses of $449,960,975 to produce a fiscal year deficit of
$18,353,200. The Fiscal Year deficit was originally projected to be $8,086,467 in the December
Financial Plan based on revenue and expense data through October. This deterioration of
310,267,000 wes largely based on a $9,700,000 increase in the projected expenses. This change
is made up of a $6,100,000 increase in medical claims, a $7,000,000 increase in drug claims, but
was somewhat offset by a $1,200,000 decrease in the Managed Care Capitations. As a result of
these changes Fisca! Year results in the State Fund decreased from a deficit of $4,400,000 to a

deficit of $16,100,000, while the Active Local Fund increased from a deficit of $3,700,000 to a
deficit of $2,200,000.
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Under the Baseline Scenario, Fiscal Year 2002 is projected to end with a reserve of $46,659.896.
Under the Optimistic Scenario, which assumes trends 2% lower than the Baseline Scenario, -t.he
ending reserve is expected to increase to $50,368,931. Under the Pessimistic Scenario, which
assumes trends 2% greater than the Baseline Scenario, the ending reserve is expected to decrease
to $42,970,032. Please note that the alternative scenarios are no longer attached 1o the report as
requested by the Finance Board. This modification was made in an attempt to achieve some
brevity to the report.

FISCAL YEAR 2003 FORECAST

The financial forecast for Fiscal Year 2003 under the Baseline scenario is presented in Appendix
A. The Baseline forecast for Fiscal Year 2003, projects accrued revenue of $490,947,437 and
incurred plan expenses of $488,543,149 to produce a fiscal year surplus of $2,404,288. This
deficit was projected to be a $8,245,933 surplus in the December Financial Plan.

Under the Baseline Scenario, Fiscal Year 2003 is projected to end with a reserve of $49,064,185.

Under the Optimistic Scenario, the ending reserve is expected to increase to $64,074,886 and
under the Pessimistic Scenario, the ending reserve is expected to decrease to $33,951,229.

FISCAL YEAR 2004 FORECAST

The financial forecast for Fiscal Year 2004 under the Baseline scenario is presented in Appendix
A. The Baseline forecast for Fiscal Year 2004, projects accrued revenue of $564,686,960 and
incurred plan expenses of $553,139,199 to produce a fiscal year surplus of $11,547,761. This
surplus was projected to be $14,658,124 in the December Financial Plan, however the current
revenue projection is approximately $7,600.000 less than the prior projection.

Under the Baseline Scenario, Fiscal Year 2004 is projected to end with a reserve of $60,611,945.
Under the Optimistic Scenario, the ending reserve is expected to increase to $96,818,687 and
under the Pessimistic Scenario, the ending reserve is expected to decrease to $23,707,693.

FISCAL YEAR 2005 FORECAST

The financial forecast for Fiscal Year 2005 under the Baseline scengrio is presented in Appendix
A. The Baseline forecast for Fiscal Year 2005, projects accrued revenue of $637,175,939 and
incurred plan expenses of $630,836,326 to produce a fiscal year surplus of $6,339,613. This
surplus was projected to be $6,659,557 in the December Financial Plan.

Under the Baseline Scenario, Fiscal Year 2005 is projected to end with a reserve of $66,951,558.
Under the Optimistic Scenario, the ending reserve is expected to increase to $137,017,180 and
under the Pessimistic Scenario, the ending reserve is expected to decrease to (35,358,759).
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FISCAL YEAR 2006 FORECAST

The financial forecast for Fiscal Year 2006 under the Baseline scenario is presented in Appendix
A. The Baseline forecast for Fiscal Year 2006, projects accrued revenue of $719,604,308 and
incurred plan expenses of $724,796,601 to produce a fiscal year deficit of $5,192,293. This
deficit was projected to be $7,686,896 in the December Financial Plan.

Under the Baseline Scenario, Fiscal Year 2006 is projected to end with a reserve of $61,759,265.
Under the Optimistic Scenario, the ending reserve is expected to increase to $181,950,676 and
under the Pessimistic Scenario, the ending reserve is expected to decrease to ($63,856,964).

It should be noted that under the Baseline Scenario that the updated ending reserve does not meet
the 10% of program expenses as required by the PEJA statute by the amount of $10,720,395.

LITIGATION

The forecasts presented in the attached tables do not contemplate any additional revenues or
expenses 10 be generated from litigation activities.

DATA CONCERNS

1. There continues to be a problem identifying non-Medicare claims for retirees whose
premiums are the obligation of their prior employing unit. Additionally, the retiree
enrollment data needs to accurately identify the retiree as formerly a local or state
employee.

2. Changes in the enrollment system has resulted in increased difficulty for PEIA to report
accurately and consistently the number of coverages under each coverage category.

SUMMARY

We are forecasting that the Plan will continue to have modest surpluses through the projection
period ending with Fiscal Year 2006 using the Baseline assumptions. Beginning in Fiscal Year
2006, PEIA will not meet the required 10% reserve target and the Finance Board may want to
consider altenative actions. These surplus projections are based on significant revenue increases
projected by PEIA and are contingent on legislative approval. These forecasts are based on
assumptions including the estimated cost and savings of plan changes, expected trend levels and
exposure levels, The continued enrollment changes of the managed care options, changes in
physician, ambulatory and hospital provider reimbursement; possible changes in methodology of
managed care premium calculation; and changes in the prescription drug program, can be
expected to further exacerbate the difficulty of projecting future medical and drug claim levels
and lags. These projections do not incorporate any anticipated effects of national or state health
care reform, such as Medicare and Medicaid reform. As such, actual results deviating from those
amounts projected in these pages should not be uncxpected. With the advent of a five-year
projection, it should be assumed that constant modifications would be required.

Emst & Young 1P Page 11



APPENDIX &
BASELINE SCENARIO

WEST VIRGINIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES INSURANCE AGENCY
FINANCIAL FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR 2002

PERIOD 7/1/2001 - 6/30/2002

- - - '

Active
Local Retirees State PEIA
Fund Fund Fund Total
Revenues
Employsr Premiums - PPB $ 35,784,743 | § - 252,652,501 288,437,334
Employer Premiums - MCO 2,819,750 - 42,517.217 45,335,976
Employes Premiums - PPB . 32,802,269 39,466,199 72,388,488
Employes Premiums - MCO 1,488,534 9,376.550 10.885,084
Direct Transters - - 5£,800.000 5.800.000
Investmert Income 273,857 2,792,447 3.0885.403
Retires Subsidy Revenue 2,214,680 2.214,880
Adminigirative Fees 340,250 3,178,800 3,518.850
Total Revenue 3 39218700 | 36,605,483 355,783.804 431,807,778
]
Medicel Claims 3 22,837,086 [ $ 65,682,985 181,254,857 270,784,878
Prescription Drug Claims 6.155.837 49,825,621 52,097,837 108.079.085
Managed Care Capitations 2.030,558 3,380.511 41,418,831 48,800,000
Administration 1,479,188 1,350,028 13,570.808 18,400.001
LHe Insutance 509.583 447.748 4,439,672 5.387.001
Wellness - . 1,000,000 1.000.000
Retiras Assistance Program . 1,200,000 - 1,300,000
Director's Discretionary Fund 15.188 81.815 123,188 200.000
Total Expenses $ 32,827,182 | $ 123.228,504 203,905,289 449,880,875
Retires Subsidy Allocations 3 8.800,567 | $ (86.623.041) 78.022.474 -
Fiscal Year Results $ {2.208.041)| $ {16.144,159) (18.353.200)
hBeginrﬂng Plan Resarve 4,885,084 - 80.120,012 65.013.086
Ending Plan Ressarve $ 2678043 |3 . 43,983,853 48,650,806
_ _ KEY ASSUMPTIONS .
Additional State Employer Premmms  § . Claim and Other Expense Trends |
Additional Local Agency Revenus~~ § - |Eligioilty Medical Drugs
Addltional State Premums § - |Non-Medicare 8.5% 23.093
Additional Retirest Premiums 8 - [Medicare 7.0% 21.0%
Savings from Benafit Reductions $ - [Capitations 4.0%
[Number of Net New Retiress 1.000 |Administrative Expense 8.0%
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APPENDIX A
BASELINE SCENARIO

WEST VIRGINIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES INSURANCE AGENCY
FINANCIAL FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR 2003

PERIOD 7/172002 - 6/30/2003

Active :
Locsal Retirees State PEIA
Fund Fund Fund Total
Revenues
Employer Premiums - PPB 3 43.283.101 . 284.322.991 327,616,092
Employer Premtums - MCO 3.411.401 - A7.848.817 51.258.218
Empioyes Premiums - PPB - 38,713,353 51,344,178 80.057,531
Employse Pramiums - MCO - 1,751.434 12,188,571 13.850,005
Direct Transters - - - -
Investment Incoms 177.846 1.886.376 2.066.321
Retiree Subsidy Revenue 2.480.420 2.480.420
Admiristrative Fees 340,250 3,178,600 3.518,850
Total Revenue $ 47 222 698 42,845.207 400,779,533 480,847 437
Medical Claims $ 24,588,405 70.670.780 189,875,413 285,214,508
Prescription Drug Claims 7.381.400 88,572.685 60,477,603 126,441,689
Managed Cara Capitations 2,162,544 3.588.204 44,111,162 49,842,000
Administration 1.508.752 1.377.027 13.842,222 18.728.001
Lite Insurance 535,062 470,133 4,661.856 5.886.851
Wellhess . - 1.000.000 1,000,000
Retiree Assistance Program - 1.850.000 - 1.850,000
Director's Discrationary Fund 155,274 827,918 1.216.808 2,000,000
Total Expenses g 36.321.437 138,935.849 315.284.882 488,543,140
Retires Subsidy Allocations $ 9,807,404 (93.881.643) 84.084.239 -
Fiscal Year Results 8 9983.857 1410432 2,404,288
Beginning Plan Reserve 2,676,043 . 43,983,853 48,858,886
Ending Plan Ressrve $ 3.689.900 - 45,354,284 48,084,185
KEY ASSUMPTIONS _ _
Additiona! State Employer Premums . § 37.000.030 Clatm and Other Expense Trends __ 1
Additional Local Agency Revenus $ 8.100.000 [Eliqibility Medical Prucs
Addltional State Employes Promiums ~ $ 14,700,000 |Non-Medicare 02.5% 23.0%
Additional Retires Premiyms $ 4,000,000 {Medicare 7.0% 21.0%
Savings from Relmbursement Changes $ 15.000.000 [Captiations 8.5%
Number of Net New Retirags 1.000 |Administrative Expensa 2.0%
Ernst & Young LLP Prepared 42052002



ArFENUIA A
BASELINE SCENARIO

WEST VIRGINIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES INSURANCE AGENCY
FINANCIAL FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR 2004

PERIOD 7172003 - 6/30/2004

Active
Local Retirees State PEIA
Fund Fund Fund Total
Revenupg
Employer Premums - PPB g 80,708,763 | § - 320273,175 370.881,838
Employer Premiums - MCO 3,885,738 - 83.888.833 57.852.372
Employea Premiums - PPB - 46,918.819 83.222,157 110,138.976
Employes Premiums - MCO 2,122,588 18,020,582 17,143,160
Dirsct Transfers - - - -
Investmant Income 212,809 2,020,685 2,233,504
Retires Subsidy Revenue 2,778,070 2.778.070
Administretive Fess 340,250 3.178.800 3.518.850
Total Reverue L3 55257681 | % 51,817,457 457,611,843 584,688,960
Medical Claims $ 26,960.819 | § 78,770,843 208.544.370 314285032
Prescription Drug Claims B.112,0681 73,489,480 74,558,321 157,157,842
Managed Cara Capitations 2,303.109 3.800.233 46,978,388 §3.081.730
Administration 1.584,180 1,445,878 14,534,333 17.564.401
Lite [nsurance 561,815 483,840 4,804,739 6,850,194
Woellness - - 1.000,000 1,000,000
Retires Assistanca Program - 2,100,000 - 2,100.000
Director's Digcretionary Fund 153,070 643,933 1,200,807 2.000.000
Total Expenses 3 40,864,084 | 5 160,745,987 351,700,148 553,136,189
Retiree Subsidy Allocations $ 11,738,184 | § (108,928,530} 97,192,337 .
Fiscal Year Reaults $ 2837403 (8 - 8,710,358 11.547.761
Beginning Plan Reserve 3,889,900 . 45,384,284 40,084,185
Ending Plan Reserve 3 8,507,303 | § - 54,104,643 80.611.845
_ KEY ASSUMPTIONS _
Additional Stata Employer Premmims . § 42,000,000 Claim and Other Expense Trends
Additional Local Agency Reverus 3 8.000.000 |Eligibfltty Medical Drugs
Additional State Employee Premiums  $ 14,700,000 |Nen-Medicare 10.0% 23.5%
Addltional Retfras Premitms $ 6,000,000 {Medicers 7.8% 21.5%
Savings from Benefit Retuctions $ - [|Capitations 8.5%
Number of Net New Retiress 1,000 |Administrative Expense 5.0%
Ermat & Young LLP Propared €/20/2002
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BASELINE SCENARIO
WEST VIRGINIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES INSURANCE AGENCY

FINANCIAL FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR 2005

PERIOD 7/172004 - 6/30/2005

Active
Loeal Retirees State PEIA
Fund Fund Fund Total
Reverues
Employsr Premiums - PPB $ 56270510 | & - 354,511,445 410,781,955
Employer Premivms - MCO 4,433,002 - 58,858,383 64,082,355
Employes Premiurms - PP8 - 58,077,002 76,312,174 132,389,178
Employss Pramitms - MCO - 2.538.985 18,130.575 20,867,560
Direct Transfers - - - -
Investment Income 289,870 2,324,735 2,614,805
Retireg Subsidy Reverus 3,111,438 3,111,438
Atiministrative Fees 340,250 3.178.600 3,518,850
Tot! Revenue 3 61.334.622 | & 61,725,425 514.115.882 637,175,939
|Proaram Expenses
Medlcal Claims $ 20740857 | $ 88,140,646 220,871,448 347.852.951
Prescription Drug Claims 11,278,854 92,486,791 92,285,363 106,061,008
Managed Care Capitations 2.452.811 4047248 50.031.983 58,532,042
Administretion 1.8683.400 1.518,172 15.261.080 18,442 622
Life Insurance 589.808 818.322 5,138.478 6.247,704
Waellness - - 1.000.000 1,000,000
Rstires Asaistance Program - 2.700.000 - 2,700,000
Director's Discrationary Fund 150,832 6884.213 1.184,855 2.000.000
"Total Expenses $ 45,876,660 | $ 180,085,391 384,874,275 630.836.328
Retiree Subsidy Allotations $ 13.881,208 (1 % (128.355.886) 114.678.688 -
Fiscal Yedr Results 3 1.776.664 | $ - 4,562,840 8,339.6813
Beginning Plan Ressrve 8.507.303 54,104,643 60,611.845
Ending Plan Reserve $ 8.283.967 | $ - 58,667,592 €8,951.558
_ KEY ASSUMPTIONS _
Additioral State Employer Premiums . § 40,000.000 Clalm and Other Expensea Trands |
Additional Local Agency Revenue 3 8.000,000 |Elinibility Medical Drugs
Addltiona! State Employes Premiums  § 16.200.000 |Non-Msdicara 10.5% 24.0%
Additionsl Ratirea Pramh.[rm $ 7.000.000 |Medicare 8.0% 22,0%
Savings from Benefit Reductions $ ~  |Capitations 8.56%.
[Number of Net New Retiress 1.000 |Administrative Expense 5.0%
Ernst & Young LLP Pregared £20/2002
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BASELINE SCENARIO
WEST VIRGINIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES INSURANCE AGENCY

FINANCIAL FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR 2006

PERIOQD 7/172005 - 6/30/2006

Actlve -
Local Retirees State PEIA
Fund Fund Fund Total
Employar Premiums - PPB 82.750.214 - 305,597,369 458,355,583
Employer Pramboms - MCO 4,845 287 - 66,572,438 71,517.726
Employes Premiums - PPB - 68,183,902 89.402,181 155,586,083
Employee Premiums - MCO - 2.884,885 21,240,588 24,235,243
Direct Transferg - - - -
Investment Income 345,085 2,549,807 2.885.002
Retires Subsidy Reverus 3.484.811 3.484.811
Administrative Fees 340,250 3,178.800 3,518.850
Total Revenue 68,388.848 72,673.308 578,541,084 718,604,308
Medical Claims 32,845,369 88.010,800 284,780,381 388.708.620
Prescription Drug Claims 14,017,311 116,783,348 114,691,845 245,502 504
Marnaged Care Capitations 2,612,244 4,310,218 53.284,062 60.208,625
Administration 1,748,570 1.584,081 16.024,103 10.364,754
Life Insyrance 815,401 544 238 5,380,480 6,580,088
Waellness - - 1,000,000 1,000,000
Retires Assigtance Program - 3.458,000 - 3.458,000
Director's Discrationary Fund 148,567 882,699 1,168,734 2,000,000
Total Expenses 82,089,461 226,391,585 448,315,555 724,798,601
Retires Subsidy Allscations 16.250,210 {153.718.187) 137,487,977 -
Fiscal Year Rasults 80175158 - {5.242.468) (5.192,.283)
Beginning Plan Reserve 8.283,887 - 58,667,602 66,851,958
Erding Plan Reserve $ 8,334,141 |3 - s 53425124 | $ 61,759.2685
KEY ASSUMPTIONS _ _
Additional State Employer Prermiums . § 48,000,000 Clalm and Other Expense Trernts
Addltional Local Agency Reverue ~ § 7,000,000 (Elicisiity Medica| “Dnms
Additional State Employes Premtums = $ 18.200,000 |Non-Medicare 11.0% 24.5%
Additional Retiress Premiums $ 8,000,000 [Medicare 8.5% 28%
Savings from Banafit Reductions $ ~ [Caphations 8.8%
Number of Net New Retiress 1,000 JAdministrative Expense 5.0%
Ermuat & Young [ LP Prenated 4202002
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APPENDIX B-1
Financial Plan for Fiscal Years 2002-2005
Report Date: December 2000

TABLE B

WEST VIRGINIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES INSURANCE AGENCY

INCURRED FINANCIAL FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR 2002

PERIOD 7/1/2001 - 6/30/2002

| Terminated Active
; i Laocal Logal Retirees State PEIA
St = Fund Fund Fund | Fund | Total
| |
Accrued Premium — Indemnity 50 | $27.586344 | 535,791,240 | 5231948958 | § 295326.552
Accrued Premium — Managed Care 0 4,828,857 1,989,563 | 75,552,613 £2,371.033
Employee Contributions — Indemnity [ 0 283,124 0| 30,190,198 30,473,322
LEmployee Coutributions — Manaped Care 0 40,706 0 15941127 15,981,833
Retiree Subsidy Revenus 1.355.07 0 0 0 1,355,071
[Retiree Assistance Program l 0 0| 1,027 o| 1032723
|
Claims - Indemnity Program 0] 23.204.740 | 116,242,139 | 191361.676 330,808,555
|Capitations — Managed Care [ 0 2939372 4,102316 | 67,838312 74.880.000
Administration 0 1,482,278 1,352,863 13,599,332 16,434 473
Life Insurance | 0 472.694 415334 4,118,286 3,006314
Discretionary Fund | 0| 143,819 668,052 1,188,129 2,000,000
Wellness Program | 0 0 0 2,129 460 2.129 450
| Retiree Subaidy | 1,944,176 7,125,192 | (86,032,625)| 76,963,256 0
Lacal Terminated Retiree Charge | Q 539,187 0
FISCAL YEAR RESULTS $0 | ($2,678,981) 50 | (84,104,733)( (56,783,714)
BEGINNING PLAN RESERVE (6260000 5822497 66657364 | 71,853,861
ENDING PLAN RESERVE (8626000 §3.143.516 3625526831 | $E5070.147
=
Lrend Assumpiiany
Medicars NosDrugs 1.0%
NonMedlcare NonDrugs %.0%
Medlesre Droga 17884
NonMedlesrs Drugs 15.5%
Mansged Care Capltatinns d.0%s
Adminirtrative Expanss 5.0%

Dt Prepared: 12/22/2000 Emat & Young LLP



APPENDIX B-2
Decembar 31, 2000 Quarteriy Report

TABLE B

WEST VIRGINIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES INSURANCE AGENCY
INCURRED FINANCIAL FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR 2002

PERIOD 7/1/2001 - 6/30/2002

i Terminated Active
Local Local Reilrees State PEIA
Fund Fund Fund Furd Tatal
Accruetd Premium — Indempity $0 | $27,786,859 | $34,625.725 | $233,621,983 | § 296,034,567
Accrued Premium — Managed Care 0 4,863,956 1,924,774 | 76,097,563 82,886,293
| Empioyee Contributions — Indemnity 0 285,182 0 30,317,942 30.603,124
Employee Contributions — Managed Care 0 41,002 0 16,008,579 16,049,581
Retiree Subsidy Revenye 1,626,085 ¢ 1] 0 1,626,085
Retiree Assistance Program 0 0 1,300,000 0 1,300,000
Claims — Indem_nity Program D 22,509,009 112,272 361 197,585,871 332,367,241
Cipitations — Managed Care 0 2,939,372 4,102,316 67,838,312 74,880,000
Administration 0 1,482,278 1,352,863 | 13,599,332 16,434,473
Life Insurance 0 472,694 415,334 4,118,286 5,006,314
Discretionary Fund 0 143,819 668,052 1,188,129 2,000,000
]
Wellness Program 0 0 o 2,129,460 2,125,460
Retiree Subsidy 1,875,382 6,924,339 | (83,560,427)| 74,760,705 | 0
Local Terminated Retiree Charge (249.257) 21133 0 228.164 1]
e e b Sy e [T R T e T T e T
FISCAL YEAR RESULTS 30 | ($1,515,645) s0 (%5,402,193) ($6,917,838)
BEGINNING PLAN RESERVE 626,000y  2.834.250 13,137,523 80,345,773
ENDING PLAN RESERVE 5626000y 36318605 267735330 313427933
Lo Asyuoaption
Medicare NouDrugs 10.0%
NonMedlcare NonDrogs LN L
Medicare Drugs 195%
NonMedicars Drugs 175%
Mansged Care Capitatiom 4.0%
Administrative ¥ yymmme LA L
D Prepmme 4 gLl il [T
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APPENDIX B-3
March 31, 2001 Quarterly Report

TABLE B

WEST VIRGINIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES INSURANCE AGENCY
INCURRED FINANCIAL FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR 2002

PERIOD 7/1/2001 - 6/30/2002

Terminated Active
Local Local Retirees State PEIA
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
Accrued Premium — Indemnity 50 | $27,786,859 334,625,725 | $233.621.983 | § 296,034 567
Accrued Preminm — Manaped Care 0 4,863,956 1,924,774 76,097,563 82,886,293
Employee Contributions — Indemaity 0 285,182 0 30,317,942 30,603,124
Employee Contributions ~ Managed Care o 41,002 0 16,008,579 16,049,581
Retiree Subsidy Revenue 1,626,085 0 0 0 1,628,085
Retiree Assistance Program 0 0 1,300,000 1] 1,300,000
Claims — Indemnity Program 0 24244372 | 118,918,680 200,498 281 343,661,333
Capitations — Managed Care 0 2,939.372 4,102,316 67,838,312 74,880,000
Administration 0 1.482.278 1,352,863 13,599,332 16,434,473
lLiI‘e Insurance I 0 472,694 415,334 4,118,286 5,006,314
i
Discretionary Fund 0 143,819 668,052 1,188,129 2,000,000
Wellness Program 0 0 0 2,129,460 2,129,460
Retiree Subsidy 1,875,182 7,487,739 |  (90,206,746) 80,843,625 0
Local Terminated Retiree Charge

FISCAL YEAR RESULTS 80 | (53,814,408) 30 | ($14,397,522)( ($18,21 1,930)
BEGINNING PLAN RESERVE {626 000) 5,954,246 59697083 65,026,199
lmm G PLAN RESERVE (3626000 §2.139.838 282200431 | 46814260
L Aviumptic
Medleares NonDrugy 10.0%
NonMedicare NonDrugs 8.0%
Medicare Droge 19.5%
NonMedicare Drugs 1758
Managed Care Capitations d
|_ Adminitrative Experse 5.0%
Dare Prepared: 6/22:2001 Emat & Young LLF




June 30, 2001 Fiscal Year Raport

TABLE B

WEST VIRGINTIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES INSURANCE AGENCY
INCURRED FINANCIAL FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR 2002

PERIOD 7/1/2001 - 6/30/2002
i Terminated Active
Local Local Retirees State PEIA
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total
Accrued Premium — Indemnlty $0 | 834,767,973 | $36,2135,761 | $261,589,540¢| § 332,573,274
Accrued Premium — Maraged Care 1] 2,856,442 1,404,564 43,179,317 47,440,323
Empioyee Contributions — Indemnity 1] 398,869 0 40,576,193 40,975,062
Employee Contributions — Managed Care ¢ 11,848 0 9,764,064 9.775.912
Retiree Subsidy Revenue 1,626,085 0 0 0 1.626.085
Retiree Assistance Program 0 0 1,300,000 0 1.300,000
Claims — Indemnity Program 0| 28,671,500 ' 113922979 220,409,244 363.0031.723
Capitations — Managed Care o 2,408,123 1,142,240 44,445,637 48,000,000
Admigistration 8 1,479,169 1,350,026 13,570,807 16,400,002
| Life Insurance Q0 500,396 439,674 4,359,636 5,290,706
Diseretionary Fund 0 143,819 668,052 1,188,129 2,000,000
Wellness Program 0 o 0 1,600,000 1,000,000
Retiree Subsidy 1,875,382 7,674,595 | (81,202,646) 71,652,669 0
Local Terminated Retiree Charge (249.297) 24118 0 225179 4]
o el T i e L e - i Dby = ] T
FISCAL YEAR RESULTS 30 | (%2,866,589) 50 (51,746,186) ($4,612,775)
BEGINNING PLAN RESERVE {626,000} S.198.084 60,441,012 65,013,096
ENDING PLAN RESERVE (3626.000}| $2.331,495 828504828 | §60.40032]
[Tr
Teid Asvumpiens
Medicare NonDrugs 10.0%
NonMedleare NonDrugy B.0%
Medlcare Drugs 19.5%
NonMedlcare Drugs 17.8%
Managed Care Capltatlons -EinY%
Ad.lnll:.lltrtdv: Emﬂl- u-ﬁ
Dmis Prepmred: 1041172007 Esust & Young LLP
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Financial Plan for Fiscal Years 2002-2006
' Report Date: December 2001
WEST VIRGINIA PUBLIC EMPLOYEES INSURANCE AGENCY
l FINANCIAL FORECAST
l FISCAL YEAR 2002
I PERIOD 7/1/2001 - 6/30/2002
Active
' Local Retirees State PEIA
Fund Fund Fund Total
. Employe Premiums - FPH 5 33,796,766 | % 5 254,282 307 288,079,073
Empioyer Premiusms - MOD 2,776,650 - 41,973,148 44,749 798
Emploves Premiams - PPR 337,727 35,235,844 39,442,739 75,066.310
Employee Premiums - MCO 11,517 1,366,560 9491 315 10,869,392
Direct Transfers = - 5,000,000 5,000,000
Investment Income 296338 2,931,455 3,227,793
. Retiree Subsidy Revenue 1,626,085 1,626,085
5 Adminismative Fees 340,250 11786 3,518,850
. Total Revenue 3 37,609.248 | 5 38228489 | 3 156,299 554 432,137,304
Erigtom Expenaes
l Wadizal Cladmy L 1 23,2103% | & 66,774,134 | § 174,732,008 264,716,536
Preseription Drug Clapms 5,733,775 47,591,654 47,762,097 101,087,526
finmaged Care Capmnons 2,408,123 1,142,240 44,449 637 48,000,000
I Admnissration 1,517,050 1,384,599 13,918,351 16,820,000
Life Insurance 500,396 439,674 4,359,636 5,299,706
Wellnsis . - 1,000,000 1,000,000
Renree Assiiance Program . 1,300,000 - 1,300,000
Lrirezior's Dicrenonsry. Fund 158,250 625,284 1,216,466 2,000,600
. Tod! Bxpenses i 33,527,988 | % 119,257,586 | § 287,438,195 440,223,768
I Retiree Subsidy Allocations S 1,736,419 | § (81,029,097 § 73,292 678
Fiscal Year Results g (3,655,158 % L1 (44313100 (8,086,467]|l
' [Beginning Plan Reserve 4,385,084 60,128,012 65,013,096
I Ending Plan Reserve 5 1,229,926 | & = L] 55,696,702 56,926,629
KEY ASSUMPTIONS
I Additonal Staie Empiover Premioms § Claim nod Other Expense Treods
Additional Local Ageney Revenue s + |Eiigihimy Medicat Dmags
Additremal State Employes Premiums $ - [Moo-Medicae 10.0%% 189,08
Additional Hetres Premums L3 IMMIm .0 21.0%
' Savings from Benefit Reductions s Capitatiaes 4.0
{Number of Mew Rtiress 1000 | Administratove Expense 6.0
l Erust & Young LLP Prepared 12/18/2001
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April 18, 2002

Hard Decisions for Employers as Costs Soar in
Health Care

By REED ABELSON

mployers are bracing for their third year in a row of double-digit increases

wzza 1N health care costs, according to industry consultants and analysts. The
sharply higher costs could lead many employers to offer fewer health plans,
reduce what they cover or shift more costs to employees.

Companies will probably face average increases of 12 to 15 percent in 2003,
compared with a projected increase of 12.7 percent this year, according to

preliminary estimates from Mercer Human Resource Consulting, based on early

discussions some employers are having with insurers.

But costs for sorme employers will rise much more sharply. The California
Public Employees' Retirerent System, known as Calpers, announced yesterday
that premiums for the health maintenance organizations it uses would increase
an average of 25 percent and premiums for other plans would rise around 20
percent.

Some other large employers are being asked to pay as much as twice what they
had been paying, and increases of roughly 25 percent are common, said
Kenneth Sperling, a consultant with Hewitt Associates.

Still, small companies will probably face some of the largest increases,
according to health care experts. If premiums for Calpers, which provides
health insurance to about 1.2 million state and local employees, dependents and
Tetirees, are increasing by 25 percent, "we'll be seeing increases far exceeding
that for small businesses,” said Peter Lee, the president of the Pacific Business
Group on Health, an employers' group that negotiates with health plans.

The steep increases could lead many employers to shift a greater proportion of
health care costs to their workers, some of whom may not be able to afford the
higher premiums and co-payments. Employees "are going to pay a lot more out
of pocket, and we're going to see a huge spike in the number of uninsured,” Mr.
Lee said.

Many health care experts predict that employers could experience double-digit
cost increases for the next several years.

“There is nothing on the horizon that would cause me to think that double-digit

hetp://www.nytimes.com/2002/04/1 8/business/18CAR § .html?pagewanted=print
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Hard Decisions for Employexs as Costs Soar in Health Care

aid Randall K. Abbott, & senior consultant at the

increases are going away, s
at these increases will

consulting company Watson Wyatt, who predicts th
continue three to five years.

The last time annual inCreases of more than 10 percent were common was in the
late 1980's and early 19907, before managed care took hold.

Cost increases slowed or reversed for a few years in the mid- 1990's. But

managed care companies, especially those in California, have now wrung many
easy-to-find costs out of the system, and hospitals facing rising admissions and
increasing labor costs are demanding sharply higber payments from insurers. In
addition, as ever more costly drugs are introduced, prescription COsts are rising

by double-digit percentages each year.

Many managed care companies are now choosing to risk losing 2 contract rather
than holding premiums relatively steady as their Own costs escalate. "They're
not willing to destroy their margins to hold onto their unprofitable business,"
said Andrea Urban, a health care analyst for Merrill Lynch.

Officials at Calpers, which was particularly successful in using its influence to
hold down health-care costs for much of the last decade, see fewer opportunities
now to keep costs down as the population ages and makes greater us¢ of new
drugs and technology. The organization is choosing not to reduce the benefits it

offers or to increase the proportion an employee pays for care, but people
covered through Calpers will still face a substantial increase in their own costs.

Some consultants say California, which was early and enthusiastic in its
embrace of managed care, 1 facing unusual pressures O its health care system

today. "California is a very mature, very competitive 1.M.O. marketplace,”
where cost pressures are particularly acute, Mr. Abbott said.

Calpers officials say, however, that their experience reflects what is happening
around the country as employers struggle with double-digit health care cost
increases at a lime when the overall economy has been weak.

=This is a national problem.” said William Crist, the president of the Calpers
board of administration.

Calpers plans to work with other large employers (O begin discussions with
policy makers in Washington about what, if any, steps the government should

take to address these issues.

"I don't think policy makers have woken up to how bad things are,” Mr. Lee

said.

As part of rethinking its health care strategy, Calpers has also decided to drop
its PacifiCare and HealthNet plans and work more closely with existing plans
through Blue Shield, Kaiser Permanente and some regional insurers.

hitp://www . nytimes com/2002/04/ 18/business/ ] 8CARIL html?pagewanted=print 4/18/2002
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Calpers is also considering other alternatives, including a self-financed health
insurance plan managed by an outside company.

Other employers are expected to follow the example of Calpers and reduce the
number of plans they offer, as long as they do not force too many of their
employees to find new doctors, several consultants said. The employers’
decisions to drop plans could, in turn, force some insurers out of business and
lead others to combine.

"“The industry is going through a consolidation phase, and this will accelerate it
further,” Mr. Sperling said.
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Executive Summary
a———— ———— . |

Introduction and Motlvation

Historically, the southwestern quarter of West Virginia has been heavily dependent on
the mining, preparation, and transport of coal as a basis of economic activity. In recent years, this
dependence has been marginally reduced by laudable efforts to diversify the economies of some
counties, within the overall region. Nonetheless, the sustained production of coal is still of
tremendous importance to regional economics and the commercial vitality of the State as 2
whole. Very few economic relationships are, however, static. Changing conditions in the markets
in which West Virginia coal is bought and sold, combined with increased concerns regarding the
environmental effects of mountaintop mining, may lead to significant reductions in the quantity
of coal produced in southwestern West Virginia. These reductions will, in furn, have pronounced
and prediciable impacts on the economies of coal producing counties.

The current analysis first develops a range of scenarios that reasonably captures
foreseeable changes in coal production within the region. The study next assesses the economic
impacts under each scenario in order to provide policy-makers with the information necessary to
cope with the economic, demographic, and governmental challenges that are likely to stem from
reduced coal mining activity.

To be clear, the cumrent study is notr a benefit-cost analysis that comprehensively
evaluates the aggregate, State-wide (or even national) benefits of any particular policy, nor is it
long-run in nature. Instead, the analysis presented here is offered as a short-run planning tool,
developed with the expectation that the immediate economic consequences and resulting needs
of reduced coal production are likely to fzll most heavily on a relatively small number of West
Yirginians who live and work in the coal field region.

The Study Reglon, Analytical Methodology, and Predicted Outcomes

The study region is comprised of nine southwestern West Virginia counties: Boone,
Fayette, Kanawha, Logan, McDowell, Mingo, Nicholas, Raleigh, and Wyoming. Demographic
and economic statistics summarizing conditions within these counties are provided in Table E.1.
Further information is provided in Chapter 2.
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After defining the study region, the next analytical step involved forecasting coal
production within each study region county under what are viewed as base-line conditions. This
process is described at length in Chapter 4.

Table E.1
1097 1897 Per Caplta 1997 Full and Part
Study Area County Population Income Time Employment
Boone 26,347 317,735 9,436
Fayetto 48,566 15,961 16,540
Kanawha 203,195 24,489 134,345
Lincoln 22,165 12,860 4,514
McDowell 30,558 13,482 7,213
Mingo 32,475 15,923 11,189
Nicholes 27,580 14,743 10,508
Raleigh 78,970 18,421 36,612
Wyoming 27,662 13,816 1214

This base-line scenario does not simply rely on historical production levels in order to
produce estimates of future economic activity. To the contrary, the base-line forecast specifically
accounts for a number of economic factors that are currently affecting the market for study
region coal. These include:

[ The degree to which more stringent clean air standards are leading electricity
producers to substitute natural gas and western coal for coal mined within the
study region.

. Increased international competition from both Columbia and Australia that is
displacing West Virginia coal in both intemational and even domestic markets.

o The probable impacts of electric utility restructuring on the demand for study

region coal.
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The aggregats 5-year base-line forecast for the study region is depicted graphically in
Figure E.1.! The baseline forecast predicts a roughly 7.1 percent decline in coal production in the
study region. This is the expected change in coal production absent any additional regulatory
chenges.

Next, the analysis was modified to predict the county-specific changes in coal production
that may be expected if the Haden decision regarding the disposal of the overburden.? The study
treats the potential impacts of this legal ruling under two differing scenarios. Under the first of
these, those mines that are currently permitted to engage in valley fills would be allowed to do so
until existing permits expire.

Figure E.1
Baseline Forecast
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! The forecasting modsl is discussed at length in Chaptor 4 and Appendix B. Within-sample forecast suggest that the
mode] is able to predict aggregate regional production with little more than 2% error.

? Patricia Bragg, et al, Plaintiffs, vs. Colonsl Dana Robertson, et al, Defendants. Civil Action 2:98-0636, U.S.
District Court for Southern West Virginia, Charleston Division This decision, currently umder review at the Fourth
U.S. District Court of Appeals, interprets the Clean Water Act to prohibit the use of valley fills that distrb any
segment of a full or intermittent stream.

E-3



However, no additional valley fill permits would be issued.” The second scenario would
eliminate all mountaintop operations immediately if the Haden decision is upheld. While this
latter sqgnaﬁo may seem exirerne, it represents a “worst case” outcome and, therefore, is useful
in bounding the economic potential impacts of reduced surface mining.* The most likely results
of the Haden decision lie between the base case and the worse case of immediate cessation.
Predicted regional coal production under the two Haden scenarios are combined with the
baseline forecast in Figure E.2,

The final analytical step involves converting the predicted reductions in coal preduction
into more general economic outcomes for each of the study region counties. First-year impacts
on employment, incomes, and aggrogate economic activities are summarized for the study region
in Table E.2.7

Figure E.2
Simulations
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70,000,000 F--c - =--rsreresrrecosaseccacea iMool
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Tons of Coal, (all types)

= = Phase-|n =——=Restrictive

3ForemnonﬁcreasonsdiscmwdwithinChapm3, wa Irave operated under the asstnmption that coal producers
would not seek permits for the measurably smaller mountaintop mining operations that may be permissible under
the Haden ruling.

* Importantly, the cost complementarities that exist in the preparetion and transportation of combined surface and
underground mining outputs are captured within the forecasts. Thus, reductions in surface mining also decrease
underground quantities by increasing the cost of undergrommd mining.

* Economic impacts were generated through the application of regional simulation so ftware developed by IMPLAN,
Inc. A full range of county-specific economic profiles and predicted impacts are provided in A ppendix D.
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Table E.2

Immediate
Gradual Cassation of
Baseline Implementation of Mountaintop
Predicted Changes Forecast Haden Ruling Mining
Regional Employment -1,646 (-.8%) 3,575 (-1.8%) ~10,632 (-5.3%)
Regional Incomes =558 M (-1.1%) -$124M (-23%) -$281 M (-5.3%)
Aggregate Regional Economic  -$264 M (-1.2%) ~$620 M (-2.9%) 51,765 M (-8.1%5)
Activity
Boone County Fayetto County
Predicted Changies Baseline  Phase-n  Restrictive | Bassline Phase-n
Comty Employmant -85 -255 -1716 1 -256 -984
County Incomes (in millions) -$3.7 574 -$73.7 $0.1 -$8.7 -533.1
Aggregato County Beonomic
Activity (in millions) 5164 -$96.5 -$330.2 $02 -$40.8 51588
Kanawha County Logan County
Besgline Phese-ln  Restrictive | Baseline Phass-in  Restrictive
Comnty Employment 9 -1033 -3088 -727 ~§53 -1896
County Incomes (in millions) $0.4 -$373 -$111.4 -526.7 -$329 -$69.7
Aguregate County Economic
Activity (In millions) $1.6 $02 84804 | -$1164  -$1432 -§303.7
McBDowell County Mingo County
Beseline  Phase-in  Restrictive Phage-In _ Restrictive
County Employmsnt -26 -58 -253 176 295 1004
Couuty Incomes (fn millions) -$0.9 -$1.8 -$83 $7.0 $11.7 $39.7
Aggregate County Economic
Activity (in millions) $4.4 -$9.8 $42.6 -$32.6 -$542 -$185.1
Nicholas County Raleigh County
Basgline Phase-in  Restrictive | Bassliine Phase-ln  Resirictive
County Employment 627 662 -861 69 45 -106
County Incomes (n millions) 5195 5202 5263 522 314 -834
Aggregate County Economic
Activity (in millions) -$90.9 $90.9 81185 $9.5 $6.0 $14.7
Wyoming County
Bassline  Phase-In
County Employment -34 -168 <T24
County Incomes (in millions) -83.1 -86.2 -526.8
Aggregate County Economic
Activity (in millions) -$15.0 -$30.4 -§131.5
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There are several important points to be noted in connection with these results. First, even
under the baseline forecast, the competitive forces currently impacting markets for study region
coal are predicted to lead to reduced coal industry employment. This outcome is consistent with
recent trends that have witnessed falling industry employment for the last several years. It also
suggests that, even under the best possible circumstances, continued reliance on coal production
as a base of economic activity may generate economic hardships that require a public-policy
response.

Secondly, the impacts of the more modest Haden scenario are pronomnced. Even if
current permits remain in force, the ruling is predicted to more than double the anticipated
declines in study region employment, Moreover, if mountaintop mining is curtailed immediately
and entirely as a result of the Haden decision, the associated impacts will be devastating to many
of the study region counties. In aggregate, the more than 10,500 predicted job losses represents a
5.3% decline regional employment.® However, within the most coal-dependent counties, the
predicted impacts of curtailing mountaintop mining are much more severe. For example, in
Logan County the nearly 1,900 job losses represent more than 12% of total current employment.
In Boone County the predicted 1,700 job losses amounts to aver 18% of total employment.

Finally, the economic impact results are based on changing coal production in the first
forecast year. Thus, these predictions do not reflect the full magnitude of the economic changes
that may be expected over the long-run. Instead, they capture the most immediate impacts on the
most vulnerable segment of the State’s population. The compounded impact of reduced coal
production over a multi-year period is likely to generate more extreme results that will almost
certainly impact every West Virginian.

® The reader will recall that the study region includes K anawha County in which many of the estimated 135,000 jobs
aro largely insulated from fluctuations in coal-related economic activity.
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- Concluslons

Again, the analysis described within the remainder of this document is, by no means
comprehensive. By design, it explicitly ignores the external costs associated with various forms of coal
mining. The current study is also short-run in nature, Differences in how competing policy options may
affect the Jong-run economic well-being of the study region are not considered. Finally, the analysis
presented here focuses entirely on nine coal producing counties rather than on the Stats as a whole,

Importantly, however, none of these qualifications negate the value of the information developed
within this investigation. To the contrary, we believe the study answers a very important question — how
will foreseeable changes in regional coal production affect the economic Jives of those who live and work
in the coal field region in the near term. Appropriately formed public policy may rest on the outcome of
broad-based, long-run benefit-cost analyses. But it is the shori~run impacts of these policies on a localized
constituency that is likely to pose the greatest challenge for area residents, business leaders, and policy-
makers, Long-run oufcomes are much more easily planned for than immediate economic distress.

Unfortunately, some level of distress appears inevitable. Even if the Haden decision is not upheld,
market pressures attributable to increased international competition, more stringent air quality standards,
and electric utility restructuring are likely to yield reductions in regional ceal production and accelerating
reductions in coal-related employment. This outcome mny be reversed at some point in the future, but in
the near-term, the vitality of the region’s coal production is highly suspect. If the Haden ruling is upheld,
distress may give way to crisis in the most coal-dependent counties and the region as a whole will be
noticeably impacted.

Finally, while the analysis described here depicts probable impacts on employment, incomes, and
aggrogate economic activity, the economic and non-economic effects of reduced coal production extend
well beyond these outcome measures. Reduced economic activity diminishes the ability of State and local
governments to develop revenues at a time when demands on public services may be measurably
increased. Certainly, in the long-run, these decreased tax revenues may be partially balanced by out-
migration and a reduction in the number of residents requiring government services, but in the short-run,
govermmnent’s ability to cope with the effects of economic distress is likely to be constrained by the same
economic conditions that heighton needs.



Chapter 1 - Introduction and Motivation

If there is any single element that defines the bounds of a regional ecoromy, it is the
intensity of the interrelationships that inexorably bind the economic fate of one group to the
well-being of all others. Thus, as policy-makers ponder the potentizl impacts of reduced coal
production in West Virginia’s southwestern counties, there is a clear understanding that the
foreseeable decline in coal-related economic activity will very quickly affect the nature and
magnitude of all other commercial activity within the region. This conclusion is hardly in need of
validation by the academic community. Coal mines and miners’ pay define the southern coal
field region of the State.

Most of those concemmned also imderstand that the markets in which West Virginia’s coal
is sold are changing rapidly. Increasingly stringent domestic and intemational air quality
standards are reflected in the increasing demand for low sulfur western coal and in measurable
declines in at least some of the coal produced east of the Mississippi River. Increased production
in Columbia and Australia has brought new and voracious competition to international fue]
matkets and the on-going restructuring of the US electric utility industry appears to favor natural
gas over coal as a fuel source. These economic forces have already had readily observable
impacts on the fiscal vitelity of West Virginia’s coal producers.'

Finally, pending court rulings that further resirict surface mining methods will place
additional economic pressure on coal producers and the communities they help to sustain. While
many question the dire claims proffered by the mining community with regard to momntaintop
mining, the vast sums that mining companies have spent to protect this practice stand as
unshakable testimony to the importance West Virginia’s mining industry places on mountaintop
mining. Even the mining industry’s most ardent detractors must realize that mining management
would have preferred 10 distribute these monies as profits and would have, indeed, done so if not
for the belief that protecting the controversial form of surface mining is essential to their future

prosperity.

! For exampls, Arch Coal Inc. experienced a 166.1% decreass in eamings growth over the last 60 months, (Source:
Zacks Investment Research, http://ze.zacks.com/advisor).



While many understand the challenges facing the State’s coal producing region, few have
attempted to quantify the degree to which increased competition and additional surface mining
restrictions will affect the level of coal production or the broader regional economy. It is within
this context and in response to a request from West Virginia Senate Finance Committee Chair
Oshel Craigo, that Marshall University’s Center for Business and Economic Research is
attempting to provide the first glimpse of what the future may hold for West Virginia’s
southwestern coal preducing counties. Readers should note that the following analysis is not
intended to provide the sort of comprehensive information necessary to a formal cost-benefit
analysis. Specifically, we do not seek fo estimate the magnitude of any environmental costs
within the region nor do we attempt to value the extent to which some regional residents are
negatively impacted by coal mining operations.” Instead, the current analysis is strictly focused
on foreseeable changes in coal production and the ways in which these changes may be expected
to affect regional commerce, employment, and incomes in the near fufure,

The remainder of the current study is organized into five sections and a set of appendices.
The first of these, Chapter 2, is an examination of the historical role of coal production within the
study region. Chapter 3 details the cutrent economics of coal production, including the impact of
increased international competition, more strict air quality standards, and the potential impacts of
electric utility restructuring. Within Chapter 4, we develop a county-level model for forecasting
the supply of and demand for coal. In addition to a baseline forecast, this Chapter contains fwo
alternative scenarios that depict varying regulatory outcomes. Chapter 5 extends the variations in
coal production forecasted under each scenario to broader economic impacts within each study
region county. Finally, we provide concluding comments in Chapter 6. Appendix A contains
county level data, while Appendices B and C explain and demonstrate the models and estimation
techniques used in the study.

? West Virginia University’s Burean for Business and Economic Ressarch is currently working in conjunction with
the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency to conduct a long-run, comprehensive economic analysis within the
Environmental Impact Statement process.



Chapter 2 - The Study Region, Coal Production, &

Regional Economy

21 Study Region Definition

The study region, pictured in Figure 2.1, is comprised of Boone, Fayeite, Kanawha,
Logan, McDowell, Mingo, Nicholas, Raleigh, and Wyoming counties. This study region was
established based on a number of criteria. First, these contiguous counties provide a rough
outline of West Virginia’s southern coal fields. Second, this regional definition includes counties
with largely homogenecous economies and coal reserves. Were we to extend the analysis to
include northern coal producing counties, it would be necessary to accomnt for the measurably
different economic conditions observed in those counties, as well as the vastly different
characteristics of the coal mined within that region. Finally, the study region was defined based
on the historical (and current) dominance of coal production within the region’s nine counties.
Current population, personal income, and employment data for these counties is summarized in
Table 2.1. These data indicate that as late as 1998 (the last year for which data are currently
available) coal production directly represented an overwhelming portion (over 18%) of the
economic activity within the study region.

Figure 2.1
The Study Reglon




Table 2.1
The Study Reglon, 1998

Direct Coal Percentage of

Population ~ "or Capita EmTIg""'“ ont Related Coal-Related

co ploym Employment Employment

Boone 26,347 $17,735 9,436 3,116 33.0%
Fayette 48,566 $15,961 16,540 625 3.8%
Kenawha 203,195 $24,489 134,345 2,296 1.7%
Logan 41,294 $16,383 15,682 1,502 12.1%
McDowell 30,558 $13,482 7,213 908 12.6%
Mingo 32,475 $15,923 11,189 2,713 24.2%
Nicholas 27,580 $14,743 10,508 593 5.6%
Raleigh 78,970 $18,421 36,612 1,836 5.0%
Wyoming 27,662 $13,816 7,214 1,329 18.4%

2.2 A Brief Historical Context

Bitminous coal underlies more than two-thirds of West Virginia. These coal deposits are
divided by a geological “hinge line” into northern and southem fields. Generally, coal mined in
the southern fields has a higher heating value and lower sulfur content then northern West
Virginia coal. Historically, however, the development of the State’s coal industry first occurred
in the north.?

While coal production in “western Virginia” dates to the early 19" century, development
of the southern West Virginia coal fields did not begin until after the Civil War. The Flat Top-
Pocahontas Field, located primarily in Mercer and McDowell counties, first shipped coal in 1883
and grew quickly from that time. Smaller operations within the area were consolidated into
larger companies and the Pocahontas Fuel Company, organized in 1907, soon dominated
McDowell County production.

Many of the southern coal fields, such as the Kanawha, New River, Winding Gulf, Logan
and Greenbrier, owed their success to the development of the Norfolk Southem and Chesapeake
& Ohio Railways. As the railway expanded into the region, coal was more easily marketed and
the southern coal fields prospered. The Logan field, lying in Logan and Wyoming counties, did

* See US Energy Informnation Administration, State Coal Profiles, Washington, DC, 1998.



not open until 1904, when the railway finally reached that area. Once opened, Logan soon
became the State’s largest coal producing county.

Over the years, mining techniques and equipment have varied considerably. Early on,
progress in mechanization was slow. Nonetheless, by 1890 electric coal cutting, loading, and
hauling machines were in wide use. Begiming in the middle 1930s, mechanization moved
forward even more rapidly, as shuttle cars, long trains, conveyor belts, and a variety of other
equipment came into common use. Large-scale surface mining did not begin until 1913, but with
the development of large earth moving equipment and draglines, the overburden could be
removed more efficiently, so in recent years surface mining has become a major method of
mining coal within the study region. Technological advancements, increasing concerns for
health, and rising workers’ compensation costs have lead to mine safety improvements.

2.3 Coal Production and the Study Region Economy

Table 2.3A provides estimates of coal production, employment, and mine-mouth prices
from 1980 through 1998. Section 3 describes the largely exogenous market forces that have lead
to variations in these outcomes. However, it is clear, even without these explanations, that the
economic well-being of the study region has been directly tied to the magnitude of coal
production. Table 2.3B provides an imtertsmporal glance at the relationship between the study
region’s coal production, populations, and incomes. When the demand for the study region’s coal
has been relatively strong (as in the 1970’s), the regional economy was able to support a
population of 611,175 in 1979, with an average real per-capital income of $13,797. In contrast,
when the demand for the region’s coal has been slack (as in the middle 1980’s), incomes
changed marginally while population fell measurably. During this latter period, region
population declined by 12.8 percent in the decade from 1979 to 1989.

The study region is currently home to over 515,000 persons, who comprise roughly
200,000 households. Virtually every measure of economic well-being reflects the damage done
by a 15 years of sustained out-migration. The 1999 unemployment rate, weighted by a comty
population of 8.3 percent was more than twice the national average of 4.1 percent and 125
percent of the West Virginia average of 6.6 percent. The average regional per-capita income of
316,772 is only 87.17 percent of the national average. Home values within the study region



averuge only $38,700, while the State-wide figure is $47,600. And finally, in some counties the
high school non-completion rate for those over 25 is substantially greater than 50 percent®.

Table 2.3A
Year Pudiclo ~ ReaMneMoun  DrectMimg  pRRRnitd

(Tons x 1,000) Price/ Ton (92 $) Employment 1,000)
1980 60,317 $46.00 40,391 1.493
1987 60,228 $35.08 19,813 3.040
1992 84,119 $28.15 18,657 4.509
1993 78,339 $26.88 14,021 5587
1994 87,288 326.14 15,153 5.760
1995 87,552 $25.26 15,073 5.809
1996 01,989 $24.23 14,017 6.563
% Change 53% 47% -65% 439%

Indeed, eight of the nine study region counties have been classified as “distressed” by the
Appalachian Regional Commission.® There are those who would blame coal producers for these
negative economic outcomes. To do so would, however, be largely unfair. Instead, the economic
conditions within the study region reflect a lack of economic diversity coupled with the
significant volatility observed in fuel markets. Figure 2.3 depicts real coal prices over a period of
nearly 120 years. This figure reveals two important points. Over the long-nm inflation-adjusted
coal prices have proven remarkably stable. In the short-run, however, coal prices have been
remarkably volatile.

While economic conditions within the study region generally lag behind those observed
within the remainder of the State, there are indications that at least some study region counties
have become less reliant on coal-based economic activities. Certainly, Kemawha County, with its
diversity of manufacturing, service sector, and governmentel activities, is less susceptible to

*U.S. Census Bureau, 1990 Census.

® These substandard economic conditions are reflected in other negative outcomes, For example, the widely
dispersed population end lagging economic conditions have made it difficult for the region’s residents to obtain
adequate health care. As a result, health attainment within a number of study region counties ranks among the lowest
in the nation. Appalachian Regional Commission Distressed Counties, FY 2000.



coal-related economic disruptions. Moreover, both Fayette and Raleigh Counties have enjoyed &
measurable increase in tourist-related economic activity over the past decade. Indeed, since
1994, the number of tourism-related establishments and jobs in these two counties have both
grown at an annual rate of over 20 percent.’

Table 2.3B

Real Mine- Average

Year Rg]ﬂnféﬂ(éﬁal Mouth Price / Reglonal Reglcnal Per-
Ton, WV Coal Population Capita Income
(Tons x 1,000} @23) @2$)

1970 - $28.67 557,238 $10,419
1971 - $33.05 563,817 $10,834
1972 - $34.61 569,593 $11,845
1973 - $36.69 570,666 $12,187
1974 - 361.61 569,551 $12,279
1975 - $76.54 581,358 $13,003
1976 . $7427 594,416 $13,326
1977 - $71.84 604,190 813,552
1978 - $71.33 609,506 $13,84]
1979 - $67.14 611,175 $13,797
1980 73,948 $59.39 608,400 $13,699
1981 69,590 $58.73 606,979 $13,279
1982 74,463 $54.84 605,500 $13,472
1983 64,857 $49.94 602,329 312,614
1984 73,293 346.15 593,899 $13,016
1985 76,619 $43.64 584,673 $12,973
1986 81,172 $39.56 574,445 $13,153
1987 83,728 $36.00 562,124 $13,059
1988 89,420 $33.47 546,257 $13,170
1989 93,870 $3246 532,660 $13.216
1990 110,021 $30.72 524,998 $13,704
1991 109,060 $29.48 524,551 $13,852
1992 107,278 $28.15 524,838 $14,206
1993 92,860 $26.78 525,694 $14,132
1994 108,902 $25.96 523,698 $14417
1995 112,616 $25.02 522,573 $14,433
1996 117,871 $22.11 520,353 $14,504
1997 120,666 $23.29 516,647 $14,662
1998 116,208 - 513,022 -

®‘This figure is based on the growth of employment and establishments within the categories of lodging, restaurants,
and recrentional establishments within the county, U.S, Bureau of the Census, County Business Patterns 1994-1998.



Figure 2.3

Long Run Bifuminous Coal Prices in West Virginia,
1992 Constant Dollars
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Chapter 3 - The Economics of the Coal Industry

Historically, coal and other related fuel markets have exhibited a significant degree of
short-run volatility which has translated into instability and & paucity of economic development
within those study region counties that rely heavily on coal production’. As West Virginia enters
the 21* century, there is no indication that this pattem of instability or volatility will abate. To
the contrary, a number of new pressures have emerged that make the course of coal production
within the study region less, rather than more, certain. Among the issues affecting the State’s
coal industry are increased international and domestic competition, uncertain international
petroleum prices, electric utility restructuring, and new environmental regulations. These affect
both the production and consumption of West Virginia coal®. Within the remainder of this
chapter, we carefully evaluate how each of these sources of instability may be expected to affect
the study region’s coal producers. The chapter also attempts to dispel various myths regarding
production costs and alternative production techniques that cloud the debate surrounding further

regulatory intervention and its impact on coal production.

3.1 The Demand for Study Reglion Coal

Like most raw materials, the demand for coal produced within the study region is derived
from the demand for the products that coal is used to create and the technologies available for
producing these “downstream” goods or services. Within the cumrent context, this “derived
demand” implies that the willingness to pay for study region coal depends on the demand for
electricity and steel products, as well as the availability and pricing of other fuel substitutes. This
includes coal from other regions, natural gas, and fuel oil, and generating and steel producing
technologies. Changes in any of these other factors can materially affect the demand for coal
produced in southern West Virginia. The demand for study region coal is further complicated,
since binminous coal is sold in commodity markets that recognize qualitative differences in

? Specifically, the volatility of regional economic activity within the study region has served to weaken investment,
hindering economic growth relative to other regions,

% The 1990 Clesn Air Act Amendments (CAAA), which becams effective Jammary 1, 2000, outline stricter sulfirr
emission rednction requiroments of Phase I1.



sulfur dioxide, ash, moisture, and Btu content.’ Metallurgical coal users and utilities that face
few air quality compliance issues may be attracted to the relatively high Btu content of study
region coal, while other electricity users may favor the low sulfur content and relatively low
transportation costs of western coal, even though most such coal has a significantly lower Btu
content.'°

As the opening paragraph of this chapter indicates, a number of evolving forces will
potentially impact the volume of coal produced within the study region over coming decades.
With the exception of environmental restrictions on surface mining practices, these emerging
forces represent demand-side changes that are effecting consumers’ willingness to pay for study

region coal,

3.1.1 Clean Alr Standards and the Demand for Study Region Coal

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency's implementation of the 1990 amendments to
the Clean Air Act have increasingly restricted electric ufility emissions of a variety of pollutants.
Thess pollutants include sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxides, and particulate matter. Coal burning
utilities generally have four options or strategies available for compliance with these standards —
(1) high-emission facilities can be retired; (2) high-emissjon facilities can be retrofitted to burn
low-sulfur coal, a low-sulfinr/high sulfur coal mix, or an alternative fuel; (3) high-emission
facilities can be modified to include scrubber equipment that reduces the volume of pollutants
emitted from the bum of high-sulfur coal; or (4) operators of high-emissions facilities can
acquire (either internally or through purchase) emissions credits that will allow the facility to
legally exceed the applicable emission standards.

% The British Themmal Unit (Bm) is the most common measure of heat producing capacity. It roflects the amount of
heat required to raise th e temperature of one pound of pure water by one degree Fahrenheit,

¥ The complexity of coal markets is, perhaps, highlighted by the diversity of coal products availsble in tie western
United States, Powder River Basin (PRB) coal from Montans and Wyoming is of the low sulfur, low Bin variety
noted in the text. However, the low sulfur coat produced in Colorado, Utah, and British Columbia has a consistently
higher Btu content. Howsver, the non-PRB westemn coal does not routin ely compete in eastern firel markets because
moving it through the Rocky Mountains requires relatively high expenditures for transportation
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Some compliance strategies allow electricity producers to continue the use of study
region coal, while other strategies preclude this use'’. However, just as emission standards have
made southern Appalachian coal less desirable for some customers, the same regulations have
caused other users to substitute study region coal for Illinois basin and northern Appalachian coal
that has an appreciably higher sulfur content. Thus, it is difficult to assess the current net effect
of clean air standards on the demand for study region coal.

If there is one clear outcome associated with more stringent air quality standards, it is the
growth in popularity of Powder River Basin (PRB) coal mined in Wyoming and Montana.'> PRB
coal is mined at a cost of roughly $4.50 per ton and can be transported into the Illinois and Ohio
River Basins at rates that result in delivered prices that are compareble to the mine-mouth price
of study region coal."® The difference, of course, is that the low Btu content of PRB coal means
that much more coal must be burned to achieve the same power generation. To date, it appears
that PRB coal is primarily displacing Illinois Basin coal, but the same qualities that make
western coal atfractive to users in Illinois end Indizna may eventually sway utilities further
east 14

Air quality issues are also leading many utilities fo substitute natural gas for coal as a
generating fuel. Tampa Electric Company (TECO) recently announced plans to convert all coal-
fired generating facilities to natural gas within the next two years and Ontario Hydro is rumored
to be contemplating similar changes. Both utilities have historically consumed West Virginia
Coal.

"! The purchase of sulfur dioxide permits cellars for continued buming of study region coal without retrofitting
plants with emissions curtailing technologies.

" Historically, the relatively high costs of mining and trensparting eestern coal allowed PRB ¢oal to compete in
markets west of the Mississippl River. Rolative declines in transpo rtation cests from the Powder River Basin during
the 1990"s moved the east-west boumdary between eastern and western coal dominance firrther east into the Ilinois
and Chio River bagins, Mo re recently, however, the continued eastern expansion of western coal eppears to owe to
the effects of more stringent clean air standards, rather than any further decline in relative transport rates,

" The Energy Information Administration Coal Industry Annual 1998 reports a real mine price (19928) of $4.80.
However, anecdotal evidence suggests that Powder River Basin coal costs have lowered since 1998,

' For a discussion of the expanded use of PRB coal, see Energy Information Administration. While there is no
evidence at this point to support our contention, the authors suspect that the attractiveness of using PRB coal as a
compliance strutegy is enhanced by the knowledge that this strategy will be effective for the foreseanble futurs,
whereas alternative strefegies — for example blending ~ may cease to be effective if standards are raised firther.
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3.1.2 International Competition and the Demand for Study Reglon Coal

Table 3.1 summarizes West Virginia coal exports between 1993 and 1997. On average,
exports accounted for roughly 25% of all sales during that peried.!* Tables 3.2 and 3.3 provide
additional information on the export destinations of the State’s coal production. These data, in
combination with additional anecdotal data, tell a clear story of increased international
competition.

Table 3.1

WV Sales to WV Sales to
Year Domestic Users  intemational Totel WV Sales Percentage of

(x1,000)  Users(x1,000)  {x1,000) Export Sales
1993 102.7 332 1359 24.43%
1994 122.8 36.2 159.0 22.77%
1995 1209 443 1652 26.82%
1996 1272 42.0 169.2 24.82%
1997 1338 384 1722 22.30%

The majority of West Virginia's coal exports (47% in 1997) are bound for European
destinations. However, throughout the period of record, European nations have been purchasing
less coal from West Virginia and more from other exporting nations, such as Columbia.'®
Columbian coal is even making inroads into US domestic markets. Unpublished sources suggest
that Alabama Power, begimning in 2001, plans to import more than four million tons of
Columbia coal over the Port of Mobile.

The second largest importer of West Virginia coal (23% in 1997) is Canada. Of the coal
shipped to Canadian users, roughly one-third is purchased by Ontario Hydro, with the remainder
going to other generating and industrial users. During the 1993-1997 period, annual Canadian
use of West Virginia coal grew by 2.9 million tons (71%). This growth clearly helped offset

1 Energy Information Administeation data do not allow the segregation of study region exports from other West
Yirginia exports.

S The decline in European coal purcheses would appear greater still if the 112 percent increase in West Virginia
exports to Romania are excluded from calenlations.
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export losses to other international customers. It is important to note, however, that the growth in
Canadian usage reflects & one-time increase in Ontario Hydro's consumption that resulted from
the utility’s need to rapidly replace generating capacity lost with the unplanned shutdown of
nuclear facilities.'”

Increased low sulfur, high Btu Australian coal production is also placing additional
competitive pressures on West Virginia exports. In 1996, Australia embarked on a program
designed to increase coal production by approximately S percent annually through 2002.'® This
increased production is principally aimed at Asian markets which accounted for roughly 11
percent of West Virginia exports in 1997."° However, there are secondary effects arising from
the Australian expansion. Anecdotal information suggests that Australian coal has displaced a
significant amount of low-sulfur, high-Btu coal mined in British Columbia. As British
Columbian producers seek alternative markets, it may well affect West Virginia’s ability to
export coal to eastern Canada.

' It is worth noting that one issue that hes arisen in the proposed railroad merger between Burlington Northern —
Santa Fe and the Canadian Nati onal — Ilinois Central is the degree to which a combined system would allow for the
moroe efficient transport of Powder River Basin coal to eastarn Canada enstomers, If this merger is allowed, it could
plece additional competitive pressure on West Virginia coal exports. )

* Se “Australian Coal Supply: Risks and Prospects to 2002,” Australian Commodities, Vol. 4, No. 2, June 1997,
Pp. 214-26.

wﬂﬂd
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Table 3.2

West Virginia Coal Exports
Destination 1993 Tons 1994 Tons 1985 Tons 1998 Tons 1987 Tons
Country (x 1,000) (x 1,.000) (x 1,000) (x 1,000) {x 1,000)
Argentina 132 35 —_ e —
Belgium 1,396 1,302 1,175 1,261 8§22
Brezil 2,496 4,109 4,329 4247 3,927
Bulgeria 644 157 1,360 1,152 1,008
Cangda 4,071 5,605 5,759 6,907 6,956
Chile —_— —_ —_ 43 —_—
China 141 284 355 353 188
Croatia 63 —_ —_— —_ —_
Egypt 601 593 714 303 807
Finland 212 375 683 507 324
France 2,864 3514 3,594 2,859 2,286
Germeany 286 382 254 584 419
India —_ —_ — 11 —
Italy 3,111 2,927 2,873 2,361 2,084
Japan 2,260 2,148 3,222 2,062 2,585
Korea 38 523 1,013 1,050 829
Mexico — —_— _— — 25
Notherlands 2,014 1,717 1,523 1,223 1,977
Nigeria 43 — —_— — —
Portugal IsI — 33 164 118
Romemia 820 925 1,623 1,315 1,737
Sowth Afriea 577 71 946 947 706
Spain 1,071 1,255 1,084 818 681
Sweden 603 866 1,352 882 857
Turkey 1,370 1,468 1,560 1,643 1,295
United Kingdom 1,261 1,212 1,182 1,024 897
Totel 29,498 31,582 34,634 31,716 30,528




Table 3.3

West Virginia Coal Exports
1093 1004 1095 1086 1807
Dedffl‘l‘:h‘i';’" %of Toll  %of Total  %of Tolal  %of Totl % of Total
Exporta Exports Exports Bxports Exports
Argentina 0.50% 0.11% — — -
Belgium 527% 4.12% 3.39% 3.98% 2.69%
Brazil 9.42% 13.01% 12.50% 13.39% 12.86%
Bulgaria 2.43% 4.97% 3.93% 3.63% 330%
Canada 15.36% 17.75% 16.63% 20.78% 22.75%
Chile _ _ — 0.14% .
China 0.53% 0.50% 1.03% L11% 0.62%
Croatla 0.24% — — — —
Bgynt 227% 1.88% 2.06% 0.96% 2.64%
Finland 0.80% 1.19% 1.97% 1.60% 1.06%
France 10.81% 11.13% 10.38% 9.01% 7.49%
Germany 1.08% 1.21% 0.73% 1.84% 1.37%
India — — . 0.03% —
Itely 11.74% 927% 830% 7.44% 6.83%
Japan 8.53% 6.80% 9.30% 6.50% 847%
Korea 120% 1.66% 292% 331% 272%
Mexico — — - - 0.08%
Netherlands 7.60% 5.44% 440% 3.86% 6.48%
Nigeria 0.16% — - - —
Portugal 0.57% - 0.10% 0.52% 0.39%
Romania 3,00% 2.93% 4.69% 4.15% 5.69%
South Afiica 2.18% 2.44% 2.73% 2.99% 231%
Spain 4.04% 3.97% 3.13% 2.58% 223%
Sweden 2.28% 2.74% 3.90% 2.78% 2.81%
Turkey 5.17% 4.65% 4.50% 5.18% 424%
United Kingdom 4.76% 3.84% 3141% 323% 2.94%
Total 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

3.1.3 The Potentlal Impacts of Electric Utllity Restructuring

As of December 1, 1999, 12 states enacted restructuring legislation, six states had
comprehensive regulatory orders issued, and seven states had legislation/orders pending.®® The
status of these regulatory reforms is summarized in Table 3.4. This electric utility industry

? FL and SD have no significant ongoing activity. TX allows competitive wholesale wheeling, as authorized by SB
373, 1995, CA, MA, and NH have regulatory orders and legislation in place, See “Challenges of Electric Power
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restructuring is predicted, in the long-run, to measurably impact the markets in which study
region coal is bought and sold in a number of important ways. According to the U.S. Department
of Energy’s Energy Information Administration, electric utility deregulation will simultaneously
place downward pressure on coal prices, favor the use of natural gas — even in base-load
generation, reduce or eliminate long-term contracts for coal, and introduce greater levels of
uncertainty for coal producers.”!

For two reasons, the full implications of electric utility restructuring on study region coal
production will not be apparent for several years. First, under most restructuring scenarios, states
will retain residual regulatory powers. Moreover, any federal regulatory restructuring will take
considerable time to reach fruition, so that competition and its effects on fuel markets will
emerge gradually. Second, existing coal-fired plants — particularly those already adapted to meet
more stringent air quality standards — are likely fo remain in use until these assets can be
efficiently retired. Any premature retirement of coal-fired facilities will leave the utilities
“stranded” with the capital costs of those facilities. The ability of utilities to recover such costs is

uncertain,

Industry Restructuring for Fuel Suppliers,” U.S. Department of Energy, Energy Information Administration,
ROE!EIA-OGZS, September, 1998,
Tbid

2 The treatment of “stranded costs™ — capital costs that are nnrecoverable due to the transition from regulation to
competition —~ remains as a complex issue within the topic of electric utility restructuring. Certainly, while most
states’ restructuring plens provide some relief in this area, it is to the utility’s advantage to minimize the valug of
such costs. Moreover, the costs of investments made during an era when restructuring is foreseeable may be
completely vulnerable.
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Table 3.4

Electriclty Resfructuring
Commisslon or
Restructuring R%';’g;”e'o““rd“ ®  Legislation/ Orders Legistative
Leglsletion Enacted | ssur;d Pending Investigation
Ongoing

CA AZ AK AL NE
CN MD DE AR NM
IL M1 KY co NC
ME NJ MO GA ND
MT NY oH HI OR
NV VT SC ID TN
NH wV IN TX
OK 10 uT
PA KS WA
RI LA WI
VA MN wY

MS

District of Colnmbia

3.2 The Cost Structure of Study Reglon Coal Producers

Changing demands will not act in isolation to affect changes in study region coal
production levels within the study region. Instead, if is the interaction of chenging demands with
cost-dependent supply conditions that will ultimately determine the region’s economic outcomes.
With the exception of pending additional restrictions on surface mining methods, the future
structure of study region mining costs is Jargely devoid of any public policy influence. Instead, it
is the mining interests who will decide how and where coal may be efficiently produced.

3.2.2 Capital, Labor, and Labor Productivity

The structure of coal mining has changed dramatically since the widespread introduction
of the continuous miner in the 1950’s. The once labor intensive production process has been
replaced by the use of capital assets that resulted in a precipitous decline in mining employment.
The southern West Virginia coal fields primarily employ long-wall and continuous miner
technologies. The productivity gains resulting from these techniques are reflected in the
significant increase in output per worker (see Table 2.3A).
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Meny have concluded that the decline in employment is strictly attributable to the growth
in surface mining — mining that now accounts for roughly one-third of all West Virginia
production. Indeed, State-wide underground mining employment fell from 45,000 in 1980 to
16,000 in 1996, while surface mining’s share of State output increased from 21 percent to 33
percent. However, the conclusion that surface mining is at the root of employment declines
largely ignores two critical facts.

First, without regard to surface operstions, the productivity of underground miners
increased dramatically over the 1980-1996 period. In 1980, 45,000 underground miners
produced roughly 96 million tons of coal — about 2,100 tons per worker. In 1996 16,000
underground miners, only one-third of those employed in 1980, produced more than 112 million
tons of coal, or approximately 7,000 tons per employee. Thus, it appears that improvements in
underground mining productivity are more responsible for declines in mining employment than
the continning emergence of surface mining. Finally, it is worth observing that surface mining
employment also declined. In 1980, there were 7,500 West Virginians employed in surface
mining operations. By 1996, their number had fallen to 4,118, due to strong productivity growth.

In considering the future costs of regional producers, it is reasonable to examine any
potential inter-firm varistions that might make it possible for some sellers to respond more
effectively than others to changing demand conditions. If such variations exist, they are more
than likely the result of accidents of geography rather then any structural differences between
firms. Indeed, the productivity-enhancing technologies noted above appear to spread rapidly
across producers, so that it is unlikely that large scale inter-firm cost differences are attributable
to equipment use. Similarly, there may be modest differences between the productivity of
unionized and non-union mining operations, but thess differences are also likely tied to
geography-dictated mining mefhods rather than actal productivity differences™. In the end,
variations in the costs incurred by mining firms are dictated primarily by the disaggregated
spatial nature of the natural resource they extract. Simply put, in coal mining, geology plays a

® In 1997 firms east of the Mississippi River produced 3.89 short tons of coal per miner per hour compared to firms
waest of Mississippi River, who produced 16.04 short tons of coal per miner per hour. 1997 Productivity Data,
Energy Information Administration.
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critical role in determining the overall costs of production. Though new cost-reducing
technologies will continue to emerge, firms have remarkably little control over their individual
production costs.

3.2.3 The Issues of Scale and Scope Economles

The conclusion that regional coal producers have only minimal control over production
costs differs from the typical case in which firms may affect unit costs by pursuing different
scales of production. However, the cumrent analysis of the regional production process directly
supports the contention that firms are not able to improve productive efficiency by increasing the
scale of their operations. This issue is empirically modeled and further described in Appendix C.
In many ways, this outcome relates to the distinction between “plant level” and “firm level” scale
economies. In many instances, firms can reduce unit costs by making individual plants bigger. In
the case of regional mining operations, however, the “plant” is the mine property which, absent
regulatory constraint, is limited in size by the geography and geology of coal reserves. As a
consequence, the only additional scale economies available to regional producers are the “firm”
level savings that might come from averaging administrative and overhead costs over the oufput
from a number of consolidated mining operations.”?*

Based on this discossion, the relevant question is whether or not there are significant
potential cost savings attainable through the consolidation of regional coal producers, While the
evidence is limited, the answer to this question would appear to be “No”. Figure 3.1 depicts the
four firm concentration ratio (the percentage of market output produced by the largest four
producers) for Appalachian coal producers, other interior coal producers, and mining operations
in the western US from 1970 forward. Certainly, Appalachian coal producers have had the
incentive to reduce costs in any way possible, yet the level of concentration has remained
constant. One implication of this relatively static concentration ratio is that attainable cost
reductions through consolidation are minimal at best.

% This conchusion that available scalo economies are firm lovel in nature appears to be larg ely shared by the Energy
Information Administration (EIA). In its evaluation of the probable impacts of electric utility restructuring, the EIA
suggests capturing scale economies through consolidations may be important. However, it also snggests that the
source of available economies is limited to lowering per-unit overhead costs and by, “[increasing] producer’s
negotialing power to deal with [arger generating and transportation commterparts.” Ses “Challenges of Elestric Power
Industry Restructuring for Fuel Suppliers,” Ch. 1, p. 6. U.S. Depariment of Energy, Energy Information
Administration, DOR/EIA-0623, September, 1998.
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Flgure 3.1

Share of Reglonal Coal Production by Four
Largest Producers In Reglon

1976 1988

I Appaiachia

Interior [] Westem

The potential savings from the capture of firm level economies are illustrated in Figure
3.2. Within this figure, mine-level Average Total Costs are depicted by ATCp. The ability to
lower these average costs by expanding the mine size is, however, constrained by the geography
and geology of the mining region. It is impossible to move downward along this curve beyond
the quantity denoted as Qumx. Any additional cost savings can only be achieved by lowering
average overhead and administrative costs by averaging these expenditures across additional
output from other mining facilities. Doing so would result in a new mine-specific Average Total
Cost curve represented in the figure as ATC,.
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Figure 3.2
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Figure 3.2 can also be used to illustrate the “scope” economies that exist between
underground and surface operations, Economies of scope exist when a product can bs made
more cheaply when it is produced, in combination with one or more other products. For example,
many have argued that electricity can be produced more cheaply when generating activities are
combined with electricity distribution.”® In the case of coal, underground and surface mining
operations may exist independently of one another — even at separate locations, yet the delivered
cost of each output can be made lower by the production of the other. This cutcome is the result
of scale economies in the blending and transportation of coal. Output quantities from both
underground and sarface mines are routinely combined in blending operations and the blended
coal is routinely shipped as a single product. Both unit blending and transport costs are lowered

» Kaserman, David L.; Mayo, John W. “The Measurement of Vertical Economies and the Efficient Structure of the
Electric Utilit y Industry.” Joumal of Industrial Economics; v39 nS September 1991, pp. 483-502.
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by additional quantities — quantities that are only made possible by combining the oufput from
distinct surface and mderground operation.”® Within Figure 3.2, ATCy may be viewed as the
Average Total Cost curve for an underground surface operation in the absence of a companion
facility of the other sort. ATC;, then, reflects the operation’s Average Total Cost when the
companion production facility is in operation. The implications of these scope economies are
fully discussed in Appendix C. However, the results of the current analysis suggest that study
region counties that have a relatively balanced mix of mining methods enjoy strong scope
economies. The critical implication of this finding is that the loss of mines of either fype may
actually increase the costs of producing coal by the alternative method.

3.2.4 Additlonal Environme ntal Restrictions And Production Costs

The introduction to this chapter notes that most of the foreseeable changes that may affect
regional coal production are demand-side in nature. The one major exception is the
implementation of judicial decisions that may substantially reduce the size of certain surface
mining operations. Figure 3.3 continues the same graphical construct in order to demonstrate the
potential impacts of these additional restrictions on study region mining costs.

The judicial ruling in question — known as the “Haden decision” — is likely to have two
impacts on the costs of some coal producers.”” First, by limiting the locations in which valleys
may be filled with the overburden from mountaintop mining, the Haden decision is likely to
reduce the size of many surface operations or eliminate some enfirely. The impact of this
restriction on producer costs is depicted by a movement along ATCo, in association with a
reduction in quantity from Qux o Qn.

The second potential impact of the Haden decision on production costs owes to the
additional wncertainty this decision introduces. Economic decisions regarding continued
production hinge on the short-run and long-run profitability of this production. To the extent that

% Study region coal producers have acknowledged the relationship between quantity and averge blending costs, but
have been unwilling to quantify this relationship.. The relationship between shipment quantity and transportation
rates is, however, well documented, See for Example, Mark L. Burton, “Reilread Deregulation, Catrier Behavior
and Shipper Response: A Disaggregated Analysis,” Journal of Regulatory Economies, Vol. 5, No. 4, December,
1993, pp. 417-34.

¥ Patricia Bragg, ot al, Plaintiffs, vs. Colonel Dana Robertson, et al, Defendants. Civil Action 2:98-0636, U.S.
District Court for Southetn West Virginia, Charleston Division.
22



the Haden decision clouds assessments of this profitability, it may reduce investment, limiting
future production capacity and causing future costs to rise. Within Figure 3.3, the additional
uncertainty is reflected by a movement from ATCq to ATC;.

Figore 3.3
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3.3 Coal Pricing and Future Producer Profitabllity

The preceding two sections outline the ways in which ongoing changes are likely to
affect the demand for and supply of study region coal. Chapter 4 quantifies these impacts in
order to predict the overall economic impact on study region counties. Still, even in advance of
these forecasts, it is possible to evaluate the qualitative effects of the foreseeable changes in West
Virginia coal output quantities. Absent the Haden decision, the reduced demand for study region
coal should result in & continued decline in mine-mouth prices and a measurable decline in
output quantities. If the Haden decision is upheld, production costs at some mines will increase.
These cost increases will further exacerbate the problems of regional producers by making it
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unprofitable to mine coal that is only marginally profitable under current conditions. Ultimately
some producers may not survive this process. Whether firms are publicly owned or held
privately, the long-run response to sustained negative firm profits is the same — market exit.

There is already evidence that the uncertain future facing regional coal producers is
affecting economic outcomes and the fiscal health of regional coal producers. After reaching an
all-time high of over 180 million tons in 1997, West Virginia coal production has declined over
the past two years. Industry estimates suggest that 1999 totals may be as low as 162 million tons,
a reduction of roughly 10 percent. While a two year output decline certainly does not constitute
evidence of a long-nm trend, it is consistent with the expected impacts of changing demand
conditions.

It is also likely that effects of changing demands have been slowed somewhat by the
existence of long-term contracts between producers and utilities made popular by uncertain
supplies and rising fuel prices during the 1970’s. Now, however, most West Virginia coal is sold
via short-term contracts, so that the market for the study region’s output is, in many ways,
similar to a spot market, with only a smaller subset sold through long-term, fixed-price
contracts.”® The recent decline in spot market or short-term coal prices has made long-term
contracts less aftractive to customers, so that long-term contract volumes continue to fall.”
Anecdotal evidence, as well as discussions with industry representatives, suggests that the last of
the long-term contracts will have expired by 2003. This transition to short-term market pricing
has interjected additional uncertainty into the transaction process and amplified the competitive
pressure facing regional producers.

3 The long-run, fixed price contracts were popular with consumers during the 1970’s and early 1980’s, 2s nominal
prices soared, conemrrent with oil shorteges.

* This is also the snggestion that long-term contracts are becom ing less popular with electricity gencrators as they
prepare for electric utility restructuring, “Challenges of Electric Power Industry Restructuring for Fuel Suppliers.
Energy Information Administration™. 24



Chapter 4 - Forecast Mode| & History
%

4.1 The Forecast Model & Simulations

Energy demand end the supply of fossil fuels are among the most heavily forecasted
economic outcomes. These forecasts are typically of three types: consumer and industrial
demand for electricity, geologic assessments of remaining reserves, and price forecasts of
extracted fossil fuels. The forecasting offorts of the Department of Energy’s Energy Information
Administration provide detailed long-term assessments of the latter two, while a number of
regional forecasting centers, as well as the U.S. Geological Survey, project the United States’
extractable fossil fuel reserves. Similar international agencies and foreign govemments also
undertake these types of forecasts. These forecasts are critical to both individnal firms, and state
and federal planners in developing their own inventories and revenue assessments. An additional
level of forecasting is available from academic sources, especially journals dedicated to energy
research and forecasting method. However, these models often seek to illustrate a specific issue
or methods and are therefore not typically of immediate value to a forecaster interested in a
generalized prediction model from which simulations can be constructed.

Forecasting techniques involve the use of a purely statistical method (the time series
approach), a structural model that evaluates causation, or a combination of these techniques. The
model we have used here is the final typs, a structural-time series model. We have selected this
forecasting tool for a variety of reasons. The most important of these is the need to simulate
policy changes and trends in other variables (e.g. electricity demand) on the quantity of coal
produced in West Virginia. This purpose recommends a structural model that also captures
historical information and relationships.

Use of a structural time series model for a short-nm forecast and simulation is quite
common. Indeed, it is the preferred method for this type of industry specific forecast.® However,
this model differs from most existing coal models because it projects regional coal production
from a supply and demand model. We were unable to identify any similar regional production
forecast and simulation model within the economics literature. This study is unique in that

*For a more detailed explanation, see Appendix B. For a non-technical discussion of this technique, see
Kennedy [1994]. For a technical treatment, see Granger [1989].

25



respect and offers an important tool for economic and fiscal planning in West Virginia. The
model employed in this study incorporates the major supply and demand issues identified in
Chapter 3 in order to evaluate the total effect of each on production of coal in the State. The data
and variables selected for this estimation are derived primarily from data collected from the
Energy Information Administration and the U.S. Department of the Census.>' The full model is
ocutlined in a technical form in Appendix B. This appendix describes the mathematical derivation
of the model, the data, and the assumptions thaf were employed in its construction. In general,
the model evaluates the quantity of southern West Virgmia coal produced as a function of
quality, end use demand, price, imports and exports of coal, the price of capital equipment, ihe
price of labor, a technology trend and the county level industry structure (the number and share
of surface and underground mines). See Table 4.1.

Table 4.1
Model Variables

Statistical Significance
Variable Supply Demand at the 5% level
Btu content v v v
Electricity Demand v v
Price per Btn unit v v v
Total Imports 4 v
Total Exports v v
Technology Variable v v
Interest Rate on Capital v v
Wages Peid to Miners v v
Underground Share v v’ (for some comnties)
Total Surface Mines v ¥ (for some counties)
Timo Trend (autoregression) v v v’ (for some counties)

As intended, this model proved to be especially effective in short run forecasting. In order
to test this, we conducted an in-sample evaluation. This was accomplished by calibrating or
estimating the mode] on data from 1980 through 1998, the latest data available at the time
(March 2000). The 1999 levels of coal production were then forecast. Upon the release of the

YEIA dama from Monthly Energy Update, various issnes, Census Data from the Reglonal Economic
Information Sysiem, 1997.
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official 1999 coal production figures by the Office of Miner Heath, Safety and Training i April
2000, the forecast and actual values were compared.’> The model performed well, under-
predicting the 1999 regional totals by only 1.06 percent. This suggests that the model is useful in
forecasting short-run regional coal production. Due to the limited data length and the general
study motivation, we have not attempted to perform long-run forecast evaluations >

The satisfactory performance of this model permits the construction of a baseline forecast
and two simulations. The baseline forecast illustrates the expected change in output without
considering currently pending regulatory changes (primarily the Haden Decision). The two
simulations involve evaluating the impacts of a phase-in of the surface mining restrictions
contained within the Haden Decision and the simulation of an immediate curtailment of valley
fill (effectively ending surface mining). In this context, the baseline forecast should be viewed as
the production ceiling, while the restrictive Haden Decision simulation represents the production
floor. There were an umlimited choice of potential simulation scenarios available. These were
selected to simply provide a reasonable upper and lower bound on production levels to assist in
local planning. The actual impact of the Haden Decision, especially in the technical restrictions
on valley fill, are well outside the scope of this study. The predictions of each of these three
scenarios are employed in a local impact analysis in each of the counties. The impact on the
region, and the results of each forecast and simulation, will be outlined in Chapter S.

4.2 The Baseline Forecast

The baseline forecast involved a shift in the real Btu quality price of West Virginia coal
consistent with the previous three year history, and a change in regional exports consistent with
the previous three years. All other variables remained unchanged, making the baseline forecast
the expected output levels absent regulatory changes or market fluctuations that are not part of
recent history. Changes in the economies of scope of production from our production function
(Appendix C), were added to this forecast model. This resulted in minimal adjustments to the

2The OMHST data is available on their world wide web site, www.msha gov. Theso data were obmined
directly from the OMHST, as extracted from their CADE]19xx.exe data files. A reliable secondary source is the West
Virginla Coal Assoeiation.

Thers appears to have been a structural break (2 coin tegration break) in the early 1980's production trend
that presents serious theoretical challenges to forecasting models that incorpo mte observations prior to that period.
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baseline forecast, since the mild change in the total output did not affect the counties’ production
economies of scope.

The baseline coal forecast for 2000 predicts a regional output decline of just over 7.1
percent, or just under 7.3 million short tons of coal. The direct dollar value of this decline, in coal
only, is roughly $170 million. This baseline estimate is very consistenf with the 1999 annual
production decline of roughly 7.9 percent™. See Figure 4.2. The implication of these results is
that, even ignoring potential additional resirictions on surface mining, the market forces
described in Chapter 3 continue to erode regional coal prodnction.

Figure 4.2
Total Reglonal Coal Production (Basellne Forecast)

130,000,000

124,000,000
gnﬂ,m,mo— -

%

Tons of Coal, (all
=
E S

70,000,000 -

|

4.3 Phase In of The Haden Declslon

An interpretation of the Haden Decision that restricts permitting of new valley fill
generated our first alternative simulation. Under this scenario, mines that are cuurently operating,
and have engaged in valley fill under permits may continue to produce. However, new mine
permits that include valley fill allowances will not be issued. In practice, this virtually precludes
further surface mining, There is no indication that, given the current economic climate, surface
mining, on a significant scale, can continue without valley fill.
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As a result, when currently permitted seams are mined to exhaustion and cease
operations, surface mining will migrate from the region. This migration should occur at roughly
the rate at which firms mine coal seams to the point where they cannot recover their production
costs. This would be approximately the average life of a seam of coal under production. This
study has not identified existing research establishing the average seam life in southerm West
Virginia. In order to provide a conservative estimate of this impact, we selected an average seam
life of seven years, and assumed that all currently producing seams were newly pemmitted.>® We
then phased-in the impact of valley fill restrictions over a seven year period. This simulation
should closely mitror the impact of mine closings resulting from the currently pending litigation
already observed (e.g. the Daltex Mine). This scenario also includes the impact of the economies
of scope issues on underground mining, whereby decreased surface mining imposes a higher cost
on underground mining through its related production technologies (primarily in transport and
processing), and hence will impact the level of production. The simulation results generated from
the model project an output decline of roughly 16 million tons, with a value of $386 million, sce
Figure 4.3.

Figure 4.3
Total Regional Coal Production (Haden Declsion Phase-{n)
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¥ Indeed, our county level beseline forecasts were very consistent with the Beckley-Bluefleld Reglon O utlook: 1999
— 2004 released in May, 2000 by WVU"s Bureau of Buginess and Economic Research. In particular, the high growth
in Raleigh, and sInggish growth in McDowell they predict coincided clogely with this study’s results.

¢ selection of seven years was made following soveral unscientific discussions regending the average lifs of a
seam of coal. We feel the seven year peried overestimates the lifespan of a coal seam, especially smes we agsumed
all were origimally per mitted in 2000,
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4.4 The Restrictive Haden Decision — A More Severe Case

The application of the Haden Decision’s interpretation of the Clean Water Act is
currently under appeal and will likely continue in litigation and/or arbitration for some time to
come. The final resolution of mining and permitting practices is unforeseeable. However, to
provide a lower bound to production, an extremely restrictive interpretation of the Haden
Decision was employed in which all surface mining is forced to immediately cease. Remarkably,
this is not the most potentially restrictive interpretation of this decision that could have been
used. Here, we only simulate declines in surface mining production. If must be noted, however,
that underground mines (and a variety of other types of construction in the region) also deposit
spoil into valleys. Therefore, this scenario, though providing the lower bound to regional coal
production in this study, is not as restrictive as it might have been.

Forecast estimates based on the restrictive Haden scenario suggest that an immediate
cessation of surface mining would result in production declines of 47.5 million tons, with & first-
year value of $1.093 billion. See Figure 4.4. This decline reflects not only lost surface
production, but also some modest amount of lost underground production due to an inability to
capture available economies of scope.

Figure 4.4
Total Reglonal Coal Production (Restrictive Haden Decision)
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4.5 Short Run Price Effects of Reduced Study Reglion Production

The study region currently supplies roughly 10 percent of the nation’s steam coal. If the
Haden Decision is upheld, we estimate that as much as 50 percent of that production could be
lost in a relatively short time period.*® Mining industry advocates have suggested that this sudden
reduction in coal supplies could lead to significantly higher fuel and electricity prices. Under
such a scenario, currently unprofitable underground and (surviving) surface operations could
become financially viable for a short period of time, so that study estimates of reduced regional
output would be, to some degree, overstated. We do not, however, find this argument compelling
and have not treated it with the current analysis. We have exercised this judgement for a number
of reasons.

First, the movement from long-term confract to spot markets for coal means that utilities
are already accustomed to searching for low-priced coal. Indeed, by the time the Haden Decision
is implemented, we strongly suspect that most users of West Virginia coal will have developed
contingencies that allow them to move easily to a reasonably competitive altemnative market
source.”” ‘This supposition is further strengthened by the fact that air quality standards are already
forcing some utilities to begin the shift away from West Virginia coal. Secondly, to the extent
that lost economies of scope affect underground mining costs, currently marginal underground
operations may become far less feasible, even at mine-mouth prices that are made somewhat
higher by lost surface production. Finally, given the intensity of competition in firel and
electricity markets, as well as the vast array of altemative fitel sources, it is likely that any
variation in coal prices attributable to lost surface production in West Virgiia will be very
transitory in nature, so that the economic impacts detailed in Chapter 5 might be momentarily
delayed, but in no way forestalled.

%1n 1999, the study region produced roughly 120,000,000 tons of the 942,000,000 tons demanded for the
generation of electricity. Tho end use stetistics are not disaggregated sufficiently to note final destimation of the
study region coal. Nationwide, roughly 90 percent of domestic coal is used for power generation. Though the study
area production of coking ceal is higher proportionately them the national average, the difference does not
substantially effect this estimate. Data obtained from ElA, Freme and Hong, U.S. Coal Supply and Demand: 1999
Review. Proportions caleulated by CBER.

*There is evidence that the reilroad indusiry is already contemplating how the Haden Decision will affect
the demand for coal transport (seo Trafflc World, November 15, 1999, pg. 19).
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46 Summary

This chapter presents the non-technical outline of our forecasting and simulation model.
The technical model and estimation techniques are provided in Appendix B. The technical
exposition of the production function model appears in Appendix C. The baseline forecast and
simulations used to drive the economic impact analysis that follows also appear in this chapter .
The strong forecast model performance suggests it is an appropriate tool for developing short run
predictions, yielding results that provide a solid basis for regional impact analyses.

The inclusion of economies of scope within the ansalysis and the role these economies
play in producing accurate forecast results is particularly important. To some, these outcomes
may seem counter-intuitive. However, the estimation results clearly demonstrate that any
supposition that underground mining will fill the void of curtailed surface mining is incorrect.
Quite to the contrary, the empirical analysis suggests that reduced surface volumes will increase
the cost of coal mined underground within most study region counties.
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Chapter 5 - Total Regional Impact

5.1 The Impact Analysis

The impact of the baseline forecast, the Haden Decision phase-in, and restrictive Haden
Decision simulation were performed using the econometric models outlined in Chapter 4, and
Appendixes B and C. The reduction in coal production under each scenario was used to generate
estimates of industry income declines and these foregone incomes were, in turn, used to predict
study region economic impacts. The local impact analysis performed using the IMPLAN
simulation software, produced by MIG, Inc. This commercizl software employs Regional Impact
Multipliers I (RIMS 1), collected by the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics. These multipliers
quantify the regional flow of goods and services associated with each of the industries and all
households in the region. For example, the RIMS II multipliers capture the local goods and
services such as engineering services, transport, and fuel used by the coal producers. Similarly,
the mulﬁplierslcaptm'e the coal industry employees® consumer goods purchases. Thus, the
displacement of production and the ineumbent loss of employee income is included within all
calculations, and its impact on the regional economy is tallied by the IMPLAN software. This is
the most commonly used and widely accepted method of analyzing local economic impacts. In
this study, we present our estimate of the baseline forecast and the two study area simulations.
Appendix A outlines the individual county-level impacts. Given that inter-county variations in
impacts are sizable, the reader is encouraged to carefully consider these findings,

5.2 The Baseline Forecast

As outlined in Chapter 4, the total regional output decline in the baseline forecast for
2000 resulted in a regional output decline of just over 7.1 percent, or just under 7.3 million short
tons of coal. The direct dollar value of this decline, in coal only, will be roughly $170 million in
2000. This bascline estimate is very consistent with the 1999 amual production decline of
roughly 7.9 percent. The economic impact of this baseline forecast for year 2000, representing &
roughly seven percent reduction in output, is illustrated in Table 5.2.

The analysis does not account for the full range of fiscal impacts that might be expected
under this scenario. As noted, the loss of commercial activity is likely fo spawn changes in both
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the demand for public services and the tax revenues collected. The (uncertain) rate of demand
and revenue changes will affect the fiscal balance of the State and its individual counties. The
loss of public employees resulting from a lower demand for school, public safety and
administrative services will, in some part, balance the loss of tax revenues. The speed at which
this occurs complicates a one year analysis, but does not forestall the final impact. We do
anticipate a loss of commercial activity reducing public sector employment by 341 jobs. The
direct loss of Severance Taxes to the State is estimated at roughly $8,367,000 under this
scenarjo. Of this amount, we estimate that $6.28 million is the direct county share.

Table 5.2
Baseline Impact

Industry Employment Wages Qutput
Agriculture 7 $68,180 $124,930
Mining 810 39,902,000 214,544,000
Construction 51 1,766,000 3,821,000
Meanufacturing I6 443,700 1,827,000
TCPU 69 2,686,000 9,401,000
Trade 369 6,225,000 14,233,000
FIRE 52 081,400 8,307,000
Services 262 5,951,000 12,066,000
Other 10 78,620 78,630
Total -1,646  -$58,101,900 -$264,402,560

Note: columns may not sum due to independent roanding. TCPU is Transportation,
Communfcations and Public Utilitles, FIRE, Is Finance, Insorance and Real Estate,

5.3 The Haden Declsion Phase-In

The first alternative simulation estimates the effect of new seam permit stoppage. Based
on the methodology outlined in Chapter 4, we estimate this prohibition would result in output
reductions of roughly 14 percent annually, The simulation results this model generates project an
output decline of roughly 16 million tons, with a first-year value of $386 million. The economic
impact of this phased-in simulation for year 2000 is depicted in Table 5.3. The projections only
account for first year reductions in coal output. Given no abatement in the preduction effects of
restricted permits, this scenario predicts continuing declines in coal outputs and escalating
economic impacts in each subsequent year.



Table 5.3
Haden Declsion Phase-In Impact

Industry Employment Wages Quiput
Agriculture 16 $155,000 $294,000
Mining 1,564 78,907,000 493,459,000
Construction 129 4,431,000 10,274,000
Manufecturing 41 1,456,000 7,115,000
TCPU 167 7,019,000 24,091,000
Trade 812 13,830,000 31,915,000
FIRE 140 2,964,000 21,863,000
Services 676 16,240,000 31,146,000
Other 30 226,000 226,000
Total -3,575  -8125,228,000  -$620,383,000

Note: colamns may not sien due to Independent rounding, TCPU ks Transportztion,
Commumications and Public Utilitles. FIRE i Finance, Insorance and Real Estate.

Under this scenario, we forecast the first-year loss of an additional 922 public sector jobs
and a decline in State Severance Tax revenues of roughly $19.24 million, of which $14.43 '
million is the direct county share.

5.4 The Restrictlive Haden Declsion

The third simulation generated within this analysis is based on a scenario where all
surface mining is immediately eliminated by Judge Haden's interprotation of the Clean Water
Act. In this scenario, the loss of surface mining is compounded by a decline in underground
mining in selected counties. Here, we estimate the restrictive Haden Decision will result in a coal
production decline of 47.5 million tons, with 2 value of $1.093 billion. The economic impact of
this phase-in simulation for year 2000 is outlined in Table 5.4. These figures reflect a dramatic,
rapid loss in employment, wages, and output across the region.
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Table 5.4

Restrictive Haden Decision Impact

Industry Employment Wages Outpuit
Agriculture 43 $182,021 $781,0600
Mining 5,001 202,482,163 1,407,626,000
Consiruction 376 7,152,149 28,283,000
Meanufecturing 115 1,606,054 19,796,000
TCPU 467 13,105,143 68,155,000
Trade 2,174 25,707,644 85,320,000
FIRE 388 4,257,164 60,982,000
Services 1,889 26,059,724 86,911,702
Other 89 429,026 7,539,000
Total -10,632 -$280,981,088 -$1,765,393,702

Note: colupmns may not sum das to independent roanding, TCPU Is Transportation, Comnrunications and
Publlc Utilitles. FIRE Is ¥irance, Insurance and Real Estate.

The third scenario offers the most dramatic commercial impact. Here, we anticipate the
loss of an additional 2,612 public sector employees. Likewise, the expected State Severance Tax
collections are forecasted to decline by roughly $54.89 million, of which $41.17 million
comprise the counties’ direct share,
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Chapter 6 - Concluding Remarks

The preceding amalysis yields a number of very important conclusions for West Virginia
policy-makers. First, even if the Haden decision is not upheld, the near-term economic fiture of
the State’s southern coal producing region is unsure. Changes in both domestic and international
markets for fuel owing to electric utility restructuring, stricter clean air standards, and increased
international competition will almost cerfainly continue to place downward pressures on the
price of West Virginia coal. Thess pressures are likely to resuit in lower output quantities and
may ultimately lead some preducers to exit the region. If the baseline forecast presented in
Chapter 4 is carrect, planners may encounter a 7 percent reduction in coal-related employment
within the study region over the coming year. This reduction will, in turn, lead to a $58 million
reduction in regional incomes and a $264 million reduction in overall regional economic activity.
Outcomes in subsequent years are similar.

If the Haden decision is upheld, regional production will be further reduced. The actual
magnitude and intertemporal course of these reductions is very difficult to predict. The foregoing
emalysis considers two scenarios that are both within the realm of reason. In the first of these
scenarios, surface mining is gradually reduced, as currently permitted mines are retired and no
new surface permits are granted. Even under this restricted scenario, the economic effects on the
counties that comprise the study region are likely to be devastating. Total regional employment
is predicted to decline by 4.3 percent, while overall regional economic activity is predicted to
decline by $620 million within the first year. The economic impacts observed under the extreme
scenarjo, in which the Haden decision leads to the immediate curtailment of surface mining, are
even more extreme. A sudden cessation in surface mining is predicted to cost the study region
more than 10,500 jobs, $281 million in incomes, and $1.8 billion in total economic activity.

Clearly, even the economic disruptions predicted under the baseline scenario are likely to
demand policy responses on the part of both the State and local governments. In the very near
texm, reduced production, combined with falling prices, will diminish State Severance Tax
collections. Indeed, current estimates suggest that severance tax collections are already falling at
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a rate that may approach 13 percent for the current fiscal year.”® Likewise, the predicted
reduction in coal production will likely lead to a reduction in a number of other State funding
sources including, but not limited to, corporate net income tax collections, business franchise tax
collections, personal income tax collections, and revenues from the collection of State sales
taxes. To the extent that additional restricions on surface mining methods further reduce
regional coal production, the near-term strains on State revenue sources will be even more
pronounced. Moreover, if the short-run trends predicted under the three scenarios considered
here continue over even a few years, property values within the study region are likely to be
negatively affected, so that local governments’ ability to generate funds through property taxes
will also be constrained.

Just as State policy-makers are likely to face declines in coal-related revenues, the short-
rm demand for State services is likely to increase. Almost cerfainly, a sustained decline in coal
production will lead to the out-migration of study region residents, but this exodus is likely to
occur with a lag as regional residents attempt to weather declining economic conditions before
exiting the region. Thus, State and local governments may expect increased claims for
unemployment benefits, Medicaid benefits, and other forms of public assistance. The magnitude
of the short-run increase in the demand for governmental services will directly reflect the degree
to which coal-related economic activity is reduced. Even if reduced coal production does
ultimately reduce the demand for government-provided services by reducing local populations,
reacting to these reduced demands may present & number of challenges to policy-makers. Absent
the current population base, it may be necessary to further comsolidate the provision of
educational, social, law enforcement, and medical services, Such consolidations are rarely
accomplished with ease.

The reader is urged to recall the short-run nature of the current analysis. The very near-
term vantage adopted here largely obscures two points that are routine issues within more
comprehensive discussions of the link between coal production and the economic viability of the
study region. First, many may argue that the rather dire economic predictions proffered here fail
to consider the potential replacement of coal-related ecomomic activity with alternative

* Beeanse the Strte’s soverance tax is levied against gross receipts, the effect of reduced production on collected
rovenues is compounded by the impact of falling regional coal prices. The I3 percent figure is baged on information
obtained through the West Virginia Department of Tax and Revenue.
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commerce. This is, in fact, true. Countless State and regional employees and policy-makers
quietly and tirelessly endeavor to bring new non-coal economic activity to the study region and,
at least in some study region counties, these efforts are vielding some successes. The growth of
tourism in Fayette and Raleigh Counties described in Chapter 2, is a poignant example. Still, the
task of bringing a vibrant, broad-based economy to a region that faces so many challenges cannot
be accomplished with great speed. Thus, while current development efforts may eventually yield
tangible and laudable results, it is our judgement that these efforts will provide little shelter for
the region’s current residents.

The second argument that is routinely encountered during discussions of the coal industry
suggests that the more stringent regulation of surface mining activities will only hasten what is
likely to be the same long-run outcome. It is argued that the increased competition in fuel
markets documented here, when combined with the steady reduction in economically mineable
reserves, points to a “West Virginia without coal” under any circiunstance. We have neither the
desire, nor the ability, to refute such claims. There are, however, two associated points that
deserve equal treatment.

First, dramatic swings in the prosperity of coal producers and coal producing
communities are more the exception than the rule. One need only contrast the almost manic coal
production of the 1970°s with the industries slump during the 1980’s to understand this point.
Thus, to pin predictions of significant long-run reductions in coal production on currently
observable economic circumstances is, at best, perilous. Easily conceivable events, such as
prolonged disruptions in infernational petroleum or coal production or the development of more
efficient coal gassification processes, could, once again, renew the importance of West
Virginia’s coal reserves within domestic and international fuel markets.

Perhaps more importantly, even if all roads do lead to permanent and diminished role of
coal production within the West Virginia economy, some roads are likely to be much bumpier
than others. Given that our principal concem is the short-rum economic consequences of various
policies on the coal producing counties in the study region, we must conclude that a more
gradual transition away from a coal-centered economy would be far less disruptive than a rapidly

accelerated cessation in production.
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In conclusion, the evidence developed within the current study implies that the coal
producing region of West Virginia is likely to face significant challenges over the coming few
years — challenges that will severely tax the energy and tenacity of the region’s inhabifants, as
well as the wisdom and resourcefulness of its leaders. However, there is nothing within these
results that indicates helplessness. To the confrary, the variations in the predicted outcomes
across populations, commercial sectors, and policy alternatives suggests that there are good
choices to be made and bad choices to be avoided. This realization, in turn, obligates each of us
to continue to investigate, discuss, and search for the most productive policy course.



